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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited

focuses on ports and infrastructure development

and investment, and the operation of ports and

logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of China. It |
also engages in land and property development and %

investment in association with ports and infrastructure
development, as well as securities trading and investment, '

and provision of loan financing services. In addition, PYI
provides comprehensive engineering and property-related
services through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2019 2018
Revenue of the Group (HK$m) REFBZIRA(BEST) 628 624
Gross proceeds from securities trading of the Group R £ E 7 45 B S S R IE 458
(HK$m) (Bg8%IT) 126 59
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures  #{HE L AT R AL E 2 KA
(HK$m) (BEBATT) 4,556 3,642
Total revenue and gross proceeds (HK$m) WARFEREEBEAT(BEAT) 5,310 4,325
Gross profit (HK$m) EN(BEEBT) 209 196
Earnings before interest expense and tax (HK$m)  F M EMZ RBEAIEN (BEET) 121 768
Earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation K&t F| B - HE - TE R
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) (HK$m) B®ispaM (TEBTDAD (BB B T) 172 889
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BREREESEN(EEBIT) 49 477
Shares in issue (M) EEITRN (BER) 5,520 5,520
Net asset value' per share (HKS) GREEFE (BT) 0.81 0.85
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAERN BT 0.009 0.088
Dividend per share (HK$) BB E (BT) 0 0
Total assets (HK$m) wEE(BEBT) 7,668 8,119
Quick assets? (HK$m) REEE(BEBIT) 1,744 1,871
Net current assets (HK$m) REBEEFE(BEESEL) 2,235 2,660
Net debt® (HK$m) FaGi(assm) 392 437
Shareholders’ funds' (HK$m) BEREL (BEBIT) 4,446 4,712
Capital employed* (HK$m) EFHEL(BELET) 4,816 5,420
Current ratio® Nk 3.06 411
Quick ratio® IR B L O 1.61 2.19
Net debt/equity ratio’ FEE BN R 0.09 0.09
Gearing ratio® BB EH =8 0.26 0.26
Return on equity® % #E Ui 250 1.1% 10.1%
Return on capital employed'® BEFHES W™ 3.4% 17.8%
Total shareholder return'’ % 3 48 g 2 -6% -12%

The amount for each of net asset value or shareholders’ funds is equivalent to the amount of equity attributable to owners of PYI
BEFEIRRECZ SEESENREABARERRZZSE

Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, stock of properties and current portion of prepaid lease payments
RYPEEERDEERTE YWEFELENEEFBEZ B S

Net debt represents bank borrowings less cash, bank balances and deposits

FRBERITEFARSE  RITETFREX

Capital employed represents the sum of shareholders’ funds and non-current borrowings. Non-current borrowings of HK$370 million as at 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$708 million) are the sum of non-current portion of (i) bank and other borrowings and (i) amounts due to non-controlling
interests which are interest bearing

CHAEDKERRESRIERBDERZAEM - R2019F3 A1 B 2 IERBERBI.7EIET (2018 : 7.088E TT) » BOWITREME
AR )M SN IR R R IR 2 ERBE D 2 B

Current ratio measures the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MBLERFERDEERRHEBOL X

Quick ratio measures the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

BB ERFGERPEER R EBENLE

Net debt/equity ratio measures the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

FEE/ AR EHBEFEEERRESNL X

Gearing ratio measures the ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ funds

ERABLEGAEEFAFEEARTRESHLE

Return on equity measures the net profit or loss attributable to shareholders as a percentage of shareholders’ funds

RN SFERREEFRMNIBEERIRESHNEO L

Return on capital employed measures the EBITDA as a percentage of the average capital employed over the year

EHAES WA EEBTDAEFANERES FHENE DL

Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year. The figure of
—-6% for 2019 is the percentage change from closing share price of HK$0.145 at 31 March 2018 to HK$0.137 at 31 March 2019
BRAKREREHGS)REVRFENEDMFAND IMORE - 2019F 2 BF-6%AH2018F3 A31 H 2 Ik H KT B0.145%8
JTLE2019F3A31 A 20137 BT A D L ES)
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
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Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI
shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRSE

At 31 March 2019, shareholders’ funds
stood at HK$4,446 million, representing
net asset value per share of HK$0.81. PYI
will continue to maintain a prudent approach in
refining its strategy to strengthen the long-term value
of the Group.

1R2019F38318 » REEERAL4.46(27%8
70 BIEREEFE0.818TT - RER
BERSFBENRBERCRKE -
PUERAEECREE -
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of PYI Corporation
Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of about HK$628 million (2018:
HK$624 million). Net profit for the year attributable to the
owners of PY| was about HK$49 million (2018: HK$477 million),
and basic earnings per share was HK0.9 cent (2018: HK8.8
cents). Shareholders’ funds decreased by 6% to about
HK$4,446 million (2018: HK$4,712 million), representing net
asset value per share of HK$0.81 (2018: HK$0.85).

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: Nil).

During the year under review, PYI maintained a prudent
approach in refining its strategy to strengthen the long-term
value of the Group. The ports and logistics business of PYI
delivered stable performance during the year. A detailed review
of our operations during the year is set out in the Business
Review section.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETR/HBES
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

In June 2019, World Bank forecasted that global economic
growth would slow down to 2.6% for 2019. The GDP growth of
China for the full year of 2018 and the first quarter of 2019 were
6.6% and 6.4% respectively. The US-China trade war has
created uncertainty to China’s economy and the overall
economic environment is still challenging.

In light of current government policies which assert particular
emphasis on the more efficient utilisation of port assets in
Yangtze River region by way of consolidation of ownership and
operations, PYI will, in line with such policies, continue to focus
on capturing potential divestment opportunities to further
crystalise the value of its Yangtze Strategy and refocus on other
bulk commodities with higher growth potential, in particular
LNG as well as exploring into other alternative business
opportunities with a view to enhance the PYI shareholders’
value.

PYI continues to pursue effective internal control measures and
endeavours to enhance the quality of our overall corporate
governance measures. We maintained transparent
communications with investors and stakeholders, persisted to
pursue consistent and effective internal control and audit
programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices in
the Mainland.

PYIl demonstrated a strong commitment to corporate social
responsibility addressing on education and youth development
by sponsoring educational exchange program for Nantong'’s
secondary school students to Hong Kong continuously for
thirteen years. Starting from 2017, PYI has also sponsored
educational exchange program for Hong Kong’s secondary
school students to Nantong and other cities in Jiangsu
Province. During the year, PYI donated, together with Paul Y.
Engineering, HK$1 million to Friends of Hope Education Fund to
support their educational works in the Mainland and Hong
Kong. For the eleventh consecutive years, we were awarded
with the title of “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service in recognition to our corporate citizenship and
our ongoing effort in caring the community.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices and
corporate social responsibilities are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report and Business Review.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

TRWEE

| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude RAZHUEBEHRISEETRNEASEEREM
to my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and EENERREBE - AANRRESZREHNE

monitoring to the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to EEIAREDEERRANENERMNS
express our appreciation to the Group’s staff for their dedication NeRBETRLERBERMORE BEFEREMN

and contribution that gives impetus to the development of the LZEREEBFENELNZH - FARREF
Group. | would also like to send our gratitude to our URFHEEREEFIEE -

shareholders, clients and partners for their continuous support
and confidence to the Group. | wish them all prosperity and
continued success in the coming year.

Yours faithfully,

FEREE
Tom Lau =
Chairman and Managing Director 250

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019 H74 0 2019F6 4218
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Business Review
EIRER

PY! will stay in line with China’s national policy and
general development directions on implementation
of our Yangtze Strategy.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EFER

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Ports and Logistics

During the year, the remaining ports and logistics business of
PYI sustained to deliver stable performance after the disposal of
Nantong Port Group. Nonetheless, PYI takes heed of the
challenging economic landscape ahead through enhancement
of operational efficiency measures.

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$38 million (2018:
HK$34 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
Yichang Port successfully captured the growing demand of
lower margin dry cargo loading (e.g. ore and gravel) and multi-
modal transportation, which successfully boosted the cargo
throughput during the year as well as mitigated the impact of
the decline in demand of container transshipment services.

Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three
Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is
principally engaged in transport logistics and minor properties
investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, as well as container services in its
62.4%-owned Yunchi terminals, shipping agent, cargo agent,
port logistics and port equipment rental services and
commodities trading in Yichang Port.

2019 Annual Report
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Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 increased by 30% to about 13 million
tonnes (2018: 10 million tonnes). Its annual container throughput
decreased by 12% to about 141,000 TEUs (2018: 160,000
TEUSs).

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)
Jiangyin Sunan contributed about HK$13 million (2018: loss of
HK$7 million, due to a one-off write-off of premium on land
acquisition right of about HK$18 million) to the segment’s
operating profit for the year.

Jiangyin Sunan is situated at New Harbour District of New
Harbour City in Jiangyin City and occupies a land area of 0.49
sq km, shorelines of 589 m long at outer port and 1,090 m long
at inner port with 11 berths. It is principally engaged in
containers loading and discharging as well as the storage,
maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.

Annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan in 2018
increased by 6% to about 574,000 TEUs (2017: 541,000
TEUS).

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port contributed about HK$7 million
(2018: HK$8 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the
year. Its operating result was affected by drop in containers
throughput due to the decline in demand for imported raw
materials by local enterprises.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City and occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass
of 326,000 sg m. The port has 10 berths which are principally
engaged in loading, discharging and storage of containers. The
port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting
services such as examination, quarantine, storage and
information services, etc.

Annual container throughput of Jiaxing International Feeder Port
for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased by 16% to about
156,000 TEUs (2018: 186,000 TEUSs).

2019 F#f

BUSINESS REVIEW
EFEiR
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EFER

LPG, CNG and Logistics (100% owned)

Minsheng Gas contributed about HK$46 million (2018: loss of
HK$216 million, due to accelerated depreciation and
amortisation of LPG fueling station assets of about HK$69
million and write-down on value of LPG storage tank farm of
about HK$148 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the
year mainly due to a net gain on disposal of about HK$47
million arising from the resumption of land and properties of a
CNG station by Wuchang Government under the Old City
Conversion Project.

Currently, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest LPG
storage-tank farm and a river terminal in mid-stream Yangtze,
and has seven LPG and five CNG automotive fueling stations in
Wuhan City. Competition from CNG sector continued to put
pressure on the sale volume and profit margin of Minsheng
Gas’s LPG distribution business in Wuhan City, while Minsheng
Gas is well positioned for the conversion of the remaining LPG
fueling stations into CNG to enhance the profitability and sale
performance.

The PRC Government has made a strong commitment to
reduce the carbon emission at the 2015 United Nations Climate
Change Conference in Paris and has issued policies to speed
up the development of clean energy such as LNG. Given that
LNG is more efficient in terms of storage and long-distance
transportation as compared to piped natural gas, there is
tremendous growth potential for LNG and LNG storage and
infrastructure development. As such, Minsheng Gas intends to
seize the opportunity to expand into the LNG sector.

Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

The Group’s 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co
contributed dividend income of about HK$1 million (2018: Nil)
to the segment’s operating profit for the year.

Yangkou Port is an offshore type deep-sea harbour along the
South East Coast of Jiangsu Province, which declared soft
open in October 2008. Strategically located near the mouth of
the Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is ideally situated to become
one of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry and liquid
bulk cargoes.

RIEBHR  BEARRRY T (FEE
100% #& 2 )
REBMBARD B EE N E B H4,60087%8
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AMRGEEEM 2 BEBEMBA1.48EE T
ey T2HRERSBAREBEENSUEER
BUWBEREBRARMRUEFEZ LR YWEMRE
ERHEEREFREN47008 BT -

BAT REAMEARLKERTFHFRANR
b 75 SR frE B B ot e — BE A B BE 0 3 AR BUR
MHERELERLAHREAERERARAE
MR - BERARITENHFEBE/RER
HRREMAREABRRDERHOHERER
REREN BERERAMBIFHFERBH TR
fERMRMREEEDBERERXARMA U A
EmAMENRHEERR -
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PYI continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the 9.9% equity interest, which is intended to be held
for long-term investment purpose and is classified as an
investment in equity instrument. As at 31 March 2019, the
investment in Yangkou Port Co was stated at fair value of about
HK$361 million (2018: HK$405 million).

Engineering Business

Paul Y. Engineering (48.2% owned)

Paul Y. Engineering contributed about HK$20 million (2018:
HK$15 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to
the accounting impact in adoption of new accounting standards
which increase the profit of Paul Y. Engineering.

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering recorded a revenue of
about HK$9,348 million (2018: HK$6,800 million) and secured
new contracts of about HK$14,599 million (2018: HK$9,844
million) in aggregate value. As at 31 March 2019, the total value
of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about
HK$32,722 million (2018: HK$31,538 million) and the value of
work remaining was about HK$20,277 million (2018:
HK$15,090 million).

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated
to providing full-fledged engineering and property services, with
operations in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia. For over 70 years, Paul Y. Engineering has been at
the heart of some of the most challenging and impactful
construction projects that have shaped the iconic skylines of
Hong Kong and many other cities. Its projects include
commercial and residential buildings, institutional facilities,
highways, airport runways, railways, tunnels, port works, water
and sewage treatment facilities etc.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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Property

The property business recorded an operating profit of about
HK$25 million (2018: HK$95 million) for the year which was
mainly attributable to the net gain on fair value changes of
investment properties of about HK$39 million (2018: HK$128
million), before the relevant deferred tax charge of about HK$15
million (2018: HK$61 million). A provision for doubtful
receivables of about HK$32 million was included in the
operating result for the last year.

The Group has 11.5 sq km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou,
which is under development as a regional tourism site of
national standard with hotspring and recreational facilities. As at
31 March 2019, about 6.89 sg km (2018: 6.89 sq km) out of
the 11.5 sq km land bank had reached the developing stage or
the developed and serviced stage. The development status of
the 11.5 sq km land bank was summarised as follows:
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1.89 Land under development Sale Stock of properties
F B £ i HE mMEFE

0.03 Developed land Self-use Prepaid lease payment
G g B A BN HEERIEA

4.61 Pending development Undetermined Project under development

11.50

frRA%

fR) R OR TE

ERPIAR



M’y rEemzras 2019&%&“

The investment properties of about 2.88 sq km are measured at
fair value of about HK$1,055 million (2018: HK$1,076 million)
and recorded a net gain on revaluation of about HK$33 million
(2018: HK$134 million) for the year.

As at 31 March 2019, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sg m of
“Nantong International Trade Center”, a commercial and office
development in the central business district of Nantong City,
was rented out for hotel operation and classified as investment
properties. The investment properties recorded a gain on fair
value change of about HK$1 million for the year (2018: loss of
HK$10 million). The Group holds a gross floor area of about
13,000 sg m (2018: 13,000 sg m) of “Nantong International
Trade Center” for sale. The building contributed rental income
of about HK$3 million (2018: HK$5 million) to the Group during
the year.

In the main urban district of Yichang City, the Group holds
certain commercial, residential and industrial properties with
gross floor area of about 145,000 sg m (inclusive of commercial
shops of about 5,000 sg m) through Yichang Port Group for
rental and were classified as investment properties as at 31
March 2019. The investment properties recorded a gain on fair
value changes of about HK$5 million (2018: HK$4 million) and
contributed rental income of about HK$9 million (2018: HK$10
million) to the Group during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds jointly with Paul .
Engineering an office building known as “Pioneer Technology
Building”, which has a gross floor area of about 20,000 sg m.
The building generated rental income of about HK$11 million
(2018: HK$12 million) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 96% as at 31 March 2019.
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Securities

The securities business recorded operating profit of about
HK$27 million (2018: HK$14 million) to the Group for the year
which was mainly attributable to the interest income from
investments in debt instruments of about HK$28 million (2018:
HK$16 million) as benefited from the enlarged average portfolio
on the investments in debt instruments held for trading during
the current year. While the gain on change in fair value of other
financial asset of about HK$12 million (2018: HK$9 million) is
offset by the net loss on changes in fair value of investments in
equity and debt instruments held for trading of about HK$11
million (2018: HK$6 million).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s portfolio in securities
business mainly consisted of (a) the investments in debt
instruments held for trading amounted to about HK$299 million
(2018: HK$320 million), equivalent to about 4% (2018: 4%) of
the Group’s total assets; (b) investments in equity instruments
held for trading amounted to about HK$310 million (2018:
HK$36 million), equivalent to about 4% (2018: 0.4%) of the
Group’s total assets. At 31 March 2018, the Group had unlisted
convertible securities amounted to about HK$184 million (2019:
Nil), equivalent to about 2% (2019: Nil) of the Group’s total
assets.

The ongoing China-US trade disputes might continue to
intensify the risks of fair value loss and downward pressure in
Hong Kong and global securities market which raises
challenges to the Group’s securities segment in future. The
Group will continue to monitor its portfolio of investments in
diversified securities products to achieve satisfactory return in
the coming year.

Treasury

The treasury business contributed about HK$56 million (2018:
HK$1 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year. The
operating profit of the current year was mainly attributable to (a)
interest income from loans receivable of about HK$38 million
(2018: HK$19 million) due to higher average amount of loans
advanced to borrowers; and (b) net reversal of provision on
loans receivable of about HK$20 million (2018: provision of
HK$21 million).
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As at 31 March 2019, carrying amounts of the Group’s portfolio
of (a) high-vield loans receivable amounted to about HK$230
million (2018: HK$373 million), equivalent to about 3% (2018: 5%)
of the Group’s total assets; and (b) interest-bearing borrowings
to an associate of about HK$69 million (2018: HK$75 million),
equivalent to about 1% (2018: 1%) of the Group’s total assets.

The Group will continue to exploring for business opportunities
under prudent credit strategy and maintain a healthy loan
portfolio with a view to contribute a stable and favorable income
stream to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 22 May
2019, the Group entered into a conditional agreement with an
independent third party for the disposal of its entire investment
of 51% equity interest in B &85 %E B AR & X2 7] (Yichang
Port Group Limited) at a consideration of RMB377.4 million
(equivalent to about HK$429 million), subject to adjustment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of about HK$628 million (2018: HK$624
million), representing a mild increase of about 1% from last year.
After taking into account of (a) the gross proceeds from
securities trading and (b) the share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures, the total revenue and gross proceeds were about
HK$5,310 million (2018: HK$4,325 million), representing an
increase of 23% from last year which was due to the increase in
share of revenue of associates and joint ventures contributed
mainly by Paul Y. Engineering Group.

The Group’s gross profit increased by 7% from last year to
about HK$209 million (2018: HK$196 million), which
represented a gross margin of 33% (2018: 31%) of the
consolidated revenue. Overall improvement in gross profit of the
Group during the year was mainly attributable to the increase in
interest income from securities and treasury segments as
benefited from the enlarged portfolio of investments in debt
instruments held for trading and loans receivable.

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses decreased by
55% to about HK$54 million (2018: HK$120 million), mainly due
to absence of a one-off accelerated depreciation and
amortisation in value of LPG fueling station assets (including
LPG plant and machinery and related intangible assets) of about
HK$69 million in last year.

During the year, the Group recorded a profit before taxation of
about HK$89 million (2018: HK$714 million), which was
composed of:

()  net gain of about HK$20 million (2018: HK$15 million) in
Paul Y. Engineering Group mainly engaged in
management contracting and property development
management businesses;

(i) net gain of about HK$1 million (2018: Nil) in ports
development business;

(i) net gain of about HK$104 million (2018: HK$710 million)
in ports and logistics business;

(iv) net gain of about HK$25 million (2018: HK$95 million) in
property business;
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(v)  net gain of about HK$27 million (2018: HK$14 million) in
securities business;

(vi)  net gain of about HK$56 million (2018: HK$1 million) in
treasury business;

(vii) net corporate and other expenses of about HK$112
million (2018: HK$68 million), which included acquisition-
related costs of about HK$27 million (2018: HK$23 million)
and net exchange loss of about HK$10 million (2018: gain
of about HK$30 million); and

(vii) finance costs of about HK$32 million (2018: HK$53
million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was
about HK$49 million (2018: HK$477 million) and basic earnings
per share was HK0.9 cent (2018: HK8.8 cents). The decrease
in profitability from last year was mainly due to the net effect of (a)
absence of a net gain after tax on disposal of 45% equity
interest in Nantong Port Group of about HK$693 million; (b)
absence of charging a one-off accelerated depreciation and
amortisation and an impairment provision in value of LPG
business assets of Minsheng Gas in total of about HK$209
million after crediting deferred tax credit of about HK$8 million;
and (c) a one-off gain on disposal of about HK$47 million in
current year arising from the resumption of land and properties
of a CNG station of Minsheng Gas by Wuchang Government
under the Old City Conversion Project.
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Review of Financial Position

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2018, total assets decreased by 6% to about HK$7,668
million (2018: HK$8,119 million). As at 31 March 2019, net
current assets amounted to about HK$2,235 million (2018:
HK$2,660 million), whereas current ratio deriving from the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities decreased to 3.06 times
(2018: 4.11 times). After taking into account (a) the net profit of
about HK$49 million; (b) the decrease in carrying amount of
equity investments not held for trading of about HK$61 million
recognised in investment revaluation reserve; (c) the Renminbi
exchange deficits of about HK$150 million arising from
translation of foreign operations; (d) change in accounting
policies effect in reducing opening retained profits by about
HK$104 million, equity attributable to owners of PYI decreased
by 6% to about HK$4,446 million (2018: HK$4,712 million),
representing HK$0.81 (2018: HK$0.85) per share as at 31
March 2019.

Net cash inflow from operating activities was about HK$85
million (2018: outflow of about HK$787 million) and that net
cash outflow from investing activities was about HK$26 million
(2018: inflow of about HK$1,507 million). Net cash outflow from
financing activities was about HK$99 million (2018: HK$669
million), mainly resulted from net repayment of bank and other
borrowings during the year. Consequently, there was a net
decrease in available cash and cash equivalents of about
HK$40 million (2018: net increase of about HK$51 million)
during the year.

A summary of financial key performance indicators of the Group
is set out in the section of “Financial Highlights” on pages 4 and
5 of this annual report.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of HK$7,668
million (2018: HK$8,119 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to eight years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, no financial instruments had been
used for hedging purpose and no foreign currency net
investments are hedged by currency borrowings or other
hedging instruments. The Group adopts a prudent funding and
treasury policy and manages the fluctuation exposures of
exchange rate and interest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$1,140 million (2018: HK$1,247 million) with about
HK$770 million (2018: HK$539 million) repayable on demand or
within one year and about HK$370 million (2018: HK$708
million) repayable after one year, which comprised bank and
other borrowings and amounts due to non-controlling interests
that were interest bearing. Borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong dollar of about HK$120 million (2018: HK$130 million)
bore interest at floating rate and about HK$1 million (2018:
HK$1 million) bore interest at fixed rate. Borrowings
denominated in Renminbi of about HK$528 million (2018:
HK$562 million) bore interest at floating rate and about HK$491
million (2018: HK$538 million) bore interest at fixed rate. At 31
March 2018, borrowings denominated in United States Dollar of
about HK$16 million (2019: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate. The
Group’s gearing ratio was 0.26 (2018: 0.26), which was calculated
based on the total borrowings of about HK$1,140 million (2018:
HK$1,247 million) and the Group’s shareholders’ funds of about
HK$4,446 million (2018: HK$4,712 million).

Cash, bank balances and deposits of the Group as at 31 March
2019 amounted to about HK$518 million (2018: HK$607
million), of which about HK$295 million (2018: HK$345 million)
was denominated in Renminbi, about HK$165 million (2018:
HK$259 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$58 million (2018: HK$3 million) was denominated in
other currencies mainly in United States Dollar. The balance of
about HK$0.1 million (2018: HK$31 million) had been pledged
to bank to secure general credit facilities granted to the Group.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a net debt position (being
bank borrowings net of cash, bank balances and deposits) of
about HK$392 million (2018: HK$437 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided guarantee to a bank
of about HK$5.8 million (2018: Nil) in respect of a bank facility
granted to a third party.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment, debt instruments and securities account, bank
balances and trade receivables of the Group with an aggregate
value of about HK$1,102 million (2018: HK$1,010 million) were
pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure general
credit facilities granted to the Group. The Company’s
investments in certain subsidiaries of about HK$279 million
pledged for the credit facilities at 31 March 2018 were released
during the year.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment and properties interests in a total amount of about
HK$54 million (2018: HK$48 million).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Environmental Policies and Performance

We aim to operate our business with good environmental
protection practices which comply with applicable laws,
regulations and standards and we endeavour to:

V' Apply practices which minimise, lessen or remediate the
impact of our activities on the environment including
potential air and greenhouse gas emissions, wastewater
discharges, land contamination as well as generation of
wastes;

v' Use raw materials, energy and natural resources as
efficiently as possible and strive to improve that efficiency;
and

v Adopt measures to mitigate the negative effects of
environmental incidents.

The aforesaid principles are enshrined in our Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy adopted in June 2014. PYl is
committed to managing all business operations with sensitivity
to environmental protection. We will review our environmental
protection practices from time to time and will continue to apply
eco-friendly measures and practices in our operation.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers and Other Stakeholders

PYI has committed to responsible practices by adopting three
guiding core values: Genuine; Exceptional; and Involved as
expressed in our Code of Conduct. We are operating with
integrity, being ethical and treating others with respect; creating
exceptional experiences that delight our stakeholders; and
inclusive, open and actively engaging our stakeholders and
serving communities. In essence, we adhere to integrity,
respect, responsibility, competence and safety in carrying out
our business. The following principles, which are enshrined in
our Environmental, Social and Governance Policy and Code of
Conduct, are being adopted:
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Employees

v Providing a healthy and safe working environment;

v Adopting and maintaining a positive safety culture and
behaviour;

v Instituting occupational and community health/nygiene
programmes with an aim to eliminate or mitigate safety,
occupational and community health and hygiene hazards;

v' Offering suitable training and development opportunities;

v Providing equal opportunity throughout the Group and
treating employees fairly; and

v Providing fair remuneration.

Customers and Suppliers

v

Providing efficient and courteous services with good value
of money to customers;

Offering products and services with high standard of
safety, quality and reliability and accepting the social
responsibility for improvement;

Promoting fair and open competition for procurement
procedures through providing an environment of mutual
trust and impartiality to suppliers and contractors; and

Prohibiting bribery and corrupt practices and promoting
responsible and ethical business practices.

Information about the major customers, the credit terms of
customers and the Group’s management on new customers
and credit monitoring are set out in Notes 7, 30 and 45(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively in this annual
report.
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Community Involvement and Other Stakeholders

v" Building and maintaining good relationships with the
communities and other stakeholders associated with our
operations;

V' Working with local authorities, governments, inter-
governmental and non-governmental bodies and other
relevant stakeholders to develop projects that benefit the
communities connected to our operations in a sustainable
manner;

v' Minimising the negative impacts of our operations on the
communities where we operate;

v Investing in charitable and educational contribution;

v Supporting the community as a whole, especially those
communities in which our offices are based; and

v Supporting and encouraging our employees for their
charitable and community involvements.

Further discussion on PY!I’s environmental policies and
performance and the account of key relationships of PYI with its
stakeholders are contained in a separate report “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” (“ESG Report”), which can be
found in PYI's official website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee (a board committee of PYI) include
general oversight of PYI’s compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements of its business operations. Significant
non-compliance with laws and regulations, if any, will be
investigated by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and escalated to the board as necessary. During
the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group was
noted.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is affected by a number of risk factors, some of
which are likely to affect the performance of businesses
generally. Some risks are particular to the Group’s operations.

As stated in the Risk Management Framework of the Corporate
Governance Report, key risks facing the Group have been
identified, assessed and prioritised according to the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
business of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level. This
section sets out a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, based on our risks assessment
outcome. They are categorised under “Strategic Risks”,
“Operational Risks” and “Financial Risks” and are not set out in
priority order.

Risk categories Risk description
[ B 38 ) R B i
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Risk change
during the
reporting
period*

B B A 8] &
HA Y B

Key mitigating measures

TERRER

Strategic Risks
X BE B Bz

Concentrated investment
in Mainland China
RESGEEF KA ER M

PYI's key operation and assets are
conducted and located in China.
Accordingly, the investment,
business performance, financial
position and future prospects of
PYI may be adversely affected by
unfavourable changes in the
political, social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government.
RENFLEBRFEEEDR
mERF RENKRE  KE
KB - B AR A R 2R AT = 0] A2
EERFBEMEOL ' KR
IS R B B B A &2
%

»  Establish mechanism to
assess and closely monitor
any changes in the political,
social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government. Relevant
measures are also put in
place to deal with such
changes.
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Risk change
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EFEiR

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Operational Risks
&iER

Environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations

RE RERZEEEER

As a substantial part of PYI's
operations are in China and are
related to ports development and
logistics businesses, we are
subject to various inspections,
examinations, inquiries and audits
by relevant PRC regulatory
authorities in accordance with
applicable PRC environmental,
health and safety (‘EHS”) laws and
regulations, in which the outcomes
form part of the conditions for
obtaining, maintaining or renewing
various licenses, certificates and
permits required for conducting
our businesses. As the PRC EHS
laws and regulations continue to
evolve, such changes may bring
additional compliance challenges
and costs to PYI’s businesses.
RERKI D HEBIHEH EM
BRABOEREMRES &M
BAERERNERR BEALD
(TEHSD EZ B ZEZBREX TR MK
B Al ERNER ERE
T REAEIRETHMANER
FIENSEER BENHTAUE
R EE D R BEE G BEHS
ERERN TG TR ZEEHE
g rRRESENEKTERE
SNE)E R E B PRECRN R R ©

> Group legal team has been
working closely with
operation units to assess the
impact of those promulgated
environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations.

> SEMNZEEBRRLED
RIEZmAEHE  FHEBEMER
R BEEREEEEERD

B2 488
B

> Policies to minimise the
impacts from operations
have been formulated and
updated regularly by
reference to the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

> I EARRBEE R W
ERNFEWRE PR
ERETEHRER -

For more discussion, please see the “PYI
2019 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
FEZama2ARREZCERW
(www.pyicorp.com) A 4R £ &) [ 201938 17
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BUSINESS REVIEW

EFER

Pyl ’) PY! Corporation Limited

2019 Annual Report

Risk change

during the

reporting
Risk categories Risk description period* Key mitigating measures

BB R ¥R
2 B 3 B 2 B 4 4 MR Xe TEEMHER
Environmental/safety Environmental or other accidents »  Appropriate operational
incidents happen at or around the operating (—) procedures and controls are
Rig Z2EH site may cause losses on put in place and all relevant

corporate assets, employees’
morale, customers’ confidence
and goodwill and may incur extra
costs to the Group.

R HMELRIGAITHE
WA RRERECENEE BT
TR-BEFELNEHEMNEL.
AR REBIBHERINIBKA -

employees are provided with
relevant information, training
and supervision to reduce
and manage those incidents.

> HIETEENRERRERE
HERAE RAEHEBET
RETHEBEN HJIME
BEUERLOMERELER
THEo

> Reporting systems have
been developed and all our
operating units are required
to report promptly of any
significant environmental/
safety incidents.

> RUERBER RMALEA
7] #0 2 37 B[ R 1] 82 KIR
B/ REEMW -

For more discussion, please see the “PYI
2019 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
FHEARE2RRNREZLERY
(www.pyicorp.com) A {R 2 #) [ 201938 3% »
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Risk change
during the
reporting
Risk description period*
BEBRRE
R B 4 3t LiIAR: VRS -

BUSINESS REVIEW
EFEiR

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Pricing of goods/services

Efm BRBE %

PYl is exposed to the risks
associated with pricing of goods/
services resulting from factors
beyond PYI's control, such as
market fluctuation and price
control prescribed by governing
authorities. For example, PY!I’s
LPG and CNG retail businesses
are subject to a certain degree of
price control and competition
which limits PYI’s pricing flexibility.
R EE & B A E el e A
EMEERER/ TR EEHEH
WER TS EBRIEAEE
BAFEHOER - flm: REDN
BRIELABMAREBRERARTEE
BHZHT -—ERENERES
REedmBREl TREEEESE
SO e

©

>  Set up pricing system to
analyze product/service
prices and their costs.

>y BUTERER HWERS
BR 5 B 48 J HB AN o

»  To explore the advantages of
our products/services and
target customers in order to
explore other revenue
streams.
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Risk change
during the
reporting
period*
BEBRRE
LiIAR: VRS -

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Financial Risks
B 7% B B

Change of foreign
exchange rates

ExE1t

As a substantial part of PYI's
assets and businesses are located
and conducted in China, the
fluctuation in the exchange rates
of RMB may adversely affect (i) the
value of PYI's investments and
monetary assets denominated in
RMB when they are converted into
Hong Kong dollar, and (i) the
repayment of RMB loans with
funds denominated in currencies
other than RMB.
RENAI D EEREFE - %
BEORBLO MNP EET AR
BPE R g R )P g B AR E () A
ARBHEBENREREBEEYE
BmEAETKRHAFEAREER
BNMARBHEBENEREEELETDT

22

* e where risk remained broadly the same.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties are also set out in Notes
4, 5 and 45 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

»  Establish mechanism for
regularly reviews of the
balances of assets and
liabilities and the currencies
in which the transactions are
denominated so as to
minimise exposure to foreign
currency risk.

> BUEHBRHAEERBER
BRAMZZERE BB -
BRBERDEE ZINE
[ F o

For more discussion, please see Note 45(b)
to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 245 to 248 of this annual report.
EENRBELRAFERENFE245F
248 E 2 #R A M 5 MR T 5L 45(0) ©
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MR LAU TOM KO YUEN
gAsREE
Chairman and Managing Director

FERBH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 68, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is also a member of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Share Repurchase Committee, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau has over 40 years of
international corporate development and management
experience in infrastructure developments as well as
construction and engineering services involving road, rail, port,
power, telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in
the Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as an executive
director in 1993 and was appointed as the Deputy Chairman in
1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company in 2005 and has been responsible for the Group’s
corporate development strategy, and overall performance. He
had been re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman
since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy chairman
and an executive director of South Shore Holdings Limited
(0577 .HK) and the deputy chairman and a non-executive
director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MR SUE KA LOK
BREEE
Executive Director

BITEE

2019 Annual Report

Mr Sue Ka Lok, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in April 2017. He is also a member of
the Company’s Nomination Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Sue has extensive experience
in corporate management, finance, accounting and company
secretarial practice. He holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree
from The University of Sydney in Australia and a Master of
Science in Finance Degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Mr Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a certified practising accountant of the
CPA Australia, a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, and a fellow and Chartered Governance
Professional of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

Mr Sue is an executive director of PT International Development
Corporation Limited (0372.HK) (a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and
Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in
the Directors’ Report). Mr Sue is also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of China Strategic Holdings Limited
(0235.HK), an executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited
(0689.HK), a non-executive director and the chairman of the
board of directors of Courage Investment Group Limited
(“Courage Investment”) (1145.HK) and a non-executive director
of Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited (2309.HK). The shares
of Courage Investment are also listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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MS WU YAN YEE
Azt

Executive Director

BITEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5]

Ms Wu Yan Yee, aged 28, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in May 2017. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Wu holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance Degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. Ms Wu had worked for an international accounting
firm and a reputable asset management company and has
experience in auditing, accounting, direct investment and asset
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
)

MR CHAN SHU KIN

PRAGTER R4

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUYHBITESE

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in September 2004. He
is also the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee. Mr Chan has over 42 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management
services. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, as well as an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (0850.HK) and
GTI Holdings Limited (3344.HK).
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MS WONG LAI KIN, ELSA
BEEBRLL

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUYFHITESE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5]

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2012. She is also a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong holds a Bachelor’s
Degree and a Master’s Degree in Law from The University of
Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a solicitor of
the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme Court of
England and Wales and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. Ms Wong has over 29 years of experience in the
legal profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed companies
(including the Company during the periods from February 1995
to January 2000 and from May 2003 to December 2007). Ms
Wong is currently employed as Vice President — Legal of
Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Prosperity Investment
Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
)

MR LEUNG CHUNG KI
RMERE

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUYHBITESE

Mr Leung Chung Ki, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in June
2018. He is also a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee. Mr Leung
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the De Paul University in the
United States of America. Mr Leung has over 20 years of
experience in banking industry. He is also an independent
non-executive director of China Dili Group (formerly known as
Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited) (1387.HK).
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MS YANG YAN

BEZL

Chief Representative — China
FHBEERFREEAKX —FEH

Ms Yang Yan, aged 51, joined the Group in 2003. She is
the Chief Representative of the Company in China and is
responsible for originating and monitoring the
performance of the Group’s investments in the Mainland,
and holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience in
corporate development and general administration and
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREIREZ

MR WONG YIU HUNG
ERERE

Chief Financial Officer
BEEHMEE

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 54, joined the Group in 2004.
He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and is
responsible for all financial management and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds directorship in a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management in both international accounting firms and
listed companies. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Chinese Law from Peking University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and a practising
certified public accountant in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE SUPPORT TEAM

EXRBEEX

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MR CHAN KAI KI
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM
Group Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH
Group Treasurer
INVESTMENT

MR ZHU YONG MING
Investment Director, China
INTERNAL CONTROL
MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control &
Risk Management & Corporate Compliance

INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG
Group Internal Audit Senior Manager
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MR WANG WEI GUO
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
Director and General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO Xl
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN
Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN KAl
Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR HUANG JIN HUA
Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY!1 Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders
of PYl and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2018
annual report which can be viewed on PYI’s website
(www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, PYI continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, the Managing Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PYI
(“Chairman’”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and
CEO with effect from 26 September 2011.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board” or the “Board of
Directors”) believes that it is appropriate and in the interests of
PYI for Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen to take up both roles at the
present stage as it helps to ensure consistent leadership within
the Group and enable more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board also believes that
the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals
with not less than half the number thereof being independent
non-executive directors.

In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to high
standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a Board
Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 50 of
this report, in June 2013.
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PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI
directors as well as relevant employees of PYI. After having
made specific enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of
PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2019.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code”) in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERLEE
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYI is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders Communication Policy setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investor community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for
PYI shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, PYI held one general
meeting. Voting on resolutions put forward at the general
meeting has been taken by way of poll and the poll results have
been published and posted on the websites of PYl and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). All resolutions
put to shareholders were passed at the said general meeting.
The resolutions and the percentage of votes cast in favour of
the resolutions are set out below:
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PYI’'S GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

RBE2019F3ANBLFERTHRERRAE

Annual General Meeting on 7 September 2018 % of Votes Cast For

R2018F9R7THETHWRREBF KRS EREHNE R

y* Approval of the 2018 audited accounts 98.97%
AA01I8F EMKEEZERE

v* Re-election of Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen as director 98.90%
BEIIEREERES

¥ Re-election of Mr Chan Shu Kin as director 98.89%
EERGMBRELERES

v Re-election of Mr Leung Chung Ki as director 98.97%

v’ Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 per
annum for all directors 98.97%
BRBGETEREFTLEBTHBIBETF400000ETHEEFHERSE

y* Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to
the Board to fix their remuneration 99.86%
BEZAZY - BER A SHAMTAREMEREEZRETHENE

¥’ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to issue shares 95.52%
BT EFRTRE 00— R R

y* Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to repurchase shares 99.99%
BRTEFOBEBRMN —RRERGRE

v’ Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 95.52%
BARTEFZRITROZIEN

Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PY! also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX’s website.

Our website is an effective means of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through our website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.
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At pages 70 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI's bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI's shareholders are entitled
to attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general
meetings. PYI’s shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general
meetings have the right to require a special general meeting to
be convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI’s shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated to the
Managing Director the day-to-day leadership and management
of the Group. The senior management of the Group, on the
other hand, is responsible for the management and
administrative functions and the day-to-day operations of the
Group under the supervision of the Managing Director. The
corporate governance structure of PY| as disclosed in this
report at page 44 shows the detailed relationship between the
Board, the Managing Director and the senior management as
well as other stakeholders.
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Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:

2019 Annual Report
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SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
EEREEERNAE

¥ Financial reporting and control
s mE REE

¥~ EqQuity fund raising
BAREE

v~ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions

BB RE A D IR EE TR

v Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the Securities and

Futures Ordinance

(EMRADPAA BT XM MEER S R(EFRBEMRMD AT ANRHEE

v Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group

BAREHIAGREENGBNEMEANE

Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 92 to 100 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of the Directors’ Report, there are 6 directors in
our Board consisting of 3 executive directors and 3 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors
represented not less than half of the Board members, thus
exhibiting a strong independent element which enhanced
independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EER

(as at the date of the Directors’ Report REE SR EEHH)

+ 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin s fs B2 52 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa B4+
Mr Leung Chung Ki Z2AZL 5 4

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board and senior management.

There was no change of directors and Board committee
members during the year ended 31 March 2019 except that (i)
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2018 and simultaneously ceased to be a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee; and (i) Mr Leung Chung Ki was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
with effect from 1 June 2018. Brief biographical details of each
director (including his/her age, gender, term of office,
professional qualification and experience) are set out on pages
33 to 38 of this annual report and also available on PYI’'s
website (www.pyicorp.com).

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx's website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

O resmeman 2o19¢$&v
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Executive Directors
HITES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R 54
(Chairman & Managing Director 3 #48%)
Mr Sue Ka Lok #5245 4

Ms Wu Yan Yee #ffiR& 4+
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Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PYI as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PYIl and its associated corporations, if
any, during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI's
directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYI
and its associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’
Report on pages 82 and 83 of this annual report.

Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in
June 2013. Under the policy:

(@ the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level
as an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b)  the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c) selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence
(if applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) setting out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination
to (i) the Board for appointment and (i) shareholders of the
Company for election as a director of the Company.

Under the Nomination Policy, the factors listed below will be
considered in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@ qualifications, professional experience, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

(b) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

(c) regulatory requirements for appointment of independent
non-executive directors and the independence criteria set
out in Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules; and

(d) diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The above factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee has the discretion to take into
account additional factors as it considers appropriate.

For filling a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations
for the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation.

On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee may
submit to the Board for consideration a proposal comprising,
inter alia, the personal profile of the proposed candidate, which
contains at least the candidate’s information required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules.

The Board shall be vested with power to make the final decision
on all matters relating to the recommendation of candidates (j)
for appointment and (i) for standing for election at a general
meeting as a director of the Company.
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Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year is
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 7 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained 95% while 95% attendance was also
recorded for Board committee meetings.

The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.
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Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at least
once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject to
re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following general
meeting after their appointment.

All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.

In the 2018 AGM, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, Mr Chan Shu Kin and
Mr Leung Chung Ki, who retired from office in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws, were re-elected as directors of PYI.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The retiring directors, being eligible, seek for re-election and
their respective biographies are set out in the circular for
re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PY!
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PY! of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYI on an ongoing and regular
basis.

This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY! operates businesses and
applicable guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities
and attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or
had been provided with materials of such seminars. Our
Hangzhou training centre is responsible for organising regular
internal training for management of the Group. In addition to
regular attendance at Board and Board committees meetings,
directors including independent non-executive directors have
participated in a field trip to Xiao Yangkou in October 2018.

All directors and senior management are required to provide
PY!I with their training records on an annual basis, and such
records are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular
review by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. The training records of the directors and senior
management for this year were reviewed by the Committee in
June 2019.
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According to the records, PY! directors received the following

training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision

A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors

E=s

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

O resmeman 2o19¢$&v

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEOWSE

REBERLE REEFRAFECEXTLAES
tHRAEFAG BERETZHEI KT
B(RESTRDZ TFRAHEX EABLIRZRTE

Type of Training
1% 31 8 5Bl

Attending internal and
external seminars or

Reading
materials

conferences
i E A R SR

B MERER

Mr Chan Shu Kin B2 A v ’
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & B8 4+ v 7
Mr Leung Chung Ki ZAZL 5 4 v v
Executive Directors

BITESE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 5 & %4 4 v v
Mr Sue Ka Lok #5245 4 7 v
Ms Wu Yan Yee & &+ v 7

Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PYI’s website
(www.pyicorp.com). A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including
independent board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve
projects as it deems necessary.

EERZEEE

AREHRERIREBRFSEAERRESMER
- EEREKRLABAEERZES B : B
ZEg FMEEe REZEEE BEEA
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All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same FFEESERZECERAMNAR LHEEERMER
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board WRR BN TEREBETZERINE

and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their TEBE ZEFRZEeHTHMESFREL
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to BE BRIAEEREZESTAELEERGIAM
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory PR T T RE VE L 2R o

restrictions on their ability to do so.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
REZ2019F3ANBLFERT2EHE I HELE

BOARD COMMITTEES
EERZEES
Corporate
Governance
and Share
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination Compliance Repurchase  Shareholders
EEERR
SR B M BE ER R EE [
Number of meetings held during the year
RERBTEBRY 7 3 4 2 3 0 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRI B2 5 & 6/7 3/3 4/4 2/2 3/3 0/0 11
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa ERBE 42+ /7 3/3 — 2/2 3/3 - 11

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —R 5 4

(resigned with effect from 1 June 2018

E2018%6 5 1H &EEHT) 1/2 0/0 1/2 01 0/0 - 0/0
Mr Leung Chung Ki AR 4 &

(appointed with effect from 1 June 2018

E2018%6 5 1 H #EEZT) 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/1 3/3 - 11
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen I /R4 77 — 4/4 2/2 — 0/0 11
Mr Sue Ka Lok #RZR4E5E £ 7/7 - - 2/2 — - 0N
Ms Wu Yan Yee #ifR#&G =2+ 7/7 — - - — — 11
Company Secretary
DNEAME

Mr Shing On Wai i & Bl 5E 4=

(resigned with effect from 16 April 2018

E2018%4 5 16 H#2E#(T) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 - 0/0
Mr Chan Kai Ki FR1E 8 5t &

(appointed with effect from 16 April 2018

E20184F4 5 16 H #EZ(T) 7/7 3/3 4/4 2/2 3/3 - 11
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EEEBHRSE
The following tables show the composition of the Board UTHERBERREZE201963A31H L FEH
committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary HMEERZEemdK EACEBE AT

and/or report of the works performed by them during the year ERZER SHRE
ended 31 March 2019:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FM=ES

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors + 1 Executive Director
A R BYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRi& B2 % & (Chairman % /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R4

Mr Leung Chung Ki AR %4

Role & Function* y* Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company
A6 e i 5 A R B A9 H B B R
v/ Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing a policy on such remuneration
HABEZESREEBRNFTINBREEE URAFIEZEFMB KR —ELERM
BEFERAENRERF RMEZFRIELES
v’ Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment
REXMEZREZENNTEEFLSREEBRNEEFMNEFE 2EEDHNE  RK
CHERMNLREECHR(BEANEAHIRIEABEXZEMENNEMHEES)
v/ Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

A EE BEZIFHITES BN

Summary of ¥y’ Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2018 AGM
work performed EREEHMATE HREE0ISFREBEF RS LA
ITHERE v’ Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior

Management for the year ended 31 March 2019
ZREMERBZE2019F3AN B LFEERRNEI LS RERBNEZENIER

¥’ Considered and approved the grant of additional incentive bonus
ZRRIER B RBRINAB L

v’ Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the remuneration package of a newly
appointed independent non-executive director
ERMNEZREZMEZANB IR TESNTHSGE

v~ Reviewed the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for the year
ended 31 March 2019
R BE LR REEENEB E2019F3A31 A LFENTBESR

v’ Approved the granting of discretionary year-end bonus for 2017 to Managing Director
BE & A1 48 £L X HH 2017 5F [E BV 15 F 4R FE AL

¥~ Approved salary increment of and grant of discretionary bonus to an executive director
BHEFrFA-—EBRTESFTOHF @ RAEKRERIBEAL

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.
* BRAE—HFIE - FBE R IR IS (www.pyicorp.com) 2 F BN E B S B EE E o
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, duties and responsibilities of a director, employment
conditions elsewhere and time committed by the director
concerned.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

V' equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in
light of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence
on the Group’s performance and share price.

PYI effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme and share financing plan as well as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

R B AW B BUR
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZ88

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors + 2 Executlve Directors

A R BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRI&ER S 4 (Chairman £ /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2= R 44
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 27+ Mr Sue Ka Lok &f 5 €45 4

Mr Leung Chung Ki AR %4

Role & Function* y* Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
A & B R educational background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service) of the Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes
ZELEBFERIEZRNERE - /\%{&;Ert( BEEBTRR Rl ik ‘Xrt&%ﬁzﬁfa"“
R EBR BEERTEREZELR Fig ABRREFEH) UHERMREEZSHRES
PR EZ

v’ Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships
%gﬂﬁéﬁ%ﬂ@é%@A%%E%%%rﬁé CRREXRMEERREEZEFAATLME
i

v Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors
B TEENE LML

v’ Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
the Managing Director
HREFZREHEHZE UREF(LHEHRFRFEL)ETHERNEZRRELES

v Develops, reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for
achieving and improving diversity on the Board
REBLRBUEEEFARESZ T FIF] BRI MREBAIEEEETEERERLEKN

v~ Develops and reviews the policy, criteria and procedures for identification, selection and
nomination of candidates for appointment as directors
FIFTRBAYE RERRZEEANBRECAEZZRE  ERIRERF

v Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out on
page 50)

REERNEZTABR(ERHEHINNES0R) HAITHER
v l\/lonltors the implementation of the Nomination Policy (a summary of which is set out on page 51)

ERRABRR(EBEEHIINFESI B)RITER

Summary of v Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2018 AGM
work performed 427 R (T8 £ 2018 F R A F A E L REIREF
THERE v’ Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of

independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
ERRARBLENTESRR(ETRRDESASGIT R IR FE B L MR K

v’ Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board

BHEFTRORE  ABKMAEK

Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy

BAEEZERXE L bR

¥’ Recommended to the Board for appointment of Mr Leung Chung Ki as an independent
non-executive director
HEESFREIRNRERERBIUIFNTES

y* Recommended to the Board for appointment of Mr Leung Chung Ki as a member of the Audit
Committee, the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

HEEERZIANALAAERZTEENE  tEXBTRAARETESEHKE REEE
ERERFMNEZELKE

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.
* BRE—FFHE  BAE EHANRER (www.pyicorp.com Z IZHE BB EHE -
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND R&REF - BREUKRZER|

CRITERIA
Nomination Committee Nomination Committee Nomination Committee The Board makes formal
makes recommendations identifies individuals selects or makes invitation to selected
to the Board on any suitably qualified to recommendations to the persons for appointment
proposed changes become directors Board on the selection of to the Board

persons nominated for
directorships

et % B et Ef#E REZESWEAKES REZESIEXME EERMEEA LD
EHRESRIEHEZE BERALTHEEZS EREhZHEER REEFMENBHBH
ALTHEES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

TtEERREREZES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors + Company Secretary
A8 R BIFHTES RRWE
Mr Chan Shu Kin [R5 E2 5t 4 (Chairman /&) Mr Chan Kai Ki FR1EEE 5 4

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa B E 4+
Mr Leung Chung Ki 2 HAEL 4 4

Role & Function* ¢y
AGHERBEE

v

Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board

HERBIAARARABNEEECBRRRER TREFHRLES

Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and
Senior Management

MO REREFHEHSREBENEIRFEEXER

Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and meets with the management of the Company to assess the Company’s
compliance policies, programs and procedures

R REEARAEETEZEREERT T ANBREER  WEARANHEREET
@ U ARANEHRBE  HERER

Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors of the Company

HE B EERRBEHEARARFAEEREFNEANTALENRERAFM(ANE)
Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential
compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
AER LA EMEEERNERZEESERNEMNERERNEEEREBR

Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
BAARRBEFCETRADAZCEEFADNBERREM(EEE RRE)ANKE
Reviews the Company’s compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report

BRAARREFETRADAZCGRE HEREBBRERIDHOBEARECERE R
ERBE)NNIEKE




P(l:) REEEER AR 2019 FR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
TCREEREREES

Summary of
work performed

THEBE

Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2018
HHEE2018F3 A1 B ILFE 2K EEB®WE)

Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries
ERARRIREFEFEZMNEARNEFEHER RS

Reviewed the report on recommendation of disclosure in the Directors’ Report (Business Review)
BEHNEHRREESRREE (EBER) AMERECRSE

Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training provided by each director
in compliance with the CG Code

ERRESRECESF2HBIICBRERE  UEBEF(RETRD

Reviewed the policy on disclosure and public relations

AR KA HEBERBUR

Reviewed the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2018
HHEE2018F3ABNBILEFREZ(RE - HtE@REBKRE)

Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy

R aT IR R GE A R

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval and adoption of the Nomination Policy
and the Dividend Policy

HERRAESDERIERARES TR KR EBUE

Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the revised terms of reference of various
Board committees

ERRMESRERNERKAZESTREZE G REITBESE

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for
further details.
* BRAE 15 BRE LN FER L (www.pyicorp.com Z D EEAREARZTE B ESE -

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE
BOEBESS

AN N NN

AN N NN

A

Composition Independent Non-Executive Director + 1 Executive Director
# R BIYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [R#&1ER % 4 (Chairman 7 /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R4
Role & Function* y” Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
AGHERBRE in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
BREB(ETHRAD REAANMBAUNARBREFRELZ TERRRTEETRELBEBRER
NN
Summary of v During the year, no Share Repurchase Committee meeting was held.
work performed REA TEAFABROHEBZESSH -
ITHERE
* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

- BRAE— ST FRE E &R ER U (www.pyicorp.com) Z R EIEZE B S BEHE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEREES

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors

#H R BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin” BR1g B2 £ & * (Chairman =% &)
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &4+
Mr Leung Chung Ki Z2HAE 54

Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.

! MRERELTRB—RAXGHE ERE SR BEERE T OERL LR -

Role & Function* y Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor

£ & BB e HEEIINEZBMRAESTHIRLES

Reviews the Group’s financial information

EHAEEPBER

Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
EEAEEVBESRGE BRREERAMEZERS

Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval
ERRXEERYAECH  BHAEETRRAMKPRE

Reviews financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors

EHMBERTNANEZEE XA AU B AW EBE R A2 BN 800 & A EBEa

D N N N

Rl HR 15 B 22
Report on work ¢ Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated
performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
TE®RSE EHARERECEZNTHGEMBRRRECEZNEREGANBERER TEZEER
BB

v’ Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
ERAEE AN REREIRESR

¥* Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group
ERLEHNASEMETHENANNESE RREERADESTENERRSE

v’ Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
BENEZBMBEZ A EBEE2018F3A AL FEREVBRERMEZNZHE

v’ Approved the engagement and the review fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the
review of the Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30

September 2018
BEZENIEZSMEERERANEBEZ=2018F9A30R LA A 2 B A B 15 3
RITEZENEHNE

v’ Reviewed connected transactions of the Group

ERAEECBERS
Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor
at 2018 AGM

BER0BEFRRABAFASLEFNLZEED s MERT SFHANTT AN S B INEZ ERD
¥ Met with external auditor in the absence of executive directors of the Company

ERBEARAATEZHESNBRT & LIS

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.
* BRE— G FRE LR E R (www.pyicorp.com) 2 B EZ B S BEEHE -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board considers that sound risk management and internal
control systems are vital to the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives and acknowledges its responsibility to
establish, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to achieve the following business
objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v" Reliability of financial reporting and non-financial reporting
v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aim to
provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has ongoing responsibilities to review the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to report to the Board.

2019 F#f
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The table below shows the roles of the key parties in our risk TEERTIETEABERMORRKRE R AL EE
management and internal control systems: BEGAMEENAE :
Board of Directors
BER
v" Sets strategic objectives v" Evaluates and determines the v" Provides direction on the
il € B g B 12 nature and extent for the Group’s importance of risk management
v" Oversees management in the principal risks and risk management culture
design, implementation and FEAEEMNEZRAR K HE FRBREEEZMHERE R
monitoring of the risk HUEEMEE AR T M

management and internal
control systems
EEEREYHRREELRAR
EEARHRT BRMER

Managing Director & Senior Management Audit Committee
BENBREEE BEREES
V' Assesses risks group-wide and develops v" Reviews the effectiveness of risk management
mitigating measures and internal control systems
R EE R A E TG E b A0S E R b B EREEMAITEZERGNE R
&R IE I
v" Designs, implements and monitors the risk Internal Audit
management and internal control systems ARy
AaP - BEMERERE EMARMEZERR V" Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
v" Provides confirmation on the effectiveness of risk effectiveness of risk management and internal
management and internal control systems to the control systems
EoEie] @F DIEHIE YEEREERYARERENABEEERY
HEBREEMASEZEZANEIERNESH 5 R0 B 4 5T
RHARE

Operation Management
EEEHEE
V" Implements and monitors the risk management and internal control procedures across business operations and

functional areas
ELERBEEKEENRENFINEREEMALEEREF
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Risk Management Framework B EEIESR
The diagram below shows the risk management framework TEERANEEREMAN RS IEEZE :

adopted by the Group:

Strategy FK#E

Risks are considered
when setting strategy.
Statement E 5l FE SRS I -
EE=E20f ERERREE -

Process &1

Vision

Identify Process applies standard
F a1l procedures, assessment
N tools and market practices.
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Risk assessment is performed to evaluate the nature and extent
of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment
process, the Group has identified principal and significant risks
facing the Group. The risks are prioritised according to the
likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of their impact
on the businesses of the Group. The risk assessment results
indicated limited changes in the nature and extent of the key
significant risks identified by the Group since last year.
Moreover, risk management measures are in place to manage
the risks to an acceptable level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group’s systems of internal control were developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 2013
and the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Business units are required to perform control self-assessments
annually to assess the effectiveness of their systems of internal
control. The control self-assessment performed is in the form of
a questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated
Framework. These five interrelated components are Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring.

During the year, the Internal Control, Legal and Finance &
Accounts Departments of PY| have carried out reviews on
operational, financial and compliance controls of all operating
subsidiaries to ensure their compliance with the Group’s risk
management and internal control policies and procedures and
the accuracy of relevant reports submitted to the Group.
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Every year the Internal Audit Department of PYI carries out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control according to
the approved three-year internal audit plan for the Group. This
audit plan was determined using a risk-based approach and is
re-assessed annually to ensure adequate audit resources are
deployed to achieve the objectives of the internal audit plan.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The PYI head office has conducted follow-up reviews
periodically to ensure remedial actions are taken on a timely
basis, and has reported the results of the follow-up reviews to
the Audit Committee.

The Board has assessed the scope and quality of the Group’s
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. Based on the results of the control self-assessments
performed by business units, the reviews performed by the
Internal Control, Legal and Finance & Accounts Departments
and the independent audits performed by the Internal Audit
Department, the Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems effective and adequate. The Board was
not aware of any significant areas of concerns that may affect
the Group to achieve its strategic goals.

Also, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget,
and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Procedures and Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Proper measures have been taken by the Group to comply with
the requirements under “Part XIVA — Disclosure of Inside
Information” of the Securities and Futures Ordinance to ensure
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information has been properly approved, and
disseminate in an effective and consistent manner. Such
measures include establishment of the inside information
identification, reporting, and disclosure protocol and
procedures. A review of the procedures and controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information was completed
by the Internal Audit Department in the second quarter of 2018.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important role
in the internal governance of the Group. With the assistance
from external internal audit consultant, the Internal Audit
Department is primarily responsible for conducting audit on the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and
internal control periodically.

The Internal Audit Department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing internal audit review. Moreover, the department
comprises well qualified and capable staff and is provided with
adequate resources to perform its duties.

Since 2008, internal audit assignments have been directed by
an internal audit strategic plan approved by the Audit
Committee. This strategic plan is developed by adopting
risk-based approach for every three years and reviewed
annually. In addition, ad hoc internal audit assignments will be
performed on request by the management or assigned by the
Audit Committee. In the past eleven years, the Internal Audit
Department has executed three three-year internal audit
strategic plans and the first two years of its fourth three-year
plan.

During the process of audits, the Internal Audit Department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations for
improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the ISO9001 certification for the Group’s corporate support
centre in Hangzhou that provides in-house legal, internal audit,
financial (including accounting data backup) and in-house
training services to the Group’s business units, the Internal
Audit Department has performed internal audit review for the
corporate support centre in compliance with the ISO9001
certification requirements.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as
the Company’s external auditor at 2018 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 20 June 2019 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2019 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENSENTREENKBRFRBBRENE

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$’'000

Services Rendered BHORE F#& T F T

Audit services B8RS 3,185 3,139

Non-audit services 4% HAR 5

Review of interim condensed consolidated EXNHHGRES

financial statements W Hm*k 1,235 1,154

Taxation advisory i 75 75 83 58

Special engagements FE L 12 2,022

Total Feg ] 4,515 6,373

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI
(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

No amendments have been made to the bye-laws of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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REEARER

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

EERUNEAREREARERE  WHH
BEREEBRRAR AR -

KR E
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bt %% A &

Event Date
R B &
2018 final results announced 22/06/2018
EM2018F REAE4E

2018 PYI AGM 07/09/2018
2018IRERERAF A

2019 interim results announced 23/11/2018
EH2019F R Bf 45

2019 final results announced 21/06/2019
B M2019F REAEE

2019 PYI AGM 05/09/2019

019RERRAFAE
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Shareholdings as recorded in PYI's register of members as at

31 March 2019 are as follows:

2019 F#f
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REEPZR

IR R

R2019F3A3IH BB EREREZM 2K

REFREWMT :

Approximate

Approximate

% of % of issued
No. of shareholders share capital
Size of registered shareholdings shareholders HEBRERHEE No.ofshares {HEBITRA
BHRBRRERE BRREB ZHBHE DL RGEA ZHBHNBE DL
500 or below AT 340 58.93% 43,642 0.00%
501 - 1,000 34 5.89% 25,355 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 110 19.06% 376,215 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 62 10.74% 2,235,127 0.04%
100,001 - 1,000,000 20 3.47% 5,695,560 0.10%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 8 1.39% 20,302,552 0.37%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 1 0.17% 11,259,933 0.20%
Above 100,000,000 A 2" 0.35% 5,479,642,188 99.28%
Total &5t 577 100.00% 5,519,580,572 100.00%
* The two shareholders were: ZWA R DB A
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited EARREE(REBA)BERAF
Clearing Participants/ rEsmE/

Custodian Participants AERLHEE 4,437,074,793 80.39%
Investor Participants KEEHEFPOFEA 44,896,638 0.81%
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EAEPREE

Company Limited AR AT 576 0.00%

4,481,972,007" 81.20%
2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 18.03%
5,477,011,076 99.23%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees

Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Shareholding
Search Report (the “CCASS Report”) available on the website of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The number of shares registered
in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the CCASS Report is different
from that shown on PYI’s register of members because some shares

withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been

re-registered.
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

Pyl ’) PY! Corporation Limited

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
on 21 September 1993.

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Board lot

Securities In Issue

Shares

As at 31 March 2019

As at 21 June 2019

498
PYW

2,000 shares

5,519,580,572 shares
5,519,580,572 shares
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

Total Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2019

As at 21 June 2019

Public Float Capitalisation*

As at 31 March 2019

As at 21 June 2019

HK$756 million
HK$624 million

HK$507 million
HK$418 million

The information disclosed under this section reflects the market value of

PYI shares held by PYI shareholders with the shareholdings held by the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the directors
of PYI being excluded.
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R2019F3 A31H
R2019F6 A21H
PRBREBRTE"

R2019F 3 31 H
R2019F6 A21H

(B GES)"

Share price (ex dividend)
AR E (2

7.5618 %8
6.24 275

5.07 {8
41818

rm r rmn

s
B

= Share price (cum dividend)*

Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI
shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
* BEES)REKREGE) RBRERGAEEE LTz B (1993F9 821 B) AR 2 R5HIRE Z &5

7T
7T
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7T
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2019 are set out in Note 54 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is set out on pages 10 to 32 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 101 of this annual report and in the

accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
declared during the year (2018: Nil).

The directors have resolved not to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of any final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Details of the distribution are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the revenue of the
Group. The five largest suppliers and the single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 27% and 20% of the
total purchases of the Group respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
close associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,139,967,000 with approximately HK$769,914,000
repayable on demand or within one year, approximately
HK$370,053,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank
balances and deposits as at 31 March 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$518,245,000. The Group’s current ratio
(calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 3.06 and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 0.26 as at 31 March 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$84,153,000
in respect of the construction of ports and approximately
HK$5,941,000 on the other property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$12,225,000
on investment properties. All investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period.

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a dividend policy with no pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. In considering payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient capital
reserves for future growth of the business of the Group and
allowing shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, the
following factors when considering the declaration and payment
of dividends:

(@)  the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

(b)  retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group;
(c) thelevel of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on
equity and the applicable financial covenants that may be

imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;
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()  general economic conditions, cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; and

(@ any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose
To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

(2) Participants
Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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(3) Total number of shares available for issue

(@

Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b)
below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
issued shares as of 1 September 2017, being
551,958,057 shares.

Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time.

As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 551,958,057 shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (that is, 5,519,580,572 shares)
on that date.
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(%)

(6)

(7)

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) (or his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) if the participant is a connected person
(as defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from
voting and provided that the Company shall issue a
circular to its shareholders before such approval is
sought, the Company may grant a participant
options which would exceed the aforesaid limit.

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (i) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.

(4)

(%)

(6)

(7)

GEBHALAZZRAEFR
FR2EATREMNI2EBHHEA
ERZERE(ERSITELEKRT
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(8) Basis of determining the subscription price 8 ETERBEZEZE
The subscription price shall be determined by the REEHESRAR L HBEBERE
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant HEENSET ETEERUATMH
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the FEZ2REE  ()VREBECET R B E
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible AHFZREE: MHARBRGD 2@
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the =

nominal value of the share of the Company.

(9) HEZENH

(99 Remaining life 2012F HE R R &8l 2 B M H B10
The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is F - B2012F 9108 A H - W5
10 years commencing from 10 September 2012 and R2022F9 A9 A [Eim °

will expire on 9 September 2022.
REE2019F3A31H L FE - R IK2012
Details of the movements in the share options, which were FERESERE 2EREZEEHEBN
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, during the T
year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the share options

REREETERSFROTZROHE
Lapsed during

Exercise price As at  the year ended As at
Grantee Date of grant per share 01.04.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 Exercise period
REBZE
31.03.2019
ARA RHBH BRITEE  701.04.2018 EEERY  731.03.2019 T
(Note fff:12)
(dd.mm.yyyy) HK$ (dd.mm.yyyy)
(B.5.%) BT (H.7.%)
Director
B
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - 29.06.2015-28.06.2018
2E R 29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - 29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 (15,000,000) — 29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Sub-total /Nt 45,000,000 (45,000,000) —
Employees 29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 (15,165,600) - 29.06.2015-28.06.2018
&8 29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 (15,165,600) - 29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 (15,165,600) - 29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Sub-total /]Nat 45,496,800 (45,496,800) -

Grand total # 5t 90,496,800 (90,496,800 -
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Notes:

1. All share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
were vested on the commencement date of each respective
exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or capitalisation issues or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled in
accordance with the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019.

2. Share Financing Plan

This share financing plan, adopted by the Company on 14
February 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares of
the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security, subject
always to connected transaction and other relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentive
Schemes”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result

in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

e

1. IRIE2012F WA IR 2 P A AR
ERESEMRBITEN 2HBAHERE -

2. BREZTEERSEHEER BARECHETR
ARBRAZEMECZEMELTE -

NEE201963A31B IEFE M &
FEAE BEAR IR 2012 F HE AR BE AT B 2 G SR
o TS RSN o

2. RiBES

2006 F2 A14 A B AR RN 2 A D
MEFSETTEERAT(BERAERZ
BE -ZEF EBRN - BHAARKEA)AL
THERMNEBRTRAARAIAEER
—RRAGBER  UBERRA 2 ER
7 ML EROERTARRQRERER
m- EEAFE(EMAIDBBEBER S R
HMEEGR2HE -

RER AEELERBEANFTERGER
ATREEFBHE -

A% ZE 9 5

BRI BB A& — S EEN RFR
HEFER ARAALET LK ERA AT LB
KA B BTN B KA R B ET AT A58 B
KA REE AR R EITID 2 e 2 R A i
1 &%
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$1,998,373,000 (2018: HK$2,085,964,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Chairman & Managing Director)
Sue Ka Lok
Wu Yan Yee

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa

Leung Chung Ki (appointed with effect from 1 June 2018)
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond (resigned with effect from 1 June 2018)

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEFREE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of each
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out below:

EEZBRBEY

BRASRETIRRBFRAE LREELZE
FWEEAEETIAEEAR -FRATATEDR
THRECEERERINHBERTRIEZRES
e

EERBSTBRAERKRD - HEA
BRORESHzEERAR

R2019F3AG8IH  ARAISEERE®ITH
ABRAQRRB ZBH EHEBAROPIFELERN
BIB(EHF KRB EGOI)EDGATUNETZ
&0 A SR R e T AR B M 8% 1 A< BT B
TAEZETEFRHNEETAD (R £
A MASTAE AR REERERSHAAE
PRAFI(TBERR]) 2w AR EHINWT :

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG HEARGEE

(Note ff:£1)
Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests  interests Total share capital
B B8 HEBITRA
THRAB®E g4 AR RKER DNREE HttEz BY ZHABEIL
(Note ff:%2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner and 14,672,605 — 498,223,308 — 512,895,913 9.29%

2= R interest of controlled  (Note f1i#3) (Note [if5t4)

corporation
BEmlEB AR

REEEER




Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares
as at 31 March 2019.

3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen (“Mr Lau”) comprised
14,672,605 shares.

4. Such interests were held by Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited (“Empire
City”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent
Limited (“Affluent Talent”)). As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by
Mr Lau, Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in these shares held by
Rally Praise.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2019, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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RARBED BB G G EAKXE -

2. AR 20194 3 A 31 H 25,519,580,572 i & A &) B 2
TTIRA BEAE -

3. ZEHIAmREE(BREDREZEZBRE
14,672,605 % f% 17 ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

TERR HtATZRBRAR

R2019F3A31H AR AEERERITH
ABFTA TEZERE HMATREARARRNG
REBROFRHELHERBE(ESRAER
BIYEEICIKAETHF 2 ERMRzER AR
LU

(1) Substantial shareholders (1) EERR
Number of  Approximate
shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held  share capital
BER®G S HEBTRE
REREB 514 HEARNHEE ZBMIBEIH
(Note fi{z£1)  (Note ff7%2)
PT International Development Interest of controlled corporation  1,305,311,695 23.65%
Corporation Limited Sy EEE
REBEBEZERLEZBR QA (Note B17£3)
Treasure Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation  1,305,311,695 23.65%
R EE kR
(Note [17+3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,305,311,695 23.65%
BB A

(Note f15%3)
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BHEAEA
(Note f15£5)
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(2) Other Persons (2 HtAx
Number of  Approximate
shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares share capital
Bid HEBRTERA
BRREE E8B 514 HEROHEE Z#8EsL
(Note fi{z£1)  (Note f172)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner 14,672,605 0.26%
ZlmR BB A
(Note [ffz+4)
Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEEERS
(Note [f17%5)
Affluent Talent Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEEER
(Note f17£5)
Empire City International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
ZEEEER
(Note [1z%5)
Rally Praise Limited Beneficial owner 498,223,308 9.03%
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Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares
as at 31 March 2019.

3. According to the disclosure forms filed on 26 May 2017, Hollyfield Group
Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Treasure Investment
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Investment”) (which was, in turn, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PT International Development Corporation
Limited (“PT International”)), owned 1,305,311,695 shares in the
Company. Accordingly, Treasure Investment and PT International were
deemed to be interested in the said 1,305,311,695 shares held by

Hollyfield.

4. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen (“Mr Lau”) comprised
14,672,605 shares.

5. Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Empire

City International Limited (“Empire City”) (which was, in turn, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited (“Affluent Talent”))
owned 498,223,308 shares in the Company. Accordingly, Empire City

and Affluent Talent were deemed to be interested in the said 498,223,308

shares held by Rally Praise. As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by Mr
Lau, Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Rally
Praise.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

Hiat -
1. EMARFRG KRG 2 RS ATAR -

2. LA 20199 3 A 31 H 25,519,580,572 i A& A &) B 3
TRABELE-

3. RIEN2017F5 8268 2 2 2 5 K 1% » Treasure
Investment Holdings Limited ([ Treasure Investment |
AREBRERCEARAAITREBER 22
BB AT 22 &M B 2 FHollyfield Group Limited
(THollyfield ]) # % 1,305,311,695 % 48 A &) & 15 o
# It » Treasure Investment & 1§ 12 B % #% 18 & 1
Hollyfield 5 & 2 b 3t 1,305,311,695 B% % {7 & A 1

Z5 o
fm

4. ZERARRAEALE(EEEDBEZREZBE
14,672,605 % B 17 °

5. Empire City International Limited ([ Empire City | -
/& Affluent Talent Limited ([ Affluent Talent|) Z & & Bt
B R Az % & W E R 7Raly Praise Limited ([Rally
Praise]) ¥ 5 498,223,308 % A&~ A 7] f% {5 o & It -
Empire City & Affluent Talent# 18 % 7 Rally Praise £
B2 £ ilt498,223, 3088 B D R A HE & o B R
Affluent Talent 21 £ 2 BB - BIEEHE AR
Rally Praise %8 2 % SR R A = o

B ECFTIRE E SN 201938318 » AR A
WAENESBTLHNBE(ES RBEKRAE
BBKRAETETFZARAIELMAZ AR F R
MDEEERGD 2 EMERIAR -

BYFHTESZHELK
AAFEBRESBUHATESRE(LTH

ADESABEMBEL CFEBIIEER K - AR
ARAEEBUFATEFHEBILAL -
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2019, the
Group employed a total of 1,343 (2018: 1,432) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group’s existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to
the merits, qualification and competence of the employees while
promotion and increments are based on performance of the
respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director concerned.

Further, the Company has implemented various share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff in both
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 58 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set
out in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to
69 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s performance in various environmental and
social aspects during the year is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which is available on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at least 25% (that is, the prescribed public float
applicable to the Company under the Listing Rules) of the
issued shares in the Company were held by the public as at the
date of this report.

2019 Annual Report
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20
AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2019, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as
defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31
March 2019, there was no guarantee given by the Group
for facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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FEEELLEZ8% -

R HTHBLARAZHMBEAMRER

MR201943 A3 A AEEKTHEBE R
AUR(ETRBNDEIBEZRATE) 2K E
Ba fIW A BECEmRAD)FE14.07(1)1&
iR EEELLX Z28% iR20194 3 A 31
H AEEMEREBBARNER ZRE
RHER-



WP{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2019 Annual Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXFREE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s bye-laws provides that the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any directors. A directors’
liability insurance is in place to protect the directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against
the directors.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$520,000 (2018: HK$500,000).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or
sale and for investment purposes are set out on page 288 of
the annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 22 May
2019, the Group had entered into a conditional agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of its entire investment of
51% equity interest in Yichang Port Group Limited. Details of
the event after the reporting period of the Group are set out in
Note 55 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEFzZREREKRX

ARRzARARETH  EFARARAZE
EXENESBERE AEFEZBBNITH
BEXBREBEREMEL  HEZEMER
ETERMBRARZZMBFRA BA K
B BAX BEREMAX AURULEERSR
XEMBE ARBERSETEBR T EE
MEFRBRD HEXE HFHATDHE
MeEE -EFEERBROEZ UREES
RRXAEREMELEZECEERRBEBTE -

B

RER KEEZEE R HEAMIB KA #520,000
7 7T (2018 : 500,000 7T) °

BIEEREL SEERIERERGBRZETEYME
HIBEHY N FIRFE288HE °
ABREHR2EE
RAREPRTEBHE  KEEBEKR2019F5 722
HE—ZBYE=HE Y BEER#E HEH
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AUDITOR % BAm

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor EHENZIEH MEalR A tMITARA
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company AIRBAMNBRERARAESETET M R
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming ZBERNERITIREBFRE LIER -
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board REEZEZER
Lau Tom Ko Yuen FEFEH
Chairman and Managing Director =Y

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019 &% 20196 A21H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZEEMHEESE

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 101 to
286, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BED

BREEMERQATEZBRR
(RERZZMHKZZBERRA)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
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FAREFLER

REBRMANFEXZHE BAREZZEASEMET
BRAMGEMBHRRTREZNFTE - LML
ERERBEAMBHRRNMA LK ER SRR
HEER MIAERBEFEREFERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNEEARERSER

Valuation of land being formed and formed land
classified as investment properties (the “Land Under
Development and Developed Land”)
FEEREYHEFREFLHRE FEL M ([HEFL
MREMZLH])BIEE

We identified the valuation of Land Under Development
and Developed Land as a key audit matter due to its
significance and the significant degrees of management
estimations involved in the valuation.
BMEOBRER T HREFAELHONGERT /AERE
EZER REARZMEBEARBEIREREE
BB IRE MGG -

As described in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2019, the Land Under
Development and Developed Land aggregately
amounted to approximately HK$1,055,193,000 with a
net increase in fair value of HK$33,085,000 recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2019, aggregately representing 13.8% of total
assets of the Group and 37.1% of profit before taxation
of the Group.

WA S B SRR M AR 19FT A - 201943 A31 8 -
HER LT RE ﬁﬂ%’éiﬁt & #£ %) /1,055,193,000 %
JC 133,085,000/ T A EBEEMFEEREE
20193 AR FENGRAERERPRER & H#
6 EEBERLEEMNI38%E EEERKRA N
37.1% °

We performed the following procedures in relation to
valuation of Land Under Development and Developed
Land:
ZMEsEER L REME LN HEERITU TR
% :

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competenoe, capabilities and objectivity;

e HMEBUAERZEXMGLEMNER I LETE
/|\ﬂ;_ :

° Discussed with the management and the valuer for
the latest updates in relevant property market, status
of investment properties and methodologies and
assumptions adopted in valuations;

e HERBELKGEMN®REBEDETSNETD
e %xﬁ%%ﬁ’]?lﬁ: EARETHRERIEANG ER

° Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations;

e RERMOMNBZLEBHEMBENYMET B RIRIE
HHAES FEERBRIMANATERES
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Key audit matter
BEREXRSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEEARELSER

In order to support their estimation, management took
reference to independent qualified professional
valuations in respect of all Land Under Development and
Developed Land situated in Jiangsu Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Management is
required to make estimates in certain inputs in
valuations. For determining fair values of Land Under
Development and Developed Land, it involves significant
judgment and estimations including valuation
methodology, saleable land discount on comparable
lands, certain costs to be expended for completion of
land development, etc.

AREXFHAELNGBS EEEC2ZEBEURPEA
RAMB((HEDIHEN DA LM REHE
THHBYEEREXGLE EREBRACETHER
HETHABBELGG REERER LM RERM
BrMORATVEER HESPABEERESE ATER
R THHOBBEEENE TR HAEMEENE
FRARFERNEE R H B R b e

Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended for completion of development by
reference to formed land;

° KZ2ELTVELM ZETKIMBAEMESNE
— ARSI

o Checked the validity and relevance of the
comparable samples used; and
s REMAVELBBEANAEREREHENT : &

° Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
valuations.
o HFHMEERNTEMREMERNE -



Key audit matter
BEREXRSE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEEARELSER

Assessment of net realisable value of stock of
properties
FEYEFENTEEFHE

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of
stock of properties situated in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC as a key audit matter due to its significance and the
significant degrees of management estimates involved in
the assessment.

BMPERSURPBRIGEMEFTEN A ZER FENG
BERBREZEFE RERZTIEBEANRNEY
RERIEENEREME -

As described in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2019, properties under
development for sale and completed properties held for
sale amounted to approximately HK$1,129,309,000 and
HK$427,555,000 respectively, aggregately representing
20.3% of total assets of the Group.

B AR S B R SRR MY 27 il - 20194 3A318 ¢
HHEERYERETIHELEMESNOAR
1,129,309,000/% 7T & 427,555,000/ 71 * A &£ &%
BB &EEM20.3% °

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties:
BMERMEFEENAERFENETERBEHITAT
B

° Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e MEBUGERZEEGLEMMNER EHILRETH
M

o Discussed with management and the valuer for the
latest updates in relevant property market and
methodologies and assumptions used to calculate
net realisable value of stock of properties;

e HERBERGEMAIREEVET SO ZFEE
R EMEGENAZRFEMANATERRR

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations; and

e REHRMOMBZLEBEMBOMETSRRIE
EHREE  FEERRITANTEREER : &

° Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
assessment made by management.
e HHEBEEMENGHTEELEMERM -
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Key audit matter
BEREXRSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEEARELSER

As described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in order to estimate the net realisable value
of stock of properties management took reference to the
information on fair value of market comparable samples
and adjustment factors on comparable samples from an
independent qualified professional valuer. The
assessment is dependent on certain key assumptions
that require subjective assumptions and significant
management estimates, including adjustment factors on
comparable samples used in valuation of properties
under development for sale and completed properties
held for sale and, further costs to be expended for the
development of properties under development for sale
and discount rate used in net present value calculation
of stock of properties.

WM E M mAM T4 RV EFENAE
RFE BEEC2ZRBUGEARISEMEMD AN
TSR ELBERAN R FEEEHN RATE L BERD
HEREZ - TEEBRERTBBRINERERER
FTHETHREESR BRETHEEEEDERE T
ITHELEMELEMBASLEERANFAREE
ANERAEREEERMEREENE PR ERARE
MECEREFEMARBIE-

We further performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of the net realisable value
of stock of properties that are under development for sale:
HMPEE—PRHEEERYEFTENAERFENE
BEFERITUATER:

° Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended by reference to completed properties;

° KR2EERIMERENEENE —TKEANE
2%

° Checked the validity and relevance of the market
comparable samples used in valuation; and

s REETHERMAMSAELREANE XM
RN &

° Checked market data to assess the appropriateness
of discount rate.
s REMBEBUNMHUBREXRNEEML -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

BIZHEIRES
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BB ERGREMBRRNELE
BB BRARREREMNS LEEAME
BRESTEEMRRFRERMERNEAR
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BAREBEEZEEFENETERNITEZ —
EEREXAE EEEFEZAETRERR
BEREE - R :

o HAERFEEEVHHRRBNKEFRER
MEWNEANEHRER  HEELARRK
AERTECER BEBSARLKEENE

ZEBER/BRMNE ﬁhf%w m%m&
BRERBE FE HBER REM
PRt 30% B N BB IR ] I%*méﬁm%

KR E K 5 R B L R BE B3R 0 B AR
MEHMEBEAHERARES -

THREEZEBAORIIES - AZEE
MEZER BT EE Em.mﬁ
AR ERIEERER -

e HEFMAESHHERELRE URESM
EHEMEFHmEMNEREESLAHE -



mt) REEEER AR 2019 FR

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2019

2019 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

fme IR IR
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FET FHET
Revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries 7< A 7 & H Bt B 2 7 2 WA 7 628,368 624,400
Gross proceeds from securities trading of AR REMB AR ZES
the Company and its subsidiaries BEEMSRIBELE 7 126,000 59,041
Share of revenue of associates and joint HBEBEARRAELE Y
ventures A 7 4,556,237 3,641,620
5,310,605 4,325,061
Group revenue EENL PN
Sales and services income fHE M ARG WA 6 551,878 577,624
Interest income B WA 6 65,797 34,974
Property rental and dividend income MERE RIRBEWA 6 10,693 11,802
628,368 624,400
Cost of sales 55 AR (419,649) (428,301)
Gross profit EF 208,719 196,099
Other income Hablg A 8 7,728 8,826
Administrative expenses ﬁ HE A (140,776) (145,548)
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEEER (54,147) (120,139)
Other gains and losses Hihs LEE 9 40,204 33,070
Other expenses HiEH 10 (33,360) (33,709)
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) on TENE E 2R EEE#EE
financial assets (MR 11 20,113 (52,874)
Finance costs B & P AN 12 (32,007) (53,455)
Gain on disposal of an associate HeE—-EEE AT 2 s 44 — 847,628
Impairment loss on property, plant and Vs - e N R E 2 RE
equipment Eia 18 - (148,049)
Net gain on fair value changes of investment IR E&ME N FBEEH 2
properties W5 19 38,718 127,759
Share of results of associates 15 B % NEEE 33,215 52,183
Share of results of joint ventures BiEeehEEEE 677 2,429
Profit before taxation 4 5 A g 14 89,084 714,220
Taxation BIE 15 (24,728) (212,461)
Profit for the year FE A 64,356 501,759
Profit for the year attributable to: IWTALTEIEFEERT
Owners of the Company EiN/NSIEZF DN 49,208 477,390
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS 15,148 24,369
64,356 501,759
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share % &2 F 17
Basic earnings per share % B 7K 2 F| 0.009 0.088
Diluted earnings per share % g & 5 N/A RE A 0.088
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ENEAER

For the year ended 31 March 2019

EHZE2019F3A31HILFE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit for the year F & A 64,356 501,759
Other comprehensive (expense) income Htt2mH (%) =
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ¥ T2 E# 5 G852 .2 B H
Change in carrying amount of investmentsin =~ # = T E#&R & 7 REE &
equity instruments (60,960) (60,352)
Iltems that may be subsequently reclassifiedto FIREEE#H S B FE»ZHH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from translation BREBINEBMEEZ
of foreign operations e N ZE 5 (177,197) 249,318
Share of exchange differences of associates BEBERAIMNEELEYZ
and joint ventures EHZER (24,961) 100,740
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HE—RMBERARZEFHE
an associate B - (126,471)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for FEEMET(FEZ) W
the year (263,118) 163,235
Total comprehensive (expense) income for FE2E (M%) RRERE
the year (198,762) 664,994
Total comprehensive (expense) income for UTATEEFEE2E(FX)
the year attributable to: Was 4258
Owners of the Company KAGHEA A (161,390) 561,367
Non-controlling interests JEPE R RS (37,372) 103,627
(198,762) 664,994
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fno BRI

At 31 March 2019
MH2019F3A31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
M 5E FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W N ERE 18 1,308,915 1,358,358
Investment properties wEYE 19 1,324,481 1,350,540
Project under development BEPIBH 20 175,428 186,297
Prepaid lease payments JEFERIEA 21 302,131 342,192
Other intangible assets HihmpaE 22 7,004 8,460
Interests in associates B 2 N R RERS 23 654,591 734,328
Interests in joint ventures SEDERZ 24 118,446 96,201
Investments in equity instruments BMETARSE 25 375,845 436,826
Other non-current assets HMIERESEE 26 84,050 91,232
4,350,891 4,604,434
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments AN E FIE 21 4,180 4,766
Stock of properties MERE 27 1,556,864 1,627,256
Inventories of finished goods BREE 12,631 11,384
Loans receivable EWE = 28 230,322 372,700
Amounts due from associates JE U B & N B R IE 29 70,721 79,710
Amount due from a joint venture R —REEEDERE 37 4,839 7,619
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B KEMEWER 314
prepayments K FRIE 30 310,609 265,108
Investments in debt instruments held for BIrEEEKITAKE
trading 31 299,241 320,174
Investments in equity instruments held for BIrEEEaR T AKE
trading 32 309,950 35,964
Other financial asset HemiEE 33 - 183,539
Pledged bank deposits BEEIFIRITHER 34 117 30,557
Short term bank deposits FEHEISRITIER 34 137,507 248,276
Bank balances and cash WITHEGE AR 34 380,621 327,847
3,317,602 3,514,900
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other creditors and accrued B NEMENMEDT R
expenses Bt X 35 298,733 286,364
Contract liabilities EHEaE 4,055 —
Amount due to an associate FE S — R & A A 5k IE 36 - 17,400
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE IEIE PR FEZS TR 1B 38 95,683 2,478
Taxation payable FERFLIE 10,302 11,965
Bank and other borrowings — due within —FRBNEZRITR
one year H & 5% 39 674,231 536,235
1,083,004 854,442
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,234,598 2,660,458
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERARBARG
LIABILITIES 6,585,489 7,264,892
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RS FINRR

At 31 March 2019
201993 A31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 3 FER FAT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE

Bank and other borrowings — due after —FRRINBPIRITR

one year H b &5 39 370,053 606,432
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE AT FE 4% IR AR 2 BN IE 38 - 101,611
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 40 810,269 843,707
Deferred income I FE W A 41 76,092 77,925
Other payables H i FE (BRX 35 19,499 22,425
1,275,913 1,652,100
5,309,576 5,612,792

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital % 7 42 551,958 551,958
Reserves H1E 3,894,136 4,159,856
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Zx X Bl # B A 2 FE(5 # 25 4,446,094 4,711,814
Non-controlling interests eI AR HE 2 54(b) 863,482 900,978
TOTAL EQUITY 42 5,309,576 5,612,792

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 286
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
ZgR

Chairman and Managing Director

FIERBEH

Sue Ka Lok

B gt

Executive Director

HITEF

HNE101 22868 2 in A B IE TR R E R 20194F
CAIEBESEERZERKETIR  TH T
EERREZHEE:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SER#IHR

'IT\
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE2019F3A31BLFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
AARBEBEAZEERESR
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
RE ARG XA FER
BE ROHE EXREE EMfHE HEHEE FERE ELRE REEAN Nt R ERAR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FiEx TiEx FTEL TEx THT TEL FiEx TER oL TARn
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 818 458,741 495540  (95,368)  (207,345) 86,956 5,639 62,629 3,202,482 4,009,174 799,432 4,808,606
Exchange differences arising ~ F#AE B0 £ T E
from translation of foreign EZERZES
operations - - — - - — 170,000 — 170,000 79,318 249,318
Share of exchange differences B /FH & A8 A %
of associates and joint rEZER % &
ventures — — — — — — 100,740 — 100,740 — 100,740
Reclassification adjustment on & — #4272
disposal of an associate BNOERE - - - - - - (126,471) - (126,471) - (126471)
Changein carryingamountof  E# T AR E 7 BME
investments in equity BEEE
instruments - - — (60,292) - - - — (60,292) (60) (60,352
Profit for the year FEEHF - - - - - - — 477390 477,390 24,369 501,759
Total comprehensive income  EE2E K% (H%)
(expense) for the year L] - - - (60292) - — 144260 477390 561367 103,627 664,994
Release upon lapse of vested 2 53 /B B I% 12 o5 2 B
options AR - - - - - (2,222 - 2,000 - - -
Share of other reserves of BUEMANRZEM
associates G - - - - (680) - - - (680) - (680)
Issug of shares under share 1R 15 B8 Bk i 1 813847
option scheme & 1,670 1,406 - - - (364) - - 2,712 - 2,712
Issue of placing shares BOREERD 91,547 51,266 - - - - - — 142,813 — 142,813
Transaction costs attributable %472 & & {n FE 15
to issue of placing shares PN - (3,701) - - - - - - (3,701) - (8,701)
Disposal of an associate HE—HEE AR
(Note 44) (B} i44) - - - —  (30,345) - - 30345 - - -
Disposal of investments in HEEXTARE
equity instruments — - — 11,087 - - - (11,087) — - -
Recognition of equity-settled & # 3% i 4 4 & LA RS
share-based payment BEFARERL
expense - - - - - 129 - - 129 - 129
Transfer of reserves of BRMBARHRE
subsidiaries - — - - 2,752 — — (2,752) - - —
Dividend distributed to AEERBSE DR
non-controlling interests (8] - - - - - - - - - (2,081)  (2,081)
At 31 March 2018 R201843A31H 551,958 544511  (95,368)  (256,550) 58,683 3,182 206,798 3,698,600 4,711,814 900,978 5,612,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ReEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AARBEBEAZEERESR
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
RE ARG XA FER
BE ROHE EXREE EMfHE HEHEE FERE ELRE REEAN Nt R ERAR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FiEx TiEx FTEL TEx THT TEL FiEx TER oL TARn
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 A1H 551,958 544,511  (95,368)  (256,550) 58,683 3,182 206,798 3,698,600 4,711,814 900,978 5,612,792
Change in accounting policies & T % &
(Note 2) (Hat2) - - - - - - 16 (104,346)  (104,330) —  (104,330)
Restated balance at R2018F4 /11
1 April 2018 BEI 2% 551,958 544,511  (95,368)  (256,550) 58,683 3,182 206,814 3,594,254 4,607,484 900,978 5,508,462
Exchange differences arising BERNEBT
from translation of foreign EECERESE
operations - - - - - — (124677) —  (124677) (52,5200 (177,197)
Share of exchange differences #/{HBE N LA %
of associates and joint rEZERES
ventures — — — — — - (24,961) — (24,961) —  (24,961)
Change in carrying amount of  ### T EIKE 2
investments in equity REEZSY
instruments - - —  (60,960) - - - —  (60,960) —  (80,960)
Profit for the year FERF - - - — - - — 49,208 49,208 15,148 64,356
Total comprehensive (expense) & & 2 (5 %) &
income for the year BE - - - (60,960) - — (149638 49208 (161390) (37,372 (198,762)
Release upon lapse of vested T 57 8 B IR 18 K B
options A - - - - - (3,182) - 3,182 - - -
Transfer of reserves of BREWBARZEE
subsidiaries — — - — 1,662 — — (1,662) — — —
Dividend distributed to AHEERES DR
non-controlling interests ¥ - - — - - — — — - (124) (124)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 A31H 551,958 544,511  (95,368)  (317,510) 60,345 — 57,176 3,644,982 4,446,094 863,482 5,309,576

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and
liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in
subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be
charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier.

The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in

carrying amount of investments in equity instruments designated

as fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

since its initial recognition.

Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the
appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of

subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other

reserves of associates and joint ventures.

BEARBEREASEMEBHBAR 2B
BECHBAEERABEZAFEBEAREER
CEB FHRZBEARLEMNBARZRAR
HRAEEURFERE)RBRE GNP -

REEEFHBEANIHRBRETR/EATLE
ExAREtezmlas((RAFEESAEME
HREDOESTEREZE@EZS -

Hit B ERHERBEFEARKMBE(HED
ERBER BRI Z B R EZ RS NIR
ETHOIBIBAERE  RBEBERARA
BhRZHEMRERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
roRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE2019F3A31BLFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before taxation R B4 A A 89,084 714,220
Adjustments for: B YIIE BT B
Finance costs RE A 32,007 53,455
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and BEY % W R EE
equipment (Yez) E18 (2,471) 328
Share of results of associates {5 B % UNEIE$ (33,215) (52,183)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEELEER (677) (2,429
Release of prepaid lease payments A ﬁ HERIE 5,151 5,606
Amortisation of other intangible assets EmEREEEE 986 33,205
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M MW R EEZITE 50,234 88,164
Share-based payment expense LARR 9 2 7 3018 2 32 - 129
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of investments in b f’F BEEE ﬁ% TA®REZ
debt instruments held for trading AN EEEZHEE (W) 11,633 (2,355)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments EFEMNHEEREBE 2R (44,121) (60)
Net unrealised exchange loss (gain) ﬂi BINIE H 18 () F 58 9,764 (31,024)
Gain on disposal of investment properties BEEREDEZ Kz (2,155) (597)
Impairment loss on property, plant and L E Y TN K
equipment 518 18 - 148,049
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HBE ARz WS 44 - (847,628)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of investments in HEEERSTAKEZ
equity instruments held for trading NFBEEZS (R BB (311) 8,350
Gain on change in fair value of other financial asset HthemEEs A FEE
BB UL 25 (12,461) (8,539)
Net gain on fair value changes of investment ®& % ENFEEZESHZ
properties Wz F 58 19 (38,718) (127,759)
Bank and other interest income RIT R E A A B UWA (3,343) (4,910)
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised on loans JERE R 2 mERE (BE)
receivable R (20,429) 21,000
Impairment loss recognised on amounts due from FE U Bt & R R SRIB 2 RVE
associates EEER 275 -
Impairment loss recognised on trade and other B kE ‘rHlJ?E W BR 3k 2 R B
receivables 3] BHER 4 31,874
Dividend income from investment in an equity BETEREZERERA
instrument (919) -
Operating cash flows before movements in working R BEECE R 2K E
capital EBReNE 40,355 26,896
Increase in stock of properties L/EXER- Sl (14,631) (9,539)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable U E ZOR A (38 ) 155,000 (831,600)
(Increase) decrease in inventories of finished goods EmFE (g m) R (1,911) 14,306
Increase in trade and other debtors, deposits and B REMEBWER -FT&€ &
prepayments T8 5 3008 1 jJD (56,030) (13,987)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from associates FE UG B 4%\ B 2R0E ﬂ A (1) 2,589 (4,062)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture B —MEE & ERIAL I - (7)
(Increase) decrease in investments in equity instruments 5 {FE ZE#z T A & & (1)
held for trading VR (273,675) 8,080
Decrease (increase) in investments in debt instruments  #F/EE E& K T ERE R/ D
held for trading (3% hn) 9,300 (317,819)
Decrease (increase) in other financial asset Hivo & ER D (8 h0) 196,000 (175,000)
Increase in trade and other creditors and accrued 2 5 R H b B BR R R pEE
expenses fl 2 38 hn 58,306 34,758
Decrease in contract liabilities SN OR=NE -0 (3,147) —
Decrease in amount due to a joint venture JE—FA &S EFER D - (254)
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE 1< B *é UNSIE Qb 20 (17,400) (7,354)
Cash generated from (used in) operations KEER)K&E RS 94,756 (775,582)
Income tax paid, net BEREHIE - F58 (10,138) (11,179)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTVITES R B (AR) K& ZEH 2R &
SEE 84,618 (786,757)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o v —}
i vT\% IE %;ﬁg i%
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE2019F3A31ALLFE
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
b FET FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment in relation to property, plant and equipment B R % - M R R E 2 H R (105,382) (116,549)
Acquisition of interests in joint ventures WEe & hEER (27,175) —
Additions to investment properties AWM (7,304) (3,071)
Increase in pledged bank deposits 2 4K 38R 17 17 3048 0 (117) (30,557)
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments BEBMNEEREBMEKIEA 56,740 125
Release of pledged bank deposits FABEEARITER 30,557 113
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and BEEME B NMRERS

equipment RIE 12,742 4,008

Repayment from (advance to) an associate — FE Bt 2 A) I8 3R (1A — R B

ISNEIEZE ) 5,000 (43,000)
Bank and other interest income received B U8R 1T R E Ath F1B A 3,303 4,933
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties BEEREYEMEHIE 2,872 773
Repayment from (advance to) joint ventures EEPEER(MELEDRE

230 2,334 (7,435)
Dividend received from investment in an equity PEFZTAEKERE

instrument 919 —

Net proceeds from disposal of an associate & — B H & QR P15 3RIB

R 44 - 1,735,150
Dividend received from an associate 2 —EEE R FRE - 16,061
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments HEESTAMSHRE — 2,000
Additions to equity instruments R T AN — (47,319)
Additions to prepaid lease payments TEAT R & FRIELE N - (7,834)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTMITIES (AR RBREZEH2HS

EEE (25,511) 1,507,398
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEE S
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMER (923,190) (2,048,578)
Interest paid B F B (53,175) (81,344)
Repayment of amounts due to non-controlling interests 12 i &~ JE 1% IR 4 25 7 3018 (2,334) (2,478)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of BB AR FEERER

subsidiaries g (124) (2,081)
New bank and other borrowings raised FTIGERAT I H B R 880,202 1,334,963
Proceeds from issue of placing shares BT S R DT 15 RIA - 142,813
Proceeds from issue of shares under share option BIEEREAZBTRO S

scheme RIE - 2,712
Repayment of advance from an associate EE-—EBEQAER - (12,014)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of placing shares 2% 77 Bt & I% (7 & 15 32 5 B & — (3,701)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ARREETBS RS EE (98,621) (669,708)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRHEBESEEEE (RD)

EQUIVALENTS 3 hnE &8 (39,514) 50,933
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES /M E RN # % (18,481) 25,540
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT ReRBEREZEEEEEA

FORWARD 576,123 499,650
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD & RER S LS HER L HE 518,128 576,123
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASHAND CASH RE&RERESZEIEE

EQUIVALENTS HER D AT
Short term bank deposits BHRTER 137,507 248,276
Bank balances and cash WITHEGFERS 380,621 327,847

518,128 576,123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in Note 54.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 (2014)  Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)- Foreign Currency Transactions and

Interpretation 22 Advance Consideration
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendmentsto  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts
Amendmentsto  As part of the Annual Improvements
HKAS 28 to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to  Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

=RUECE e

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

At

REEEERATN (AR ETRER
MR IAEHREERAA ERHESS
BARSHERRDE (BRI L&
ARZEMHEEURAEEE R BB
AR R A AR — R B -

BAMBRRUBT(ETD 25 B
MAKRRE 2 & -

ARBR/—EHREEKRAR - EEX 2K B
NECBERANRAELCEZEBHBH
I B RE 54

FE R ¥ E] R AR E] B R BB R
ERA(TEEMBREER D

RAFEERN NEEERERAETLEES
g ((EEGMOE]) B2 TH
RIREETEAM B RE R MR

\:

BEEMBREELER S@IA
F 95 (20144

BBV BRELR ZREEPEHZ
F155% WA K AHEEEET

HEA(BEBRYBRE INERFHRBER
“mEZEE®)—2 RAE

BE 0%
ESTBEBELD RN HEZ
Fo8R (KIEET) RBZNBERETE

BEVBHREREL RAZTBEYBRS
FE45E (EER]) HERIE4FRRE
ME—HEMER
M HEERFE

HemT A
EE SR ZE 285 2014-20164F 18 Hf
(&1E8E]) BBV REER

FRBEZ —#D
BB ERTERFEI0N BEEEME
(& 1&37])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 (2014)
“Financial Instruments” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 (2014)
introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities in
addition to those relating to classification and
measurement of financial assets covered in HKFRS 9 (2009)
which have been early adopted by the Group with 1 April
2014 as its date of initial application (i.e. the date on which
the Group has reassessed the classification of its financial
assets in accordance with requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009));
2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets; and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 (2014) in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9 (2014), i.e.
applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment) retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKFRS 9 (2009) “Financial Instruments”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
(2014) are disclosed in Note 3.

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%ﬁ)—ﬁﬂ([%iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁ%iﬁﬁuj)
&

BTXAEN RAFERBEETR
MRS LR RBHAKRERAFE
FBEFENTBRBARRR R LZEF
REMBHRRMBERBELBEERTE -

21 EBUKREERFEIR
(2014F) (€@ T A |

RAFEE AEBECERAESVBREE
B9k (2014F) (¢ M T A REHMA
B EERERE 2 AEIEE] - BB
M ELBFINE (2014F) 1) S REE
kemaBzrEkitE2(BRAEEDIR
BERH 2 BB IR E 2R F 95 (2009
FISREREEZDBERFEZHREIN
(B pEMRBE A2014F4818 BIA
S EIREE BV KRS %A F 99 (2009
FIENTEESREESEZHE) 2)
CREECEHEEEB(ENREESD
B R3)—MEFFESIAFTBE -

REBBRBEBN B @EERFEINR (2014
FIMBzBEGRXERS SN BHREE
BIZE957 (2014 4F) - B ¥2018F4 3180 (&
RERBE) BMARKIERR 2 TEEBAE
BofERkiEHRTE(BERE)  BIEE
ER2018F4A1EBRIBRZTEER
BB T -R2018F3A3TH ZREE M
MR2018F4 1R IREE M E8E ¥
FNRBEFER UEBINLERER -

Eit B FHEER RN BIRERSE
3RS ERF 95 (2000F )[4/t T B |/R
B L E R E -

& e & B B R 3Rk & E B B 99 (2014 )
MEEZ ST RERAMFEIHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (2014)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 (2014) simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for
all trade debtors. To measure the ECL, trade debtors with
significant or credit-impaired balances are individually
assessed and the others are collectively assessed based
on shared credit risk characteristics.

Except for those which had been determined as
credit-impaired, ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis
as there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, except for certain other debtors
and a loan receivable which are measured on lifetime ECL
basis as those credit risk had increased significantly since
initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance of
HK$10,732,000 in aggregate for amounts due from
associates, trade and other debtors and loans receivable
has been recognised against retained profits.

fne MBI RMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

21 BERVBHREERFIR
(2014F)[£® T A 1(#&)

BEAEREEBHBHR&ER EIH
(2014 F) ELE W EHE
BHMEEBEEXT Z2RE
AEEEBEBEMBEHRE LR FHR (2014
FIBETAAEREEZRRERZTA
HEEBE MER2HPENEEERR-
F%ﬁii‘ﬁﬁmmﬁféﬂg BERREEREZ
HHRWERRGEHRDETHENFG  MHE
ﬁﬂféi%ﬂ’éuﬂzﬁﬁ KRR KA E R R EE
TR -

BRIERSEEREIEE  Ht i #HEK
$J52iﬂ§?2ﬁ%h§ﬁﬁ&mﬂ
AEHEEER(2EAEREERE]D
A ARV EAAREERR I &KX
BR300 - M L E b FE MR BR AR B — TR R MK
EREB YL HRIARZ(EE R R ARG
mimR = MEREERBEITER -

EA2018¢4H1E B s A P B E
g 2 W/NC] - B 5 R A FE YRR 5K A
REWRE TJME BN EEBERES K
10,732,000/ 7T °
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Mo R EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (2014) (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

All'loss allowances for financial assets including amounts
due from associates, trade and other debtors and loans
receivable as at 31 March 2018 reconciled to the opening
loss allowances as at 1 April 2018 are as follows:

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

21 BERVBHREERFIR
(2014F)[£® T A 1(#&)

EXREREBHBEREERFIR
(2014 F) EXHIZEHE ()
BHEEEEEXT 2RE (&)
2018F3A31H & @ & &= (& 15 FE Y i
ERFINIE B 5 & H M FE R KA & E
WER) ZFEBEBREEHEER2018F4 A 1
BzFUEBBRBEZHENT

Amounts Trade
due from and other Loans
associates debtors receivable
FE e B EZRHAM
REHRE FE W BR X FEWE X
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET FAET
At 31 March 2018— M2018F3 H31H —
HKFRS 9 (2009) AV B HRE £
££95% (20094F) — 37,092 21,000
Amounts remeasured through BEBRFVREB RFNEF
opening retained profits HFEzeE 1,125 1,800 7,807
At 1 April 2018 M2018F4 H1H 1,125 38,892 28,807

Interests in associates

The initial application of HKFRS 9 (2014) resulted in a
decrease in the carrying amount of interests in associates
of HK$9,869,000 with corresponding adjustment to
retained profits, caused by provision of ECL.

B A TR

BRERE AN RS ERE95% (2014
F)EYBE R FHERBEHRE
B 85 18 B 5 08 £ 9,869,000 7T+ I AR B
St R VE L AR R EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenuge”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
“Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 and information about the Group’s performance
obligations are disclosed in Notes 3 and 6 respectively.

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

22 BERUBHREEF155R R
BHEFEHZKA

AEBERAFEERERBEEMBRE
ERFE55 - BEP B WS ERF155FM
REBGAERNEIBRIKRALl - BEES
ZAFREESOIRAMRE -

AEBECBPERE SV REERFE5
S M EAZER B EARY)
S EABHRISFL4A1H)ER R
HSEAAHZAMNEZEE RN ENRE S
MRz EMINER TEEILEE
e SHN BIBBH BV RS LRI FE155%
ZBEEN  AEEDREEEN2018F
AR1AEMARTRZELBPERZER -
Eit - B THREALTELE - ALt
REMDIBRBEE B G ERIE 185 U A
REBGHEUNSZRIRESH]IUARME
RERR -

AERBEAMBHRELEANFIGHEMELEZ
SHBRERERAEBENEETZERD
PP B FE3 M B4 B% o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHIREEITEBUBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEER(EBMBHREER]D
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
22 EBUBBREEREASRK K
2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with HEEFSHZWAIE)
L] H
Customers” (Continued) B E RSB RN E R E
Summary of effects arising from initial application FEHEERE
of HKFRS 15 BRERBEMBRERENFE 1R EHE
The initial application of HKFRS 15 resulted in a decrease & ) 2= AR T B R 42 83,729,0000% T
in the carrying amount of interests in associates of 18 J/& F8 #£83,745,000% 7T } 16,000 7T 2
HK$83,729,000 with corresponding adjustments charged DR EREEF NG BT AEH -
to retained profits by HK$83,745,000 and credited to
translation reserve by HK$16,000 respectively. R2018FA4A1BEAM B KA R HER
ZEBOIETIFHE- ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’iuﬂixﬁ%ﬁ
The following adjustments were made to the amounts FEEE 2 MHIBR -
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement 1 April 2018*
R2018F
4R81H
REEHE
5B FT 2 ] BB EmE
20185 ZRIE15%
3A31H FFEZ
ZEREE BENOH BEXTE REE*
notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 TAET FAT FAT FAT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interests in associates B & N Tl HE (a) 734,328 - (83,729) 650,599
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and other creditors & 5 & H 41 & < 85
and accrued expenses 3 K BB Sz () 286,364 (7,648) - 278,716
Contract liabilities BHBE (b) — 7,648 - 7,648
Capital and reserves B X E G
Retained profits R % T (@) 3,698,600 — (83,745) 3,614,855
Translation reserve bE 5 (a) 206,798 - 16 206,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.2

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

notes:

(@

In relation to construction contracts previously accounted under
HKAS 11 by an associate of the Group, the associate changed to
apply input method in estimating the performance obligations
satisfied up to date of initial application of HKFRS 15. The net
effect arising from the initial application of HKFRS 15 by this
associate resulted in a decrease in the Group’s carrying amount of
interests in associates of HK$83,729,000 with corresponding
adjustments to retained profits and translation reserve.

The reclassification of HK$7,648,000 from trade and other
creditors and accrued expenses to contract liabilities under HKFRS
15 represented the Group’s obligations to transfer goods and
services to the customers and the Group has received
consideration from the customers.

The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from the
application of HKFRS 9 (2014).

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

22 BERUBHREEF155R R
HEFEHZWALIE)

BEXEREBUBHREER E155E
EHNZEBE (F)

Wi

@ MRAEE-MBEAALENREES
HQEINHRARZEREY LB 2 RAW
AEANEBEREET BN BREERNE
162N EBARAC TR ZBOEE %
BERRANTERAEENHEREENFES
MEEZFZE BUAKEZMEAARE
% 2 R (B R 483,729,000 7T » I FAR B
ot M) B2 B U R i AR R R o

b)) REFEVHEMSEIE1EE HEZIRE
ENEAREARAXERSIEEANE
fE27,6480008 7T EAEEFTAEFEE
EmhkBREMAEECRERLKRBMKEZ
Bife

* MW RS E R E B MRS R FoNR
(2014 F) R TR 2 £ 78 ©
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MO B RN EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 March 2019 and its consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019 for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2019

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

22 BERUBHREEF155R R

BEFEHNZWAIGE)
BEXEREBUBHREER E155E
EHNZEBE (F)

TREMERE BB MEERF155E
REER2019F3A31H 2R A FHEMRR
RUAREREE2019F3A31HIEFEZ
FRAWER GAXHEREZXRREARSE
MERPIXVEZSHMAYIEE ZRE -
BMEHIRZ BRI TE 2 MINIER -

HN2019F3AN B ZHEEHBMRRRZ

E/
2

Amounts
without
application
As reported Reclassification Remeasurement of HKFRS 15
EREE
B EmE
ZRIE155
EHesE BENoH BEXTE AZ&H
notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i FAT FHET FAT FAT
Non-current asset E(RBEE
Interests in associates B & A Al kR (@) 654,591 — 74,234 728,825
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other creditors & 5 & 4 fE 1
and accrued expenses  BRF R ERTHET  (0) 298,733 4,055 — 302,788
Contract liabilities EHAE (b) 4,055 (4,055) - —
Capital and reserves &R f# &
Retained profits RE R A (@) 3,644,982 - 74,254 3,719,236
Translation reserve i (@) 57,176 — (20) 57,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HILFE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHFHITIRKLIETEEBBMBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG EERA(EFEBHBREERD]

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
22 BERUBHREEF155R R

2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with HEEFSHZWAIE)
L] H
Customers” (Continued) B o 5 S B R 5 4 B 1558 B
Summary of effects arising from initial application EWEERE ()
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated income statement for the HEZ2019F3A3MBLEFEEZHZEWE
year ended 31 March 2019 E4 4
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
EREBHH
HEERE15H
E®ReHE ik Az&H
note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FAT FAT FAT
Share of revenue of associates and joint  # {f B & X &) &
ventures ERDEIRA (a) 4,556,237 (410,911) 4,145,326
Share of results of associates BREMENRES (@) 33,215 (9,492) 23,723
Profit for the year attributable to: UWTATEGEFE
i A

Owners of the Company KARHER A (@) 49,208 (9,492) 39,716
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Mo R EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

22 BERUBHREEF155R R

BEFEHNZWAIGE)
BEXEREBUBHREER E155E
Lt EBE (&)

HEBE2019F3A3NBLEEZHEEEHE
WERzEE

2019
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
EREBE%
BEERE15%
EREE AR AZ&HE
note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liogz3 FHET FAT FAT
Share of exchange differences of BRBE N TR
associates and joint ventures AEPEIER
EH (@ (24,961) (5) (24,966)
Total comprehensive expense forthe LA T AT ELEE
year attributable to: SHRAXAE:
Owners of the Company Vi/NETESZ DN @) (161,390) (9,497) (170,887)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHIREEITEBUBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG SEA(EBHBFHREEL]
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
22 ERUMKREEREI5HI K
2.2 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with HEEFSHZWAIE)
Customers” (Continued) B o 5 S B R 5 4 B 1558 B
Summary of effects arising from initial application EWEERE ()
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HEZE2019F3A3MBLEEZHER S
for the year ended 31 March 2019 RERZEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
EREBHH
HEERE15H
E®ReHE ik Az&H
note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
i FAT FAT FAT
Increase in trade and other creditors BHREMER
and accrued expenses AR ERTRAX
il () 58,306 (3,147) 55,159
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD © (3,147 3,147 —
notes: Kzt -
(a) The net effect arising from the application of HKFRS 15 resulted in @) FEREBTERELERNFEISHEELE T FE

an accumulated decrease of HK$74,234,000 in the carrying
amount of interests in associates at 31 March 2019, of which
HK$74,254,000 has been charged to retained profits and
HK$20,000 has been credited to translation reserve. Meanwhile,
the application of HKFRS 15 resulted in an increase of
HK$410,911,000 in share of revenue of associates and joint
ventures, HK$9,492,000 in share of results of associates and
HK$5,000 in the share of exchange differences of associates and
joint ventures for the current year.

2. BHKR2019F3A31A 2B & A A #
25 2 BRI (E K 51 R 22 74,234,000/8 7T - H A
74,254,000/ 7T B B /& B & F1 #1 Bk % 20,000
BLTEHAERFE BUERK ERAES
B 7 3R 5 X B S5155R E B F [ (R Bt
NEREE D E 2 A N410,911,0007%
T BE(E S Q B S AR 15 009,492,000 7T LA
MBEBERNARACLEZEY =581
Hn5,000% 7T °

(b) Prior to application of HKFRS 15, the Group’s obligation to transfer (b) REBEBVHERSEDF155 5 B
goods and services to the customers for which the Group has 20193 A3 IHAEEFTNEFAPE ZE N
received consideration from the customers amounting to EREMAEBERNEPLPUWBRAREZEE
HK$4,055,000 at 31 March 2019 would be recognised as trade 4,055,000/ T v R ABE 5 R E M ENEE
and other creditors and accrued expenses. Such amount was BRESAEY RERAESASVEREERNS
reclassified to contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15. 15857 S NBEREFHBEEANEE -

(c) Prior to application of HKFRS 15, the decrease in contract liabilities ©) REBRSEMEREED F155 71 &

of HK$3,147,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 would be
included in the increase in trade and other creditors and accrued
expenses.

ZE2019F3A3BIEFEZANARBR D
3,147,000 T i 5t A B 5 K& H M FE (7 BR 5K
MERTFA M -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated
statement of financial position arising
from the application of all new HKFRSs

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

23 ERMEHAERMBRS
HEAHFADEESHBRR K
EEZ®E

HRERAEBZ ST BRESD  FH&x
EMBRNEBTEREY - TRIIFZFE
ZEBEMINABR AR -BERHIKRTE
BMEFHTE LMIIAR -

Audited HKFRS 9 Restated
31 March 2018  HKFRS 15 (2014) 1 April 2018
EBHMK
RER BEBUE wEEA KREZ
20184 ]REER EoH 20184
3A31H $£155% (2014 %) 481H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HIK$'000
FET FAET FAET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in associates R NI R s 734,328 (83,729) (9,869) 640,730
Others with no adjustments E b £ 8 %218 3,870,106 — — 3,870,106
4,604,434 (83,729) (9,869) 4,510,836
Current assets REBEE
LLoans receivable EWE & 372,700 — (7,807) 364,893
Amounts due from [ ENCIE @
associates 79,710 — (1,125) 78,585
Trade and other debtors, 2 5 K H fih & Uk
deposits and Ex-ilek
prepayments a8~ FoE 265,108 — (1,800) 263,308
Others with no adjustments H {tb £ 3 #£ 18 2,797,382 — — 2,797,382
3,514,900 — (10,732) 3,504,168
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
EEA(EEMBEREZER D

(&)

23 ERMEHAERMBRS
HEAHFADEESHBRR K

statement of financial position arising EXZTE(H)
from the application of all new HKFRSs
(Continued)
Audited HKFRS 9 Restated
31 March 2018  HKFRS 15 (2014) 1 April 2018
EEU®
BEZX EEME WwEER KEY
20184 HwEER FEOR 20184
3H31H $155% (2014 %) 4HA1H
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT FH&T FET TFET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other creditors & 5 & £ b fE {+
and accrued expenses R ERAX 286,364 (7,648) - 278,716
Contract liabilities sd8aE — 7,648 — 7,648
Others with no adjustments £ th £ ;i #2185 568,078 — — 568,078
854,442 — — 854,442
Net current assets hEBEEFE 2,660,458 — (10,732) 2,649,726
Total assets lesscurrent A EERRBERS
liabilities 7,264,892 (83,729) (20,601) 7,160,562
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Others with no adjustments E {tb £ 8 #£ 18 1,652,100 — — 1,652,100
5,612,792 (83,729) (20,601) 5,508,462
Capital and reserves BEEXARHEE
Retained profits 1R B8 33 3,698,600 (83,745) (20,601) 3,594,254
Translation reserve ME H 206,798 16 — 206,814
Others with no adjustments H {tb & 8 #£ 18 1,707,394 — — 1,707,394
Total equity DA 5,612,792 (83,729) (20,601) 5,508,462
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Definition of a Business®
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Definition of Material®

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017

Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

P& R 37 AT R AR 48

RN EE:

EEA(EEMBEREZER D

(&)

E 28 ff (B R &£ Rz 5] R AR B RT
BRMBREER

AEEYEIRFEATIEEMERERN
ZHEAIRBETERBYBRE LR K2

BAEV B RE LR
F1658

BBV B RE LR
FATHR

58 (BB BRE
éﬁ%éé\@)—
2235
i&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁiiﬁﬁﬂ
E 35 (KIERT)
BB wmEER
Fo5% (&R
BBV wmEER
F10EREEG

AR 28 5%

(F1E37T)
%.5:%@%+5‘EEH‘J%1%F
& EHE e AR
%85»’2(%%1%&

nnl ‘}W‘F palll3

HE'

1%/\/\|:|l£4

PIT 15 5 Ba 32 Y
HETE M

EBWERS

HB A E/NIER
OE/Ss3:S
REEEHEYE
NAH[EDRE
ZHRZEEHER
RS
BEAMER?

BAGTERE195 518

(BAERT)

B G ER E 285

(@)
Bt 81 R 1 45 2 A
(@ feT)

rEZERRAER
2015-2017 4 i8 Bf

BAV B RE LD

FEH

! H2019F 1 A1H BB 2 2 FHRE &

Eod

2 R2020F 1 A1A N EFB 2 2 F M 4E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS
16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

FE R ¥ E] R AR R] B R BB 3R
%Z*%E'J(F@iﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂj)
&

E 28 ff (B R &£ Rz 5] R AR B RT
BRMBEREER (R)

BT R BB M B |RE LR N F]
EFETAHERAMAEMNT REETER
MBEREENEREFTENAERERE
HIEEMBHRRENERTE -

BEEMEHREEAE16HE ]
BBMEREERNF 165K SHANHEA K
EBANEERZ R EESA— B
BEA - EFBUBHRELNE16RER
B IR BB G EREI7HRIBEE R
HEA R R

BN B REENF16RARIEMBANEE
EEHEPENRESBEERRBEEL -
gEoN - BEM B HREEMNEIGHRRE -
ERERXRZARBEEEVHRELELSE
BRI TECERABEERTIERH
EAR - BAEMBHREEREIRITERE
EROMEREEBEHZRTE -

BREAHEREEEEHEESIN &2 KA
EHENEZERAABEASHEETBLK -
YHABAERMAEEHERAERAEEE
LEEAENEAENR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease maodifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for own use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group. Upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing or operating cash
flows in accordance with the nature as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$17,490,000 as
disclosed in Note 49(a). A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$3,037,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$3,638,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would
be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-interpretation 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
interpretation 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16
as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE2019F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTHER

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the
Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQ”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ji) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 (2014) or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, the carrying
amount of the property at the date of transfer is at fair
value.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

LLand under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the land under development and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting period,
or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to
investment properties upon the commencement of a lease
as evidence for a change in use.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the investment in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (2014). The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal or partial disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequently accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Except for trade debtors arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the other income in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets held for trading and are included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with
Note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (2014) (including amounts due from associates
and a joint venture, trade and other debtors, loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits and bank balances) and financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with
Note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
debtors. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant and credit-impaired
balances and/or collectively with appropriate groupings by
common risk characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelinood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with
Note 2) (Continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKAS 17.
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HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined, the
Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are
taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped based on the
following shared credit risk characteristics:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade debtors and other debtors are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans
receivable, amounts due from associates and a
joint venture are assessed for expected credit
loss on an individual basis);

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 (2014) with transitions in accordance with

Note 2) (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (2014); and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
amount due from a joint venture and loans receivable
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL and FVTOCI,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other debtors, loans receivable,
amounts due from associates and amount due from a
joint venture, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amounts due to associates/non-controlling interests and
bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such cost are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price at
which the Group would sell a promised goods or service
separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is
not directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction price
ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects
the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress toward complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RGeS RRMIET

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (income
from port related services), the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using
either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

The Group recognises revenues on the following basis:

Income from port related services

Income from port related services is recognised over time
in which the benefits of the services are received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer as the Group
performs. Revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts using the
expected value approach, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognised for
advance from customers with contracts while a refund
liability is recognised for volume discount, if any.

Sale of LPG and CNG products

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed. A
contract liability is recognised for advance from customers
with contracts.

Revenue from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties developed for sale is
recognised upon the execution of binding sales
agreements and delivery of the properties according to
the contract, which is the point in time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property. A
contract liability is recognised for advance from customers
with contracts.

Except for classification of contract liabilities, there is no
change in revenue recognition policy from the adoption of
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RGeS RRMIET

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included
in the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services is
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RGeS RRMIET

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense or capitalised in contracts in
progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

FTESHBERE)

BiE
4 TF 4 50 08 8 1< S 4 0 o

B A IR TS 3% K 2 R B i A &t
B BRPUEN RS WS R PRI
BA@E MR TERAESNERJRER
EERRATERAXAMBALER - I
BETBEKTEFERRAARZELR - A&
BzAHRERBENRRBEHTENE

MR EEBEM 2 HERFTE

BEBEDNREAVBERREERBAER
HERFEERRT EABERTE ZRRZE
BHRERA - ECHEAGERAESHMBER
MEREZEER MECHEEERATIR
AL RAUMARSEENR ZERT R
P BAMEAHNREREEERER &1
—EXS5H AEREREEBE AR

RO L HREMEERAGEMSI BB
ERMIAZEERNRN T AE2Es
wmA BT ERRAZEEERAE -

BEEHIBEBERERMBRRZKRERR
BERAMAEELE 2B ERN
[ By 22 R T R R0 - M AN 5% L BB S Il
RERoELO mIEREREAETERN
AEEARRBEDMAUTEUR - BEFERE
LESHEZAINBREREEMEE 2R
ETRIAEEE N AR B R ARTE M 7]
VA P B B 2 B8 2 M) 2 B TR AT 10 A) R 2K
] LA $3% [o] B FE 57



WP{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2019 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=k e E

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve. When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of
tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4,

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties
As described in Note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences
in respect of investment properties are assessed
based on the best estimate of the tax consequence
upon sale of the properties directly or sale through
entities holding these properties or consume
substantially over time.

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land and
buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
reputted.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to the PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income
tax.

The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2019 is approximately HK$256,372,000
(2018: HK$263,689,000).

Project under development

Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to (1)
properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business; (2) property, plant and
equipment if the properties are for own use; or (3)
investment properties if the properties are held for
rentals and/or capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(c) Judgments on the completion date of
construction-in-progress
The construction of port facilities involves various
points in time and different parts of the construction
projects to complete and reach to its intended use.
The Group transfers the construction-in-progress to
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of respective parts of the port
facilities and obtains approval from the authorities for
the rights to operate. If there are significant changes
from the approval date by the authorises and the
date that reach to its intended use, the cost of the
property, plant and equipment and the relevant
depreciation may change. Management considers
the approval by authorities for the rights to operate is
an activity necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for its intended use.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4,

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes
Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. Management of the Company
works closely with the valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 19, 25, 33 and 45(c)
provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b) Provision for stock of properties

In assessing the net realisable value of stock of
properties, the Groups engages qualified
professional valuer to provide information on market
comparable samples used in the assessment.
Management of the Company applies adjustment
factors on market comparable samples used in
valuation of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development for sale; estimates
further costs to be expended for the development of
properties under development for sale by reference
of development costs expended for formed land;
and determines discount rate used in net present
value calculation of stock of properties.

The Group recognises provision for stock of
properties according to net realisable value of the
stock of properties. Provision for stock of properties
is required to be recognised when there is sign
showing that the net realisable value is lower than
the carrying value. Recognition of net realisable value
involves judgment and estimation.

If the result of new estimation differs from current
estimation, such difference will impact the carrying
value of stock of properties for the corresponding
period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment

In assessing the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform
the valuation in the assessment. The valuation is
dependent on inputs that involve both the directors’
and the independent qualified professional valuer’s
judgments, including forecasting of future operating
cash flows of the property, plant and equipment and
determining the discount rates, which subject to
uncertainty. Note 18 provides detailed information
about the recoverable amount calculation.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. As at 31

March 2019, the carrying amount of LAT provision
(included in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$446,299,000 (2018: HK$465,384,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(e)

(e) Deferred tax asset

(f)

At 31 March 2019, no deferred tax asset in relation

to unused tax losses of HK$753 million (2018:

HK$911 million) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of those

subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits

generated by those subsidiaries are more than

expected, a material deferred tax credit would be (f)
recognised in the consolidated income statement in

the period in which the tax losses are utilised.

Provision of ECL for financial assets
measured at amortised costs

The Group estimates ECL for financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (2014).
Except for financial assets with significant
outstanding balances or credit-impaired which are
individually assessed for ECL, the Group collectively
assesses the ECL of financial assets, including trade
and other debtors which consist of large number of
debtors with common risk characteristics.

The assessment of ECL is based on historical
observed default rates and adjusted by forward-
looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL on the Group’s
financial assets is disclosed in Note 45(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the
borrowings disclosed in Notes 38 and 39, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue is analysed as follows: WAZAIAT
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Sales and services income = N RS U A
Income from port related services 7 O A8 B AR 75 M A 400,128 405,295
Sale of LPG and CNG products HEREABAKR
R ARE M@ 146,148 161,547
Sale of properties HE M 5,602 10,782
551,878 577,624
Interest income FLE WA
Interest income from loans receivable FEWE F 2 F B A 37,763 19,227
Interest income from investments in debt BEEEEKIAKEZ
instruments held for trading F B WA 28,034 15,747
65,797 34,974
Property rental and dividend income WER e KB A
Property rental and related income MEMH e RAEBKA 9,482 11,482
Dividend income from investments in BREEEERIAEKEZ
equity instruments held for trading RE B WA 1,211 320
10,693 11,802
628,368 624,400

Revenue from contracts with customers is derived from
the PRC, which includes (i) revenue from sale of properties
under property segment and sale of LPG and CNG
products under ports and logistics segment that are
recognised at a point in time and (i) income from port
related services under ports and logistics segment that is
recognised over time.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient of
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the information about its
unsatisfied obligation as at 31 March 2019 of contracts
with an original expected duration of one year or less.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group are determined
based on information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the
Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising business
units with similar economic characteristics into an
operating segment.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil
Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities and asset
management services and
investment in properties

Ports development — Development of ports facilities
and ports related properties

Ports and logistics ~— Operation of ports, LPG and
CNG products and logistics
businesses

Property — Development, investment, sale
and leasing of real estate
properties, developed land, land
under development and projects
under development

Securities — Investment and trading of
securities

Treasury — Provision of credit services and
cash management
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Both ports and logistics segment and property segment
include a number of different operations in various cities
within the PRC, each of which is considered as a separate
business unit by the Managing Director of the Company.
For segment reporting purpose, these individual business
units have been aggregated into reportable segments
according to the nature and similarity of their products and
services, the customer type or class, the method of
products distribution or providing services, and the
regulatory environment, which give rise to a more
meaningful presentation.

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”)
and earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”).

fne MBI RMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

7 wE# (&)

BARYMRDBMYESLE RS — LR
REREAZERTHSRBIEE $@T
ﬁ*%ﬁtﬂ%a—ﬂﬁﬁm%ﬁiuo
REBDHBRE BN ELEFOXRH
B O EREEEMMIRTE 2 1 EAR L
B -BFPBASER  EmoHKEHRR
BHEAREERRESKAIHRE D
INEEEAEEENIIT -

rl/tg

RRATEEHERE R FEFHEZ RBEA
BA(EBIT]) RAFFEHME - BB 7
E M8 AT B A ([EBITDA]) 2 5T & BAFT
HEEEDPRIE -



WP(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2019 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRFmRMIET

For the year ended 31 March 2019

i

HZE2019F3A31HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2019

7. ZEHER A

L ONE S
PRES S FTONCES ¢ d-) Okt

DEE D2

HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group  development logistics Property  Securities  Treasury consolidated
RE BOR Vik: =311
BELE BORR Wik mE &5 E% kizaE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TAR
Revenue of the Group AEEZWA - - 546,276 15,084 29,245 37,763 628,368
Gross proceeds from AEBEEFEER
securities trading of FriEsELE
the Group - - - - 126,000 - 126,000
Share of revenue of BEBMERTRE
associates and joint EhEZIA
ventures 4,508,366 - 42,259 5,612 - - 4,556,237
4,508,366 - 588,535 20,696 155,245 37,763 5,310,605
EBITDA EBITDA 19,855 919 151,198 29,299 26,716 56,265 284,252
Depreciation and nEREH
amortisation** - - (46,945) (4,231) (22) (22) (51,220)
Segment results — EBIT & £ & —EBIT 19,855 919 104,253 25,068 26,694 56,243 233,032
Corporate and other PEREMEAT
expenses™ (111,941)
Finance costs B &R A (32,007)
Profit before taxation B 8 A A 89,084
Taxation I (24,728)
Profit for the year FREN 64,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

7. ZEHER A

DERAREE (E)
HZE2018F3 A3 HILFE

Paul'Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group  development logistics Property ~ Securites ~ Treasury  consolidated
R BAR GECH)
BEEE BOERE i S H5 B &%m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TEX FET TAET TER AR
Revenue of the Group REBEZHA - - 566,842 22,264 16,067 19,227 624,400
Gross proceeds from AEEZHBAEE
securities trading of FEHIRERE
the Group - - - - 59,041 - 59,041
Share of revenue of BEBERARA
associates and joint EREIWA
ventures 3,279,414 - 356,164 6,042 - - 3,641,620
3,279,414 - 923,006 28,306 75,108 19,227 4,325,061
EBITDA* EBITDA* 15,418 — 826,694 100,421 13,899 923 957,355
Depreciation and nEREE
amortisation** — — (116,160) (5,196) ©®) W (121,369)
Segment results — EBIT & £ & —EBIT 15,418 - 710,634 95,225 13,893 916 835,986
Corporate and other R REAMRE T
expenses™ (68,311)
Finance costs B &R A (53,455)
Profit before taxation B 8 A A 714,220
Taxation FiIE (212,461)
Profit for the year FEHF 501,759
* Gain on disposal of an associate of approximately * HE — BB % QT 2 Uk 35 49847,628,000

HK$847,628,000 and impairment loss on property, plant and

equipment of approximately HK$148,049,000 had been

recognised in the ports and logistics operating segment during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

h Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and

amortisation of other intangible assets.

e Including acquisition-related costs for potential projects of
approximately HK$26,983,000 (2018: HK$23,012,000) and net
exchange loss of HK$9,682,000 (2018: gain of HK$30,197,000).

ke

BLIRYE BREIEZREBEREY
148,049,000/ 7L B N & £2018F 3 A31 A It
FEEBARMREE D EERAR

BREME B R

REWELEMBTVEE

BERKBEEHEBEMRABE ZRKAYD
26,983,0003% 7T (2018 : 23,012,000 7T ) &
[& 3 & 18 )% %89,682,00078 7T (2018 : Uy 2
30,197,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. oEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities STREENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTNEAEEEENBEIREE N A®RE
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: DEE D 2D
At 31 March 2019 M2019F 3 A31H
Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property  Securities Treasury consolidated
RE BOR ik =311
BEEE BORRE Wik M EF E% kiFE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERL TERT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEHEE 421,867 360,560 2,259,035 3,396,561 610,544 577,962 7,626,529
Unallocated assets AOBREE 41,964
Consolidated total assets #74 # 4 & 7,668,493
LIABILITIES &&
Segment liabilities NHEE - - 1,016,799 1,198,278 8,460 121,799 2,345,336
Unallocated liabilities AN BE 13,581
Consolidated total RAEBAR
liabilities

2,358,917
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

corporate assets which are mainly certain bank balances
and cash, interests in joint ventures and other receivables,
and segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which
are mainly certain other payables.

For the purpose of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance, deferred tax liabilities are
allocated to segment liabilities but the related deferred tax
credit/charge are not reported to the Managing Director of
the Company as part of segment resullts.

mE B IMRMIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31AILEFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER (E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEENREE(E)
At 31 March 2018 M®20184F 3 A31H
Paul'Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group  development logistics Property Securities Treasury  consolidated
RE ®0 fHEast
EX5E BORE b kS #5 E% e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TER TER TER TER TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEE 516,795 405,204 2,379,708 3,499,062 540,387 763,683 8,104,839
Unallocated assets AABEEE 14,495
Consolidated total assets %4 @& & 8,119,334
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabllties DHERE - — 1158580 1,197,381 15,866 121674 2,493,501
Unallocated liabilities xPEEE 13,041
Consolidated total BEBER
liabilities 2,506,542
Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and D EENEGEBRENERD g ES 9
liabilities of the operating subsidiaries, as well as interests RERBATIZCEENEBE  URKBERD
in associates, joint ventures and investments in equity Al AL ERERTIARE Z M o W
instruments that are engaged in relevant segmental o DHEEARETE AT LIEITLET
businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude kRS A8 YRS EMEKRERZ

TEEE MOFEaBETRETEAR
WwHMENERZCEEBE -

REBERIERDEREFEZBEH

EERBABEROEEZED AR EHEH
E’]%EL%RIEEEA/EZHjIT{’EJ%"*BiiE
MARBDRAARF B2 R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEHER(E)

Other information Hih&EH
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TRABBRKERAIRED AV RAEBRE
information by operating and reportable segment: HmER 2D
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31HILEFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics Property  Securities Treasury  Unallocated  Consolidated
RE A0
EX5H BORE R¥% S £% B RAE E]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAR TEn TR TEn TAR TR

Amounts included in the measure 5t A2 S EEH 25
of segment results orsegment  EEFHE2HE:
assets:

Additions to non-current assets other EEEFBHEE (LB T

than financial instruments BB - - 88,661 13,650 4 4 - 102,319
Release of prepaid lease payments & B[ B & - - 5123 28 - - - 5,151
Impairment loss reversed on R E 2z AERE

loans receivable &bl - - - - - 20,429 - 20,429
Impairment loss recognised on JElEERRIEL

amounts due from associates RER T,E ﬁ& R - - - - - 275 - 275
Impairment loss recognised on trade 2 5 & H 4 e Ui 8 31 2

and other receivables BEBB®EA - - A - - - - M
Gain (loss) on disposal of RENE BHREE

property, plant and equipment 2 (B1]) - - 2,607 (136) - - - 2471
Bank and other interest income BAREMFERA - - 2,428 149 1 752 13 3,343
Interests in associates %3 % NGiE 2 406,911 - 247,680 - - - - 654,591
Interests in joint ventures EhEER - - - 92,968 - - 25,478 118,446
Share of results of associates % ke UNSIES 19,855 - 13,360 - - - - 33,215
Share of results of joint ventures BlRAebERE - - - 2,374 - - (1,697) 677
Gain on changes in fair value of HEEERRIARE

investments in equity instruments 7 A FEEEFH K

held for trading - - - - 31 - - 3N
Loss on changes in fair value of B 1‘5 BEEEKIERE

investments in debt instruments RAYEEEYER

held for trading - - - - 11,633 - - 11,633

Gain on change in fair value of HeRmEELZATE
other financial asset EEEHNE - - - - 12,461 - - 12,461
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. oEER (&)
Other information (Continued) HaE ¥ (HF)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZE2018F3A31IHILEFE
Paul'y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development logistics Property Securities Treasury  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
RE A
B¥5E BOEE i nE #5 B FAR &A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAR TET TARL TAT FAT TET TAL
Amounts included in the measure 5t A2 S EEH 25
of segment results orsegment  EEFHEZHE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets other ZEFEFHEE (48T
than financial instruments BB - - 83,181 24,633 156 156 - 108,126
Release of prepaid lease payments & B[ B &R - - 5,578 28 - - - 5,606
Impairment loss recognised on FERE 2 AERE
a loan receivable B2 - - - - - ,000 - 21,000
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) 2 5 B K JEYL B 5 2
on trade and other receivables REBERI(EE) - - (496) 32,370 - - - 31,874
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, EEWE - KRR EE
plant and equipment BB (k) - - 458 (130) - - - 328
Impairment loss on property, mE BHREEZ
plant and equipment HEBE - - 148,049 - - - - 148,049
Bank and other interest income RITREMF WA - - 2,983 527 - 1,389 i 4910
Interests in associates BENTES 485,523 - 248,805 - - - - 734,328
Interests in joint ventures RELERR - - - 96,201 - - - 96,201
Share of results of associates BEBENTEE 15,417 - 36,766 - - - - 52,183
Share of results of joint ventures ~ BEABMEEE - - - 2429 - - - 2,429
Loss on changes in fair value of HEEEHSTARE
investments in equity instruments 2 AT BEEBEE
held for trading - - - - 8,350 - - 8,350
Gain on changes in fair value of BIFEEEBIARE
investments in debt instruments AT BEZ &K
held for trading - - - - 2,355 - - 2,355
Gain on change in fair value of HtemEEL DT
other financial asset EEZYYE - - - - 8,539 - - 8,539
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7 wE# (&)

& &R

AEBZEBTBZUREERTE(TE
BEE) -

TERR/AEBRARET S E D (R
EPHMAEME - T E /R IR M)
Z o

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Hong Kong A 57,780 28,841
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TBEESD) 561,360 589,426
Others Hib 9,228 6,133
628,368 624,400

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets excluding financial instruments,
analysed by the geographical location of assets:

NTRERBEE(TERESRITA)ERR
BEREEZMEMRE D Z D :

Non-current
assets excluding
financial instruments

FRBEE(FTEFEEMIA)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Hong Kong a5 435,639 489,952
The PRC other than Hong Kong RE(TEREES) 3,539,407 3,677,656
3,975,046 4,167,608
Information about major customers FEEFER

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there is no
customer who individually contributed more than 10% of
total revenue of the Group.

RE E20194F N2018F3A31H IEFE -
BMERNZELHAEBR Z LK ABSG
10% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31ALLFE
OTHER INCOME 8. HWA
Other income includes: HEmBABLE:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Bank and other interest income R1T M E A F B U A 3,343 4,910
Rental income from short term leasing of HEEEEFECHSWA
stock of properties 2,422 2,942
Dividend income from investment in an T EEEZRBWA
equity instrument 919 —

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. HtW=mRER

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of BIEESEEKIAEKREY
investments in debt instruments held for NEEEES(BEE) ke
trading (11,633) 2,355
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of BIEEEERIAEKREY
investments in equity instruments held NETBEZSH W (EE)
for trading 311 (8,350)
Gain on change in fair value of other EmemEEs A FEESE
financial asset g 12,461 8,539
Net exchange (loss) gain [E 5 (&518) a5 F 5 (9,682) 30,197
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, BEEWMZE  EWEEE K
plant and equipment (E18) 2,471 (328)
Gain on disposal of investment properties REEREWE ZWNZE 2,155 597
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments 5z S 78 {1 18 & K18 2 W 2 44,121 60
40,204 33,070
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HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. HME A
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Acquisition-related costs for potential U BAEIE B B 2 A

projects 26,983 23,012

Net development expenses for resort FEEREE 2HEERFHE
project in the PRC 6,377 10,697
33,360 33,709

11. IMPAIRMENT LOSS REVERSED

M. TREEZRESERD (BR)

(RECOGNISED) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAETT
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) on FEWE R 2 BB B & D
loans receivable (7R 20,429 (21,000)
Impairment loss recognised on trade and B 5 M E W ER K 2 R (E
other receivables BB R 1) (31,874)
Impairment loss recognised on amounts JE W B & A Rl RIE 2 R E R R
due from associates R (275) —
20,113 (52,874)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31AILEFE
12. FINANCE COSTS 12, B & KA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Borrowing costs on: EERAK :
Bank borrowings RITIE R 44,261 67,756
Amount due to an associate FE A — R Bt 2 A Bl 5RIE - 102
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE AT SR 4% P A 2 BRIE 5,092 5,195
Imputed interest expense on other payables H /b & 1~ BR 2t 2 # & FI| B 5 5 873 990
Other borrowings H & 3K 7,677 2,824
57,903 76,867
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIEBESRME - &
construction in progress (included in BREAZERIRER
property, plant and equipment) 2 EEE (11,232) (8,730)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEBERMEFE 2 MH#
properties under development for HETRYMEER CEE
sale (included in stock of properties) (9,776) (10,152)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEREZERREMEERR
investment properties under < HUEE
development (4,888) (4,530)
32,007 53,455
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BABEAR7EERAEEERNEEREL
costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds ZHEEREAK MENEEEENFEERE
were specifically invested in the project and properties RIER RYE-

during the year.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
seven (2018: seven) directors are as follows:

13. EE  BRETBRAEREEMS

() EERBEITBRAEMS

St EMN 22018 +&)E=E
EAZElEWT

FAMBENEETNETMHE

(2018 : ) o
None of the directors has waived any emoluments
during the year (2018: Nil).
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
other Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EEHE Fees benefits bonus*** contributions Total
E2 D5 ERAKER
we HapERN BFRELO BEREEN &%t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT TR FERT THER
2019
Executive directors BITES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R 440 5,779 482 578 7,279
Sue Ka Lok* BRR g 389 - - - 389
Wu Yan Yee* HA R & 120 542 105 18 785
Independent non-executive directors B FEHITESE
Chan Shu Kin ok 151 B2 824 - - - 824
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HER 593 - - - 593
Leung Chung Ki** RINE 142 - - - 142
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond* e 105 - - - 105
2,613 6,321 587 596 10,117
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE - BRETBAEREEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(@) EERESTTRAEMS (E)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Salaries Retirement Share-
and benefit based
other Discretionary scheme  payment
Name of directors EEMUA Fees benefits bonus*™*  contributions expense Total
LARR 1
& RIKERN  XNFOR

e HMERN HBfea SHBIER ZHX =
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TAERT TET THET  TERT  TER

2018

Executive directors HITES

Lau Tom Ko Yuen 255 440 5,520 10,550 552 64 17,126
Sue Ka Lok* BRIR 4 362 — _ _ _ 362
Wu Yan Yee* #A R S 105 370 80 14 — 569
Non-executive director FHITES

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan* PR R Bt 25 - - - - 25

Independent non-executive B kHITESE

directors
Chan Shu Kin 5k ff BR 824 — — — _ 804
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EER 589 — — - — 589
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond** et 626 — — — — 626
2,971 5,890 10,630 566 64 20,121
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above TR TRHNBITESMHS  AREHREE
are for their services in connection with management KRR RAEEEHRBERNRSE MIEL -

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

X RMERTEERBUFRNTES
The non-executive director’s and independent e AREEARRAEFRENRE
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above miEHE o
are for their services as directors of the Company.

B eREENRARRAEREHEH(BE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen is also the Chairman and REZTHAER) EXMEBEBERZ2HE
Managing Director of the Company (which is BREEATFEFRAHBERREZMS -

equivalent to Chief Executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE ESTBRAEBREE#ME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

# Resigned with effect from 25 April 2017.

ki Resigned with effect from 1 June 2018.

Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

= Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

e The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on individual

performance which has been determined and approved by (b)
the remuneration committee.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2018: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 13(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2018:
four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of
the Group, are as follows:

ESERESITRAEME (&)

i B20174 4 A 250 BB T -

" B20184F6 A1 HEFT -

- REZE20184F3AIAILFERZT -
REE2019F3A3 AL FEREF -

= BRBTEADREMERREMEZ A
B URHHNEZESEE RILE -

BEMS

AEERAFERURSHAER
BARA —BREFQ018: —BE
=) HB & B £ 3K 130 AT
& o

EnBAEEEE 2% (2018 [
IREFAEZEMESWT

i)

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FHET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 14,328 13,600

Discretionary bonus (note) B S FEAL (K 7E) 1,094 49,371
Retirement benefit scheme RIRFEFIET & 5K

contributions 362 345

Share-based payment expense DA RBE 2R - 65

15,784 63,381
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

13. EX ESTRAEREEMSE
(%)
(b) EEME (&)

Empl ’ I i
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) B e AT

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of employees

EE A"
2019 2018
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /% 7T & 2,000,000 % 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T Z 3,000,0007% JT - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 % 7T & 4,000,000 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 % 7T & 6,000,000 % 7T
(note) (K1) 1* —
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7% 7T & 7,000,000 7T
(note) (H&E) 1* -
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,001 7 7T & 13,000,000 7T
(note) (W at) - 1*
HK$44,500,001 to HK$45,000,000 44,500,001 % 7T & 45,000,000% 7T
(note) (Kt at) - 1*
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 March 2019, an aggregate amount of
discretionary bonus to members of senior management
(excluding directors) of HK$826,000 (2018: HK$46,099,000)
had been determined and approved by the remuneration
committee.

# The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/
payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.

FA - AEEYEORUREH AR
REEZNMESUERNALER
FRMAREE S 2 BB RAIEREE
BihE -

Wtat - 8 E2019F3 A31 8 IF F E - # B
ZEEeEEERMME—SFBEAR
826,0003% 7T (2018 : 46,099,0007% 7T )
ZEHBTEATFTEREBREREBE (TR
BES) -

’ LM eEEMeRNE S Z2ENS
ENEREEEXE(TEREESR)Z
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HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 14. BRBL AT R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B B A A B $0BR ¢
after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & =
(note (a) below) (FXHtat(@) 986 33,205
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B &
— Audit services — ZEH R 3,185 3,139
— Non-audit services — R E R 1,330 3,234
Cost of inventories recognised as an HREBRZGFEKAN
expense 107,083 113,628
Depreciation of property, plant and W B NREZITE
equipment (note (b) below) (T X HKfaz b)) 50,234 88,164
Operating lease rentals in respect of: wEHEHES
Land and premises T R TF 12,025 10,907
Plant and machinery N 1,453 1,967
Release of prepaid lease payments FEEMAEERE 5,151 5,606
Staff costs (note (c) below) SIKXA(TXHE(C) 194,787 264,539
and after crediting: WEEFA:
Dividend income from investments in BIEEBEHTTAREZRE
equity instruments held for trading e A 1,211 320
Dividend income from investment in BDZILAEKEZRBWA
an equity instrument 919 —
Rental income under operating leases in KEMEKEHREZH S K
respect of investment properties, net of A - BBk X 883,557,000
outgoings of HK$3,557,000 771 (2018 : 4,207,000/ 7T)
(2018: HK$4,207,000) 5,925 7,275
Total interest income (included in revenue £ 5] 2 A (B &R A K&
and other income) Ha e AR) 69,140 39,884
Government grants recognised B W SR BT 4 B (N XK EE ()
(note (d) below) 8,853 19,725




14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

notes:

(@)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

Amortisation of other intangible assets

14. BR% AR F ()
Btat -

@ EtEEEEERE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
Amount provided for the year FERER 1,032 33,252
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties B BERERMEREZHEE
under development for sale (included in EEMEERZHE
stock of properties) (46) (47)
986 33,205
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (b) ME BWMEREREZITE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FET
Amount provided for the year FEBER 50,366 88,337
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties W BERERMEREZHEE
under development for sale (included in EEMEBARAZHE
stock of properties) (94) (125)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction BIEBERYE  BHREER
in progress (included in property, plant and CHEEZIBRERZHEE
equipment) 4) -
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BIERBETREMEE R HE
properties under development (34) (48)
50,234 88,164
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE201

9FE3A31AILEE

14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14. BR#F Al s A ()

notes: (Continued)

(©

HiaE - ()

Staff costs

© BIKAE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)) E=We (Ha£13() 10,117 20,121
Other staff costs: H B TR :
Salaries and other benefits (including bonus) HE R EMER (BEELL) 187,141 240,052
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKTRE FI A &I 3R 7,596 8,102
Share-based payment expense ARt S RBZAX - 65
204,854 268,340
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties B BERERYEFREZHLEES
under development for sale (included in stock EEMEERZHE
of properties) (2,304) (2,504)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction BIEBRERNE B EERERN
in progress (included in property, plant and ZIHERIRERZHER
equipment) (6,553) -
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BEHBTRREMEEARA A
properties under development (1,210) (1,297)
194,787 264,539

The government grants mainly represent the government cash
subsidies on operation cost of ports and property businesses of
approximately HK$8,853,000 (2018: HK$19,725,000) recognised
in distribution and selling expenses and administrative expenses
during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to the receipt of the government subsidies.

d BEBMBEZEFARIEREEERAMN
FITBRERATHRARNRBORMEER
4 X A 12 4 B 3R & 03 B 498,853,000/ T
(2018 : 19,725,0007% 70 ) ° Fr Y BL 2 BX AT 3
B 4 R GE AR RS M A SR BT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31H ILFHE
15. TAXATION 15. B 1|8
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Taxation charge (credit) comprises: MBS HEA) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEENEH -
Current year KEE 15 109
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEBRETR 23 —
38 109
Taxation arising in the PRC excluding FR(INBEEEB)EEZHIE:
Hong Kong:
Current year KNEE 9,449 167,829
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAEFE(BEEBEBETRE (509) 381
8,940 168,210
Deferred taxation (Note 40) IR E IR (M aE40)
LAT T IR BT 8,049 33,298
Others Hip 7,701 10,844
15,750 44,142
Taxation attributable to the Company & RQ & Kk E K E A 7 L FIE
and its subsidiaries 24,728 212,461
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council M2018F3A21H - HAB LA g BiB(2017
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 FRFE(ERT) (B795%) K0 E =) (£ 5
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates B H5| ARSI FERHREREE - F
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 Bl E RPN 2018F3 A28 H BB BIERET
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two- REBHTZEEFR - BIE MR G F 5B K
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of B r2EREEERNH2008 8 TE A
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, H R T R 8.25% I - MR B200&E B TH
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. i AR B R 16.5% BB o TR & M AR
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two- FMEMRGEERZERTR 2 % B#E
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at IR B — T E16.5% B N FHIE -

a flat rate of 16.5%.
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HE2019F3A31HIEFE

15. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 15. B E (&)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the taxation arising in
the PRC excluding Hong Kong included an income tax
charge of approximately HK$154,369,000, which
represented the PRC income tax charged on the gain on
disposal of an associate (see Note 44 for details). The
capital gain derived from equity rights transfer by a non-
resident enterprise, representing the difference between
the transfer price and the cost of equity rights, is subjected
to a tax rate of 10%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (F 2 A R HAE + 18 {E
THE 1T 1&/1) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (% A R HAE + 18 {E
HE1TEBIZ R M8 effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.

ARABEZRRE MM G X E
BHPENEBRHGEAVHRRME LT
BER-BENERDEMESFE 2G5 E
AR A HZ B E16.5% At &

RIBEFBRCEMERE(CEMERE]D
REFREREZEEAAA - A2008F 1 A1
Bt AEBERPREZHBRARZME A
25% o

HZEZ2018F3A3IHILEFE #RH(TH
BREBELEZHBREMGSHIEYN
154,369,000 7T * &L HE — & Q7
ZW N 2B ER (518 R
44) - —EERGXEEREELECE
Az (NS EEERENAM 2 Z5) A
R EA0%EH

B A1994F1 A1H B E R 2R EA
REME - I8 ERETHO) LKA
1995F 1 A27 BB £ 2 (R 2E AR £ H
Bl + 3 R ERETROIERMBAD) - A
REBENEEFR L ERE  BEY
K2 B 75 BR B 2 RN ¥9 B R 38 (B BB (AR R (P
FEANRHEME L IEEREITED) KA
E AR ETE) A BE30% E60% % 2 2
R REA T IBER -



15. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

mt) RESEER AT 2019¢$&w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HILFE
15. B8 (&)
AFEZMET HEEGEEWRERATTIBRIHR

Al Bl 2 ST BRI T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation BR B A1 5 89,084 714,220
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable %75 B a) A # = i@ B 2 i XK
in the respective jurisdictions FE A 20,663 122,438
Tax effect of share of results of associates/ H{EH & AT,/ AL E
joint ventures ZHBEE (7,210) (16,899)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR AFEAATNRFSZ
tax purpose MG E 23,642 34,322
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ERBHEBERBRKAZ
purpose HEe 2 (3,226) (13,481)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FEERBMEEREBZHBETE 3,768 5,545
Tax effect of other deductible temporary R VEME SR E fh 0] 3055 Ba i = 28
difference not recognised 2 243 55,390
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B) B Al ;R R ZBMISEEZ
previously not recognised Mg & (4,075) (279)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible ) B 5 B R WE SR 7 E A A F00RL
temporary difference previously not EREE BB E
recognised (14,628) (95)
Effect of LAT in respect of the fair value RIEWERNFEEZHER
changes in investment properties T B ER 2 8 8,049 38,723
Effect of reversal of LAT in respect of BRERMEFERR L
stock of properties HER T2 - (5,425)
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of BMEFERR T HIZER 2
properties 2 - 216
Tax effect of LAT THRER I RETE (2,012) (8,379)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFE(BBEEE BETR (486) 381
Taxation charge for the year REFEHEL N 24,728 212,461
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HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

16.

17.

DISTRIBUTION

No dividend was recognised as distribution during both

years.

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not
to recommend for shareholders’ approval the payment of
any final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:

Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is

based on the following data:

16.

17.

7k
MEREAMEFEANEREDIR -
ARAREEREEARATESZREIMERNS
HE2019F3A31HILFE 2 (M KM
B(2018 : ) o

BERERN

ARRFEEAREFESREAREER
T RIA T BURFTEBH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the FILAGtE &R E AR K # 55
Company for the purpose of basic and B2 RNAREEB AES
diluted earnings per share FEHF 49,208 477,390
2019 2018
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE & th 8B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT EESRELRZF 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 37 IR N RE T ¥ 8 5,519,580,572 5,414,865,837
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in O 1T AR IR B
respect of share options exercised BELRRkowE — 164,659
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FLAst E GRS ER T~

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

3B B N F 15 8

5,619,580,572 5,415,030,496

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both
years does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options which the exercise price is higher than the

average market price of the Company’s shares.

MEFEZBREFRMNNTELEBRE
TEARRBZBERE LR REITEE
BRARBERMZFHHE -
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HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. M5 - R RE

Furniture,
Port LPG and CNG Motor fixtures
infrastructure  logisticsand  vehicles and
Plant and Port andrelated  distribution and computer Construction
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities vessels equipment in progress Total
B ABRER RE-
171 BOEER BEXARY AER £EBR
- ES Rk BORE HAERE ARIERE i EHRE GEIE Ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL FET TEL FET FET TEL TET TEL FET
COsT BA
At 1 April 2017 R201754A18 194,918 7975 161,450 570,263 488,458 141,123 44,999 276,010 1,875,196
Exchange realignment [ i, Z§ & 20,250 781 15,164 56,012 47,804 12,324 4,034 26,716 183,085
Additions NE 902 - 980 6,512 187 4,655 3,721 75,686 92,643
Transfers 25 23,635 - 11,460 1,812 - 5,481 493 (42,781) —
Transfer to investment ~ EEEREM ¥
properties (169) - - - - - — - (169)
Transfer to prepaid lease EEEAENTAE
payments HE - - - - - - - (86,471)  (36,471)
Disposal RE 91) - (5,448) (400) (463) (25,399) (2,329 - (34,130)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 239,345 8,756 173,606 634,199 535,986 138,184 50,918 299,160 2,080,154
Exchange realignment & 5 5§ % (13,984) (511) (10,139 (36,876) (31,755) (7,632) (2,681) (17,269)  (120,847)
Additions NE - - 253 2,106 308 1,091 2,188 84,153 90,094
Transfers I - - 2,467 2,173 13 204 50 (4,907) —
Transfer to investment ~ EEZRENE
properties (42) — - — — - — - (42)
Disposal RE (8,312) - (7,037) (717) (207,753) (13,175) 618) — (287,612
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 217,007 8,245 159,150 600,885 296,794 118,672 49,857 361,137 1,811,747
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 ®2017F4A1H 39,408 7,178 26,089 29,788 259,409 69,852 29,407 - 461,131
Exchange realignment [ % 3% 4,674 702 2,849 3,558 34,094 5,740 2,589 - 54,206
Provided for the year AFEE R 17,038 - 10,191 13,667 32,235 10,458 4,748 - 88,337
Impairment loss HEEBER
recognised (note) (Kt i) — — — — 148,049 — — — 148,049
Eliminated on transferto & E R &M ¥ E
investment properties Eag] (133) — - — — - — - (133)
Eliminated on disposal & & % %1 84 (23) - (4,108) (116) (256)  (23,126) (2,168) - (29,794)
At 31 March 2018 R201853A31H 60,964 7,880 35,024 46,897 473,531 62,924 34,576 - 721,796
Exchange realignment [ % 3% (3,554) (460) (2,033 (2,696) (28,092 (3,373 (1,755) - (41,963)
Provided forthe year ~ AFEiHR 6,412 - 10,429 13,739 8,036 8,211 3,539 - 50,366
Eliminated on transferto 8 % 1% & 1) ¥ 5%
investment properties Eaf] (26) - - - - - - - (26)
Eliminated on disposal i & B ¥ 4 (5,146) — (5,356) (247) (205,022 (10,989 (581) - (227,341)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 58,650 7,420 38,064 57,693 248,453 56,773 35,779 - 502,832
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 158,357 825 121,086 543,192 48,341 61,899 14,078 361,137 1,308,915
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3H31H 178,381 876 138,582 587,302 62,455 75,260 16,342 299,160 1,358,358
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the period of the
relevant leases or fifty
years, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%
Port equipment 6%
Port infrastructure and 2%—-20%

related facilities
LPG and CNG logistics and 4%-10%
distribution facilities
Motor vehicles and vessels  2.6%—-20%
Furniture and fixtures 8%—-20%
Computer equipment 20%-33"/,%

note: Minsheng Gas, who operates LPG and CNG fueling stations and a
LPG storage-tank farm in Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC, had
successfully transformed five CNG fueling stations from LPG
fueling stations in prior years, which the CNG distribution business
of Minsheng Gas had delivered a more stable profit margin to
Minsheng Gas. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
had been devising solution to strengthen the profitability and sale
performance of Minsheng Gas, with a decision that the remaining
LPG fueling stations would be gradually transformed into CNG
fueling stations while the use of LPG storage-tank farm would be
changed from storage for its own fueling stations to provision of
storage and barging services to external parties. In view of the
transformation, the directors of the Company had reassessed the
useful lives of relevant assets relating to Minsheng Gas and had
considered that certain of the property, plant and equipment and
the intangible assets had shorter estimated useful lives resulting in
accelerated depreciation and amortisation respectively. Due to the
nature of the LPG storage-tank farm where no transaction of
similar assets at the locality could be identified, it was not possible
to determine the fair value less costs of disposal because there
was no basis for making a reliable estimate of the amount
obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledge and willing parties. Therefore, its recoverable
amount had been determined on the basis of its value in use by
the LPG distribution business of Minsheng Gas before the
transformation and provision of storage and barging services to
external parties after the transformation.

18. ¥ - WK R (&)

bt - R m (R TREIN A
BIABESENE S0

BF fEEE S E sk
50F (AR E &

W Ko 5% 10%

BORE 6%

BOERENEBRE 2%-20%
AL AR & R 4E 4%-10%

KRR R R 5 88
B N e A 2.6%-20%
RAREE 8%-20%
ER B 20%-33"/,%
Wiar RAER ARG E IS BRETELRIA

SR B 48 KA SRS v AN — fEDR AL
RFEEL RBEFERDSREREAO
HRNRIE R BB AR AR MR - RAE
AMZEBEBRRARDHEBERRERM
ER-EEREMNENE - REE201843
ABIHLFE AEEDHERARTER M
ReRERBZANENREERE #T
AL B RN U S R A R R R R AR
FANR - MR AREEELERASE
ENMRUIERBELREE RMINIPEL R
HEFRBRRE REZXEAIR AR
ﬂﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁéﬂﬁﬁia‘?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@@i
RER - D B R 1%&%%%
ﬁéZﬁﬁTﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁE%ﬁh 2R
ﬂﬂiﬁ%%&%iﬁf)Hﬂﬁé“&{tEiéﬂﬁﬁ%Fﬁ%iﬂ
ZMEBEER - HAEI R I M A R 2 R R
EEXD BATEAENHAERERESR
ETRAFXHGPHELEANRBSZLHE
EH A ST BB AERE X FEER
FHERAZEE At KA O EES
RIFEERE QRIE AR R D HEB N
BRAEIMEREE DREAMREEE BN
AR R SN B0 B A B M AE Kl BIR 75 R
FR{EERETE
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

note:

(Continued)

Its recoverable amount as at 31 March 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$54,833,000 had been arrived at on the basis of
its value in use carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. Its value in use calculation used cash flow projection
covering 14.5 years’ period, which was the expected remaining
useful lives of the relevant assets at a discount rate of 11.25%, and
a steady growth rate of 3% for price and relevant costs throughout
the 14.5 years’ period, which the projection had been determined
based on the management’s expectation for economic element
affecting the industry and the market and the expected inflation
rate in the PRC. Accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$148,049,000 (2019: Nil) was recognised to profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2018 in respect of property, plant and
equipment of the Group.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

18. % - MWK RE (&)
Wit : (8)

HR2018F3A3THZA B 5L A
54,833,000 7L * AR MiEEETERERE
BERAR(HAKENEBEZBILAER
EEGEM ANEFERABEREEEIT
B -HOHABRESREBIRE BH145%F
(BB EEZ BB TERTH) BhE X
11.25% + LA I (B 1% K FE B A AN 38 R R R #%
USFREAMETHEFNI%TEFAE
B-BHBADNEREEBHYEITERT
S EEREZZHEHNARPER 2 EHBR
RET-FHI B ZE2018F3A31IALFE
RAEBMYE BERESBZREBRR
18 25 BR #E 3R 49148,049,00078 JT (2019 : 4) ©
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HZE2019F3A31ALFE
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REME
Leasehold
properties Developed Land under
in the PRC land development Total
RABEZ
HEWME EEELH BEE R 1t &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note fifzta) (note fffztb)
FAIR VALUE NFERE
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 418 245,361 285,553 558,691 1,089,605
Exchange realignment M o, § 24,265 35,358 54,155 113,778
Transfer from property, plant and E - R RE
equipment, other intangible assets  H & i & & %
and prepaid lease payments BERNHEEREEA 11,925 - - 11,925
Additions NE — — 7,649 7,649
Disposal RE (176) - - (176)
Net increase (decrease) in fair value 454 W& R A FE
recognised in the consolidated RZRFEEEM
income statement GRb) R4 6,672) 153,191 (18,760) 127,759
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H 274,703 474,102 601,735 1,350,540
Exchange realignment R (16,002) (27,619) (35,050) (78,671)
Transfer from property, plantand ¥ 3 - # i M 3& & M
equipment and prepaid lease BEREEHRHEEA
payments 2,386 — — 2,386
Additions NE 3,285 - 8,940 12,225
Disposal BE (717) — — (717)
Net increase in fair value recognised FA4R & Iz & W FER
in the consolidated income 2T EEEM
statement FH 5,633 17,578 15,507 38,718
At 31 March 2019 2019463 A31H 269,288 464,061 591,132 1,324,481




mt) REEEER AR 2019 FR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes:

(@) In prior years, the Group completed the reclamation of certain land
area and obtained the certificate of completion of land reclamation
(the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project engineering and
construction manager in respect of certain land area (the “Formed
Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon obtaining the
certificate, such Formed Land held for capital appreciation had
been recognised as land held under operating lease and classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

(b) In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work
to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed”). Upon
the commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being
Formed that held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as
investment properties had been recognised as land under
development and classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out as at those dates by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer engaged by the Group. The
management works closely with the external qualified
professional valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
and inputs for fair value measurement and reports to the
board of directors from period to period.

In determining the fair value of leasehold properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
The comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

19. RE W= (&)

et

@ MNBEFERN AFEZKRTBEIHES
TR MAETIR UFET LR
(EFBL)REHAAERERIRZRE
EREHERZERRAEL 2B E((ZE
ED - RMSZBEER  ZFEELEEZ
EFRERITHEERARELEHERAEZ
T WA BRABRREREDE -

b BRAPREIHGEET THERHEIAEBIR
mME AEBCERMITHFEIR(ZTE
EEADTUTFEE@ARES)((TEH -
W) BEMATEK REABRLHFEIR
B BEREMERBEER HNEREEZ
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the highest
and best use of the Formed Land is for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. The comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of
recent transacted prices of comparable lands is made.
Comparable lands of similar size, characteristic and
location are analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of capital values. Certain costs, including government
levies and all necessary fees and expenses associated
with the change of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use to be charged by the government, which are the best
estimate based on the latest information available to the
management of the Company, have been considered in
arriving at the fair value of the Formed Land.

In determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the
same highest and best use and the same comparison
method are adopted and valuation has been considered
for further costs to be expended for the development of
the Land Being Formed into Formed Land. Further costs
for completing the land leveling process and other
development works as at 31 March 2019 are estimated to
be approximately HK$463 million (2018: HK$476 million).

One of the key inputs used in valuing the leasehold
properties is the market price per square meter of
comparable properties which ranged from RMB410 to
RMB13,725 (2018: RMB432 to RMB13,352), using direct
comparison approach and taking into account of the
difference in the nature, location and condition. The
increase in the market price per square meter of
comparable properties would result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment properties, and vice versa.

One of the key unobservable inputs is the 20% of saleable
land discount on the comparable lands applied by the
valuer in valuing the Formed Land and Land Being
Formed. A slight change in the saleable land discount
used would result in a significant change in fair value
measurement of the Formed Land and Land Being
Formed, while a slight change in the unobservable inputs
in valuing the leasehold properties would have no
significant effect to their fair value.

19. RE W= (&)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
and methodology used in the prior year. The fair value
hierarchy of the measurement of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2019 is Level 3. There are no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

For the Formed Land, the Group may have to obtain
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these
certificates for the Group.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale, property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

O rezmomaa 2019¢$&W
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

REW* (H)

PRz mERT RS ZEEFLEE
B o HEWETER2019F3A3IBZA

FEEF i&t’j%_ﬁ& FR RE=ZRYL
HEFELHMME  AREXFNEET

BEEENELE RENELR A2
AEERARAEENDBZERERLE
BEREH -

BRRETIEHE

R2019F K2018F3 A3 I B 22 8
URHEIHECERIBEERR A& E
FETIMTEERERZRARE - RN
FERIRMARE  AIET THEE 2 EH
g UKEBEERRAANIZERES
BESERBRYE WE EHERRE
S EME(WER) -

BANHEHENRE

AEBEZBNEEFBRLEONIERS B
L

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHETT

Non-current assets IEMBEE 302,131 342,192
Current assets MEEE 4,180 4,766
306,311 346,958
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22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22 HtET&EE

Motor
vehicles Club and Premium on
registration golf club leasehold Rights of Customer
marks memberships land operation base  Know-how Total
=L
BE BEAR HELTH
BB efes ZHE mEE EFER R RE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note fifzta)  (note fifztb)  (note fifiFc) (note fifztd)  (note fifiFe)  (note ffiF)
COST D
At 1 April 2017 R2017F 4818 1,168 830 19,104 41,154 2,328 2,408 66,992
Exchange realignment E H & - 75 1,652 4,028 228 236 6,219
Transfer to investment ~ EEZE R A Y ¥
properties — - (4,519) - - — (4,519)
At 31 March 2018 201843 A31H 1,168 905 16,237 45,182 2,556 2,644 68,692
Exchange realignment &5 AR — (49) (947) (2,636) (150) (154) (3,936)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 1,168 856 15,290 42,546 2,406 2,490 64,756
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 /18 . 56 10,632 8,643 2,328 2,187 23,846
Exchange realignment &N A% - 7 1,014 2,429 228 226 3,904
Provided for the year REER - 47 219 32,755 - 231 33,252
Eliminated on transfer to 3% % 1% & ¥ % #5
investment properties Eog] — - (770) — — — (770)
At 31 March 2018 »20184F3A31H — 110 11,095 43,827 2,556 2,644 60,232
Exchange realignment [ERE RS - @) (646) (2,555) (150) (154) (3,512
Provided for the year KEEIE — 46 137 849 — — 1,032
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H - 149 10,586 42,121 2,406 2,490 57,752
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A 318 1,168 707 4,704 425 — — 7,004
At 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31H 1,168 795 5,142 1,355 — — 8,460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

notes:

(@)

The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the
opinion that the motor vehicles registration marks are worth at
least their carrying values.

For the club membership in Hong Kong which has indefinite useful
life, the directors are of the opinion that it is worth at least its
carrying value.

For the golf club membership in the PRC, the amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 17 years.

The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan
and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the
acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to be
amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease
payments over 33 to 70 years.

Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the period of estimated
operation and the operation licence period of 50 years.

Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation was provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for motor
vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation was provided on a
straight-line basis over 10 years.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. BEQNTRES

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Cost of unlisted investments in associates, &I S QT Z KA
less impairment MR A 411,854 411,854

Share of post-acquisition profits, other HEWESST  HEmimem

comprehensive income and other Wk EMEE MKRE K
reserves, net of dividends received f% 8 242,737 322,474
654,591 734,328

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the unlisted
investments include:

M

48.23% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of South Shore Holdings Limited (“South
Shore”), which is engaged in building construction,
civil engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management
services and investment in properties; and

40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and operates the container
terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2019 and 2018 are set out in Note 54(c).

MR2019F3 A31H &2018E3A31H » 3
FHiREE:

(i)

RREZEEEERAAI(RER
¥]) 24823% W AR R A A
HEEBEBRAR(EEER]D 2
FE2EMBAR REEFEE . -
AT HREE -HEBEEE- - RE
REEEERBRMERE R

RIEHHBERERETEARA
AT &ERE ] EA Z240%MK & 12
@ RARRRPEERZFINEE
X EFEIGEIRERLESRR
A58 -

REEBES T EHE QA R20194 £2018
F3A31H ZFBEINF M 5E54() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

On 14 September 2017, the Group disposed of 45%
equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited (“Nantong
Port Group”) (Note 44), which was a sino-foreign joint
venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong Port
Group was principally engaged in providing cargo loading
and off loading, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, ship
anchoring, ship repairing, port machinery, shipping
logistics and ship piloting services in Nantong Port,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s share of
results of Nantong Port Group was determined based on
its financial information available to the Group as at the
date of disposal on 14 September 2017.

The financial year end date of Jiangyin Sunan is 31
December and its latest financial information that is
available to the Group is in respect of its financial year
ended 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the Group’s
share of results and interests in the principal associate at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are determined based on the
financial information of the associate for the years ended
and as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. No
significant transaction or event is noted between the year
end dates of the associate and of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin
Sunan based on financial information prepared by
management in accordance to accounting policies of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
is set out below:

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

23. BE TR (&)

MR2017F 9148 - RSB EREEB
PEEBRA2A(EABDSEE]) (T
44) 2 45% B A Em - BB N & B A —
ERABEEMohIIEELE - mEBED
SEXERFREIGEAEBENSERHESE
mEH HF BERE BEEK B
MRS - fMmME - BERMIEE -
A R AR RS MR o

HZE2018F3A3IBILFE  KAEB#(E
FEBOEBRZEETIRN2017F9 14
B(LEBRBB AEEAUSZ2HBEERG

st
= o
T

Tetme MR FELEER A12A318 ¢
MASBENB &I KENARSHE
2018 F12A31H LB FE 2 & Ht o
It NEER20194F Kk2018F3 H31 H #
CZREXTERERR 2 EERERZ D
Bz N R R E £2018F R2017F 12
ABLEFERRZEBH MK ER
HE HEREBERRZFEAEAEEH
PEROBEATESETNEAR S E
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

23. BE TR (&)

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
A2018% R20174F
12H31H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Financial position: B i AR
Non-current assets JEMEBEE 140,869 158,465
Current assets mEEE 502,557 489,371
Current liabilities mEAE (21,864) (23,040)
Non-current liabilities EmEasE (2,362) (2,783)
Net assets attributable to the owners of BENREEARBGEEFE
the associate 619,200 622,013
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying £ & & /% (& BBt 2 N 5 i 2
amount of the interest in the associate: IREEZ R :
Net assets attributable to the owners of the B4 A BB AE(REE FE
associate 619,200 622,013
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7K £ E (5B & A B % B fEfE S
in the associate sl 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REB HBMENGERZ
the associate EmEE 247,680 248,805
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
HZE2018%F HZE2017F
12A31H 12H31H
IEFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Results of the associate: iR /NCTE
Revenue I@N 105,648 103,091
Profit (loss) for the year FEHEF (B8) 33,399 (17,219)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year FEHE 2@ (FX)
g (36,212) 56,623
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year  FE 2 & (5 %) Yg
EEa (2,813) 39,404
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The financial information in respect of Paul Y. Engineering
and its subsidiaries based on financial information
prepared by management in accordance with accounting
policies of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 is set out below:

23.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

BE QT RER (B)

EBRREZERHENB RARNEE2019F
K2018F3 AT A IEFE 2 M 7% & K (E
REBBRBASESHBRER VB
BRI

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial position: B i AR5
Non-current assets IERBEE 323,250 283,636
Current assets MENVEE 4,518,617 4,756,610
Current liabilities REAE (3,988,952)  (4,026,727)
Non-current liabilities EnEBEE (9,227) (6,836)
Net assets attributable to the owners of the H¢& AT A AE(EEEFE
associate 843,688 1,006,683
Reconciliation of its net assets to the HEEFEHEBE R A #ER
carrying amount of the interest in the FRE B 2 H R
associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners of the & A E B AFE(EEE FE
associate 843,688 1,006,683
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest < £ & {5 Bt & A &) A HEE R
in the associate 2t 48.23% 48.23%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin -~ A&EBE Z B2 A RIER 2
the associate REE 406,911 485,523
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 23, Bf& N E# = ()

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Results of the associate: iR /N
Revenue WA 9,347,637 6,799,529
Profit for the year FEHF 41,167 31,966
Other comprehensive (expense) income for  FEZ H it 2 M (A X) W=
the year (10,097) 17,015
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>HEK=BE 31,070 48,981
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of BENTUNRSREFRBESERBEER
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of EESEEAEEEE 2ERNBRAEE
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by B =R E KRR H -
the Group.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of
losses of one (2018: one) of the associates. The

NG B A% ERE R S — ] (2018 ¢
BRAZER Rt AERAEEBEE
BeRERREEREERRBOT

accumulated unrecognised share of losses attributable to
the Group (based on unaudited management accounts)

are as follows:

— ) Bt

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses Rt R ERE LB E N7 2
of the associate BB (54,770) (54,770)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24, S EES
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures KWERIFELTEEDE
Ak 7N 113,838 86,663
Share of post-acquisition profits and other BEE R 25 F &
comprehensive expense, net of dividends received H 2 mE B X - Nk
BB 4,608 9,538
118,446 96,201
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 March 2019 REB A ZDER2019F K20184F3 A
and 2018 are set out in Note 54(d). 318 Z#F1BEH IR E54(d) °
The summarised financial information below represents T ERENIZHMEEAR
the consolidated financial information of ¥ T 55t S %5 NE R H BB RQ TN 588 R B 5
R /A &) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, i 4588 R 53 ERABZEEMBEN ZZUBEHR
AR 7], which is prepared in accordance with B AEE G HERRMAK o

accounting policies of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

HZE2019F3A31ALFE
24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24, S ¥R (E)
(CONTINUED)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Financial position: B i AR
Non-current assets ERBEE 219,046 232,251
Current assets BN EE 5,807 7,061
Current liabilities ME B & (15,559) (22,109)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (23,358) (24,805)
Net assets of the joint venture AEPEEEFE 185,936 192,402
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying EEEFEEAZLLE
amount of the interest in the joint venture: HERIREE R
Net assets of the joint venture AEEDPEEETFE 185,936 192,402
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestinthe AKNEBEGHALCEER
joint venture S Z A 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint KNEBE A& XD
venture 2 BREE 92,968 96,201
Results of the joint venture: BRDEER
Revenue A 11,224 12,084
Profit for the year FERF 4,748 4,858
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year FE H 2 m ()
W5 (11,214) 16,936
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year E &2 E (B U258 %8 (6,466) 21,794

The Group shares loss of approximately HK$1,697,000
(2018: Nil) and carrying amount of approximately
HK$25,478,000 (2018: Nil) in aggregate from joint
ventures that are individually not material to the Group.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
Group.

ZERENMEEAEBETERZEED
¥ FEEAHABEZEEELEZEE
#71,697,00078 JT (2018 : 4 ) K BR H (E 4
25,478,000 7T (2018 : f&) °

EEMEUREBRETAKESEBER
SESEERKE L 2ERKBRNEE
NI ESZ BN ERRS



25.

iy wes

BER AR 2019 Fik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mo RN

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31AILEFE

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 25. ERTEKE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Listed equity securities, at quoted market Lmkﬁ E5  BREEBZ

price in Hong Kong (note a) 5 HwAE (ffita) 14,956 31,272
PRC unlisted equity securities (note b) s I FETRARFE S (K itb) 360,889 405,554
375,845 436,826

notes:

As at 31 March 2019, the investment in Hong Kong listed equity
securities represents 4.47% (2018: 4.47%) equity interests in
South Shore.

As at 31 March 2019, the investments in unlisted equity securities
are stated at fair value and include:

0] 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co”), which is
engaged in the business of development of port and related
infrastructures of approximately HK$360,560,000 (2018:
HK$405,204,000); and

(ii) less than 20% interests in certain PRC companies held by
Yichang Port Group Limited (the “Yichang Port Group”), a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which are
mainly engaged in port related services of approximately
HK$329,000 (2018: HK$350,000).

A reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques appropriate to the market and industry of each
investment. Valuation techniques used to support these valuations
include the asset-based approach which uses the fair market value
of its total assets minus its total liabilities, and the market approach
which uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
businesses.

In determining the fair value of property assets of Yangkou Port Co
under the asset-based approach, the comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of recent
transacted prices of comparable lands is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are analysed
in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

et

MR2019F3A31H  REBLTRAZSRZ
EH4.47%(2018 : 4.47%) F = 52 B AL HE -

M201963A31H IR AFEEIENIEL
MRAFESRZIE B :

() WREAORMABEEREEREL Y
IEFOBREMEARAR(FD
B AE]) 29.9% % # - 360,560,000
# 7T (2018 : 405,204,000/ 7T) + &

(ii) FTEREEOHBRBECES ﬁéﬁﬂ‘%
BEERETARESEEEE®]
$@EZ#%§WE@W%%%Z
BEFHRBERAZTB20%EZ " B
329,000 7t (2018 : 350,000 7T.) °

AFEBEZAEGFANDERAERKEZD
BSRITEERZEETEETE - BRXFZ
SREZFHESNZEERAEEREZ(ERE
BAEREBBBEZAFHE RTHEWR
)ﬂfﬁff&&}‘f&*@ﬁﬂi—ﬁﬁttﬁ;ﬁ?iii‘%
XS SMELZEMERER) -

BEEEERIETFOBELRIMELRE
ZAFEER AU E Rz &I
RREERERNAEEZ LEBL WHE - ¥
B RMEEE Z A E LB MEETON A
MERNEBEERAFLE-
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25.

26.

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

25

notes: (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

A key unobservable input being 20% of saleable land discount on
comparable lands of Yangkou Port Co to discount the fair value of
properties by approximately HK$3,019 million (2018: HK$3,539
million), has been applied in valuing the properties. A slight
increase in the saleable land discount used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value measurement of the properties
and hence of the unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5%
increase in the saleable land discount (i.e. revised to 25%), holding
all other variables constant, carrying amount of the properties
would decrease by approximately HK$755 million (2018: HK$885
million), and fair value of the Group’s investment in corresponding
equity instrument would decrease by approximately HK$20 million
(2018: HK$21 million).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive certain construction floor areas of the New
Premises as compensation (the “Compensation”) within
four years from the date of surrender. On 22 December
2017, Yichang Port Group received a notification from the
local government office that the compensation shall be
received by first quarter of 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Resumption
Properties were transferred to the local government and
the fair value of the Compensation, estimated as
RMB74,420,000 (approximately HK$93,025,000), was
recognised as deemed consideration and was
approximate to the carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2019, the New Premises are still under
construction.

26.

EETARE (&)

Wizt - (%)
) (&)

MEGERAZ —BEEFABEIE ALY
BAREFEOBRRAE LS LM 220%0A]
HETHITE  AEWEZRAFEENED
30.1918 7 7T (2018 : 35.3918 & T ) » Al $5 &
THITERER LA SERMERIELD
BRAFSHZAFEEFEEBEERNRD Kk
ZIRR o E A E LI £ 5% (BEET
225%)  MATEEMEBEHRFTE  AlWE
ZEEEE KR D #7655 % L (2018 : 8.85
BAEAT)RAEBERBEEETIAREZR
B & #5 38 2 #92,000& 78 7T (2018 : 2,100
EET) e

HthkRBEE

R2013F3A8H BEEB K EEE ;
BRRAZER B RAEMBNERE
FTHENTHEBEDED AERESER
(IFEF) - MEESBERBERNER
HEEMFNEESENEM A TEEER
HEERME([ZMED - R2017F12 A
220 EHEABEBEEEMABRNHRAE
WA EBR2020F E —FE R ERZE

f& -

REE2014F3A3MBIEFE - #HEBWY
EEBREEHHRN  ZHEZATEA
(55t A AR #74,420,0007T (#793,025,000
BL)BERARERELHEREBEMRS °

R2019F 3 A31H » FEFTINERRS
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27. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 27. MEFE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Properties under development for sale (note a) it H & 72 &4 2 (ff 5+a) 1,129,309 1,179,235
Completed properties held for sale (note b) D IHFEHEWME (KiFb) 427,555 448,021
1,556,864 1,627,256

notes:

Properties under development for sale are situated in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. They comprise (1) Land Being Formed which is
developed for future sale; and (2) Formed Land which is also
developed for future sale in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2019, properties under development for sale
amounting to approximately HK$368,101,000 (2018:
HK$386,512,000) are carried at net realisable value.

At 31 March 2019, properties under development for sale include
Formed Land of approximately HK$711,636,000 (2018:
HK$747,316,000) for which the Group may have to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed Land. Based
on the past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates for
the Group.

Completed properties held for sale are situated in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. At 31 March 2019, completed properties held
for sale amounting to approximately HK$240,368,000 (2018:
HK$240,478,000) are carried at net realisable value.

At 31 March 2019, stock of properties includes an amount
of approximately HK$920,698,000 (2018: HK$959,837,000)
which is expected to be realised after more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

et

HHEEZYEURNPEIHE - KESY
MBERAEBREEZFER LB LK
—REBBETRAEERBEBREEZ
EPELH-

oH

20194 3A318 X EEEME D
368,101,0003% 7T (2018 : 386,512,000 T )
1A SR FE D R o

M201963A3TH HHEEEEMEBRELN
711,636,000 7T (2018 : 747,316,000 7T )
ZEFELH MALSETREETAESR
EZPHEZDFE L - BIBUAELER - &
ARAEERBAEERDEZERZERT
fEE KRR -

ERIHELEMENMRPBRIHSE - B
20194 3A31A  E IHELEDEY
240,368,0003% 7T (2018 : 240,478,000 T )
1A SR FE D R o

MR2019F3ABTH  MEGFEREEHG
RBEHTHEEBRRA T _EARER 2 S
%8 #7920,698,00078 7T (2018 : 959,837,000
BT °
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28. LOANS RECEIVABLE 28. EWER

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT

The amounts, net of allowance, include: BREAZE (K EE) 25
Fixed-rate loans receivable (note a) FEUWE E R EE R (Hita) 164,200 304,000
Floating-rate loans receivable (note b) FEUOZ B FIRE (M iEb) 66,122 68,700
230,322 372,700

29.

notes:

The loans receivables bear interest rate from 11% to 15% (2018:
11% to 12%) and are repayable within one year (2018: one year).
The amounts are unsecured, except for an amount of
HK$129,000,000 (2019: Nil) was secured by a first fixed charge
over assets maintained in the borrower’s securities account as at
31 March 2018.

The loans receivable are unsecured, bear variable interest rate
from 5% to 6% over the Best Lending Rate of Hong Kong Dollar
as quoted by The Hong Kong Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (“HKBLR”) (i.e. 10.125% to 11.125% (2018: 10% to 11%))
and are repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in Note 45(b).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts, net of allowance, are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand, except for an amount of
HK$68,600,000 (2018: HK$75,000,000) which bears
variable interest at 2% over HKBLR (i.e. 7.125% (2018: 7%))
per annum.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in Note 45(b).

29.

et

@ ERERAIEZRI5E (2018 11EE12E)
ZHEFBE WAR-—FRNEEQO8: —
F) o ZERBEREEIF - HER2018F3 A31
A % % 4 129,000,0007% 7T (2019 : &) 7 FIE
TAEBERABEFOMBZEERE —E
TEAR SRR A -

b) EBREZRAERE  LAEELEELRT
BERARIZAELREREEN (B TE
BEEEF X)) MsEZ6E(AN10.125 B &=
11.125F (2018 : 10 B =11 [E)) 2 7 8 7l X
FHE WERBEREE-

HE2019F3A31HILFE 2 MEFIEHFE
15 &R T 5 45(0) ©

FE Wx Bt & 1 Bl RIR

ERARENGRER AEER 28 RE
R EREE - M — 5 S % /68,600,000
7L (2018 : 75,000,0007% 7T) LA T & B &
BEEFRZR2E(BN7.125FE (2018 : 7/&))
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30. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, 0. EZRHMERER Tk
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RN

2019 2018

HK$’000 HIK$'000

FERT FET

Trade debtors (note) B 5 EBBER (i) 126,219 100,146

Deposits and prepayments S E 91,225 73,066

Interest receivable & U B 12,436 5,000

Other receivables for port business 7O T 2 H o FE YRR K 3,850 2,795
Other receivables for properties development ¥ % 2 & 12 #5 & 2 H {th fE Uk

and sale BRI 21,466 27,193
Other receivables for resort project in RPREERER ZHMEW

the PRC R 6,628 6,278

Others Hb 48,785 50,630

Total 45t 310,609 265,108

note: As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018, trade receivables from Kt : 201943 A31H NM2018F4/A1H & B

contracts with customers amounted to HK$125,706,000 and
HK$100,146,000 respectively. The Group’s credit terms for
customers of ports and logistics segment normally range from 30
days to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for
credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

BEAEHNZBAZESRERERD B A
125,706,000 J© & 100,146,000 7T » A& &
BEORYMRSHZBEFPZEESH —KH
30HEQRANRE -

NEZAMAEE NREEBRRER
BOREEFNBERTET ZREDMN
wmr

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 90 days 90H A 109,263 82,625
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 HEMN180H A 16,240 17,271
More than 180 days H 180 H 716 250

126,219 100,146
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30. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in Note 45(b).

30. EZREMEBWERNR FTE€R
K| ()

et - ()

note: (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$25,464,000 which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, HK$3,172,000 has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default as they have no
history of defaulting on repayments. The Group does not hold any
collateral over the balances.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$26,736,000 which were past due at the end of the reporting
period for which impairment loss had not been recognised. Trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired have no history
of defaulting on repayments.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired:

HR2019F3A31H  AEB & 5 EUKEMR
4 4 B 3E 48 BE T (B /425,464,000 JT 2 & UL
R BARBEBAREBHCEE - B2 H
,uﬁ%qﬂ 3,172,000 7L E E Hi90 A sk LA L -
BERRZEESRT ERRHENS 28 R
TRAEBN ANEEVERZSEBRITEMT
3K o

M2018F3A31H AEE 2 E 5 EUER
%5 8B 4E 48 BR T {8 /526,736,000 7T 2 & Uk
ER BERBRAREHRASCIBEY
MERBEEE RPN ERECESE
W AR SR R HR (BN 2 40 B o

EFHERTREZE S BUKRFRIER

2018
HK$'000
FHT

Overdue: BER -
Within 90 days 90H A 23,029
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 H BN 180H A 3,457
More than 180 days HBiB180H 250
26,736
The directors of the Company considered that there had not been AKANREERE ZEE5EWNEZF ZZE

a significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and
there was no recent history of default and therefore the amounts
were considered recoverable.

The movement of allowance for doubtful debts for the year ended
31 March 2018 is as follows:

E%Iﬁiﬁ“ﬂﬁ BRSWETR L
B SRRRER] T U E

BZE2018F3AN AL FEZRIRBRERZY
mE

2018

HK$’000

FHT

Balance at beginning of the year ¢ e 3,450
Amounts written off as uncollectible S B W Bl 88 2 I8 (109)
Amounts reversed during the year i 7\] B [Bl 2 F8 (9995)
Provided for during the year FNEBE 2T 32,869
Exchange realignment I 5 S & 1,878
Balance at end of the year F R 37,092

HE2019F3A3MHIEFE Z REF G
S H A BT E45(0)
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31. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS N FEEEEHKIARE

HELD FOR TRADING

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Listed debt securities, at quoted market ITHMEBES  Zm5HRE
price in
Hong Kong EE 46,829 88,020
Overseas iSEIN 252,412 232,154
299,241 320,174
As at 31 March 2018, debt securities of approximately MR2018F3 A31H » & ¥ %) A&95,654,000
HK$95,654,000 (2019: Nil) were pledged to secure a B2 EREHF019: E)E BAREEAT
borrowing facility obtained by the Group. BEEERE ZIEE-
32. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 32. Sk EEREEZTARKRE
HELD FOR TRADING
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
Listed equity securities, at quoted market ~ FHRA B S - LIS RE
price in
Hong Kong a8 309,950 35,964
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33. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET HEhemEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Unlisted convertible bond measured at fair A FEEBESE 2 IELH G
value 1% & % - 183,539

As at 31 March 2018, the unlisted convertible bond issued
by a Hong Kong listed company bore coupon interest rate
at 10% per annum and was payable at maturity on 26
October 2018 or upon redemption by the issuer.

A reasonable estimate of fair value was determined by
using valuation technique appropriate to the market and
industry of the securities. Valuation technique used to
support the valuation involved the market approach which
used prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable
assets.

In determining the fair value of the convertible bond,
binomial option pricing model was being used. The key
inputs used in the model included a risk-free rate,
expected volatility, dividend yield and discount rate of
14.39% being obtained by referencing to listed bonds with
similar rating.

A key unobservable input being discount rate had been
applied in valuing the convertible bond. A slight increase in
the discount rate used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measurement of the convertible
bond, and vice versa. A 0.5% increase/decrease in the
discount rate, holding all other variables constant, carrying
amount of the convertible bond would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$419,000 and HK$422,000
respectively.

MN2018F3ABIA BAE LM RAEITL
LA BRESZEEFTMNERI0ES
8 WER2018F 10 526 B B HikF sk B 17
INAElESEE

RFEEZEBEHTDRBRESTIS KT
EERMZBETEEE BRXFREE
ZEET RS EMEEERER YR
HRAXAELREEZTERIMELZ
HEEER) -

ErA#RES ATEERERANR =
BEAAEEEER ZEARAZEEH
ASEBERFERRAE  JEHRE  RE
EUARKE2ERUIR 2 ETESF
14.39% BA 37 K o

MEESFsRNEEREER s —EXE
TABRE ASEBERMBE- ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
REMALEA BERAIRKRESZA

BEFEARNERD  R2ITFA- ﬁi:&ﬁﬁ’ﬁ
Hfh SR FTE - IR R G0 " D
05% AJBRESZEEESD AR
H#049419,0007%8 JT & 422,0007%8 7T °
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34. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT

TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$117,000 (2018:
HK$30,557,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.3% to 2.21% (2018: Nil to
1.95%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1.495% (2018: Nil
to 1.495%) per annum.

34.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

BEARTER SHRTHE
RRRGREERES

EERBRTERAERERETAEERZ
—RBITEEMERFRITZFER - B
117,000 7t (2018 : 30,557,000/ 7t) 2 1
RETFHIF EAEARBREHELEL—F
NEEBEE —RBIOIEEZER -Ef
WIAREBEE °

ERFRTEARRIAB LR =ZM@AZE
HRIT I AW & & F03%2.21E (2018 :
TE1BE) ZEEMNE - RITEGFMTE
FEE1495F (2018 : EE1495E) 2 M
15 F & o
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35. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 35 ESRHMEMNRRKRESH
ACCRUED EXPENSES 53
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors B 5 N E b FE A BR TN FE AT SR A5 HR
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period: STER 2T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade creditors ageing analysis based on % ﬁém BHZESENERZ
invoice date: B T
Within 90 days 90 El A 86,645 54,242
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBBI0HEMN180H K 3,456 4,512
More than 180 days @180 H 13,196 16,305
103,297 75,059
Construction costs payables &~ R SRk R 11,949 20,818
Advance receipt from customers WEY B P 23R - 7,648
Other payables for port business BRABOEB Z EMENEK 47,111 50,434
Other payables for staff salaries, retirement B T #H 4 - ER R EMEH 2
and other benefits (note) H Ath jE A~ BR 2R (B aF) 52,288 53,249
Other payables for properties development #%¥ 3R K& 2 HMER R X
and sale 33,117 32,866
Other payables for resort project in the PRC AR ERIEE 2 H i FEA R 12,593 10,693
Retentions held for construction works and  #F{EEZE TR L EZHE 2 RE S
equipment 14,863 16,639
Others Hib 43,014 41,383
Total amounts RIBMBER 318,232 308,789
Less: Amount due within one year shown 5 : R —F NI EI 5] 5K
under current liabilities FHENE (298,733) (286,364)

Amount due after one year —F % BB k18 19,499 22,425




35.

36.

37.

38.

Prl

TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

note: At 31 March 2019, the amount includes other payable of
HK$43,558,000 (2018: HK$47,965,000) which represents staff
salaries, retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based
on agreed payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$19,499,000 (2018: HK$22,425,000) is to be paid after more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is
determined using an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2018: 4.56%)
per annum.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, except for an amount of approximately
HK$4,668,000 (2018: HK$7,435,000) which bears fixed-
rate interest at 6% (2018: 6%) per annum and is repayable
within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest
ranging from 1% to 5.35% (2018: 1% to 5.35%) per
annum, and due within one year (2018: HK$2,478,000
due within one year and HK$101,611,000 due after twelve
months) from the end of the reporting period.

O rezmomaa 2019&%&@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

36.

37.

38.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

B 5 &kEAMEMNKRSRKRESB
x (%&)

Mfat 201943 A31H B & BB IE A
43,558,00078 7T (2018 : 47,965,000 7T )
ZHMEMER DE—@AEO0XBKZE
IHe ERREMERN - ZEHBEZH
O A H #4919,499,0007% T (2018 :
22,425,000 7T) 2 R IE K R & AT & 1%
BB+ @RI WIZERFFN X456
[E (2018 : 4568 ) & F °

B — B E QTR

SREAMER 2B RARNEREH
fi -

W —-—EaEtERE

ZRBRBERER RERANERE
& - 1 — % £94,668,0007%8 7T (2018 :
7,435,000 7T ) Z X IE 3% B E F K K62
(2018 : 6[E) T B R AR —FNEE -

FE 14 3F 122 IR 1 25 =00H

ZERBREERARENF1EES535E
2 B F F A E(2018 : F F| K12 £5.35
BB URHEHTEE —FANEH
(2018 : 2,478,000 7T 2 B — F R &
Hi - 101,611,000/ 7T 2 5% 38 Rl A ) 5 HB
TERBIT_EARKEE) -
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39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 39. BRITREMMER
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITREMERBIE
Bank loans RITER 910,417 1,044,208
Other loans HMmER 133,867 98,459
1,044,284 1,142,667
Analysed as: DA
Secured A 628,195 636,460
Unsecured 4 1 4 416,089 506,207
1,044,284 1,142,667
The bank and other borrowings are WITREMMEREZROT
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —FRIFEEK 674,231 536,235
More than one year, but not exceeding BR—F  BETamE
two years 134,792 341,668
More than two years, but not exceeding BRMFE  ET@BAF
five years 147,747 140,848
More than five years HBiBRE 87,514 123,916
1,044,284 1,142,667
Less: Amount due within one year or on o — FE AR BB EI)
demand shown under current mEBBaEZNA
liabilities (674,231) (536,235)
Amount due after one year — F % BB k18 370,053 606,432
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39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$384,069,000 (2018:
HK$450,206,000) with approximately HK$354,314,000
(2018: HK$323,378,000) repayable within one year,
approximately HK$3,501,000 (2018: HK$126,828,000)
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two
years, and approximately HK$26,254,000 (2018: Nil)
repayable more than two years but not exceeding five
years. The fixed-rate borrowings are carrying interest
ranging from 4.28% to 6.53% (2018: 2.83% to 7%) per
annum. The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate
interest ranging from 3.42% to 6.37% (2018: 2.99% to
6.37%) per annum.

The above other borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$12,325,000 (2018: HK$711,000)
with approximately HK$12,325,000 (2018: HK$55,000)
repayable within one year and no amount (2018:
HK$656,000) repayable more than one year but not
exceeding two years. The fixed-rate borrowings are
carrying interest ranging from 3.5% to 9.9% (2018: 3.5%)
per annum. The remaining other borrowings carry floating-
rate interest ranging from 5.25% to 9% (2018: 5.25% to
5.5%) per annum.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

39. R 17T & H & =k (&)

£t 8R 17 8 R B ¥ £9384,069,0007% T
(2018 : 450,206,000/ 70) Z E B EH - &
f #7354,314,000/%8 7t (2018 : 323,378,000
BIT) AR —FAEE - 43,501,000 7T
(2018 : 126,828,000/ T ) BN B B — F
1848 W F A EE - T 4Y26,254,000% 7T
(2018 : M) AR EBBMFE T8 R FANE
B o ZETEEBB/HRIENT428FE£6.53F
(2018 : 2.83EET7E) 2 FMEF B - H#
WAITERAF BN EGT B - FHEH3.42
[E £6.37[E (2018 : 2.99Z £6.37E) T % »

Lot B A 8 5K B 1 £912,325,000% T
(2018 : 711,000 L) 2 E BfE 5K + B4
12,325,0007% 7T (2018 : 55,000/%8 7T ) B A
—FRNEE ™I FKIE (2018 : 656,000
BIL)ERBB—FETAMFRNEE-
2% E B8 K IE35E £99[E (2018
3B5E) 2 FHMEF B o H e H g 5/
FEAMEHE  FAMENFL25EFE9E
(2018 : 5.25[F &£55E) T % o
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

40. EEF 1B

ATEBRAFERAEFECRRBZE
EEEHEAME  AREBBER -

Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fair value adjustment
on adjustment on project
investment on stock under
properties  of properties development Others Total
BRGTIHER
REWELD WEFEL NV EE
FEEHAE FEERE AE Hith Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET FHET FHET
(note fi1:%)
At 1 April 2017 M2017F4 418 361,193 246,308 85,482 33,347 726,330
Exchange realignment [ 3 & 38,335 23,752 8,368 2,780 73,235
Charge (credit) to Felmk s H
consolidated income (BN) (K1at15)
statement (Note 15) 61,109 (7,440) (9,527) 44,142
Transfer o 498 — (498) —
At 31 March 2018 7201843 431 H 461,135 262,620 93,850 26,102 843,707
Exchange realignment b 5§ % (26,868) (15,322) (5,476) (1,522) (49,188)
Charge to consolidated ~ #RAME R Z
income statement (KtiF15)
(Note 15) 15,603 — 147 15,750
At 31 March 2019 M20193A31H 449,870 247,298 88,374 24,727 810,269

note: Included in the balance approximately HK$256,372,000 (2018:
HK$263,689,000) represents LAT arising from the fair value on
investment properties.

Bat 5t A & f 2 #9256,372,000% JT (2018 :
263,689,000/ L) IE R EME N TFEBEEL

ZEHBEN
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$752,514,000 (2018: HK$910,956,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$332,726,000 (2018: HK$459,139,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$679,878,000 (2018: HK$674,573,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.
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40. 3 3E Bi1H ()

MH2019F3A31H A E B B K F A
R % B B #752,514,0007% JT(2018 :
910,956,000% 7t.) B] FA A 3K 8 1 2R 2 B &R
A AR ZEN B AR K
B BB BmIEFERER 2B
BEEBERECREELEE - RKERZHB
B 18 °] MR HA 45 8 o

RREHTER AEE 2 /R
B = % A& #9332,726,000/8 JT(2018:
459,139,000 7T.) ° B3 A EE A FE AR i i
AANKETNMREEEE 2T ET
A BAMEESR BB NREBREZEER
REBIEEE -

RIREBTER  PENB QR ERDIK
BNEHEMNAERECH BEEZR
B %= % 44 %8 & #9679,878,000% JT (2018 :
674,573,000 7T ) ° B 7 AN & B AT 45 )
CZEHEREEORNME EZSBRRER
BRIBEAET BRAERA TRE - B im b 45k
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41. DEFERRED INCOME

The amount mainly represents the government grants
related to certain ports construction projects and will be
recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the

related depreciable assets.

41. EEZEW A

ERFEHARNED T ER -

ZETHRIBREAWETEOREBRAZ
B YN AR THEEEZA

42, SHARE CAPITAL 42, g7
Number
of shares Value
BHEE k|
HK$’'000
FETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FRR0A0E T2 B
Authorised: SETE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and R2017F 4 H1H « 201843 A
31 March 2019 31H k201943 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITMAE
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1H 4,587,408,572 458,741
Issue of shares under share option RIERE R TR G
scheme (note a) (Kizta) 16,702,000 1,670
Issue of placing shares (note b) TR SR (M FEDb) 915,470,000 91,547
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 R2018F3 A31H &
20193 A31H 5,5619,580,572 551,958
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43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued
16,702,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription
price of HK$0.1624 per share upon exercise of the share options
granted under the share option scheme of the Company.

(b) On 12 May 2017, a total of 915,470,000 new shares had been
placed by the placing agent to not less than six independent
placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$139 million had been used for working capital
of the Group.

The 915,470,000 placing shares represent (i) approximately
19.94% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
before completion of the placing and (i) approximately 16.63% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the new shares.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The 2012
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing after the Adoption Date.

42.

43.
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MR (48)
Bt

@ REZE2018FE3A3MHILFEE  RIEARQF
BRETEEL CBRERTER  AQF]
1% R B B A%0.1624 7 7T % 716,702,000 A%
FREEAOBITZ LR -

() HR2017F5/8128  BERBRTDHRANE
B AL A BL & A ££915,470,000 8% 37 B 19
BEEBEAETR0IEHE L FTBRBAFHEY
139EBBTERIEASBEZEEES -

915,470,000 R FL ER N IEER () BEERRE S
TE 52K BT AR A B B B 1T AR AN £919.94% K (i)
KEERBETHROBEAZARADET
& A #716.63% °

UBRBXNREAZRS

R2012F9A10B (TH M B ) - A4 Al
W — TE T R Ak i St B (2012 4F BE MR #E 51
gl EEHERAABARNEENAME
BB AERRERBELERM 2 ASE
FRIKERBE2AMNEES THRAE &
THE EBEFRANIEBALT AEEMF
Ak B AR EMKREWKE 2B - BH
ASIREBA(EEEATD LG T B k42
B o 2012 F FE AR ME AT 817G B 5R A0 A R4 +5
BUMABHTF -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. UM X IRIE2Z2RZ (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option offer and an offer must be accepted on
or before a date as specified in writing, being a date not
later than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer was
issued; or (i) the date on which the conditions for the offer
are satisfied. The directors of the Company may at their
discretion determine the specific exercise period which
should expire in any event no later than the last day of the
ten year period after the date of grant of the share options.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules
from time to time; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may initially be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
455,849,357 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit
may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meetings of the Company held in 2013, 2015 and 2017,
the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the
respective dates of such meetings.

BAR2012F IR E AR ARERE
fEtE B EMB AR F S H1.008 7T 0 i
ZAVBREE BB (BN T Tt B Bi1&
Z30BA:NWBEHNZETH: HMHELHZ
BHREENR 2 RB)S 2RI AEEmEM - K
NAEEANEECHETEER - H1E
FRBLT  THEBEARLBREEH
BETFHEBR 2 HZE B - TEEBHAR
REFET HOEEAELATIME
PRRSE: VRBELTRAITERFZ
REBE: RHARRBRMHZHEE-

AR H8 2012 4F BE IR #E 5T 8 & AR A 7] BT R
MEMEMERESIRE CERESH
BITERULSATETIROBERETDT
BHRABARARKMNADEITRMNEE
10% + B455,849,357 f% o tN 15 A< 1 &) %
RERERE EiLE ZRBEAETNARN
NARRERRAE LI AEZ R EHITR
MBE210% - B E It - RIF20125F 8
AR 5t &) J2 AN A B A ] H B AR R AT &1 3%
MR M RITHE 2B AR E 2 BT
ATETIRNBHEERAZLZTEEBBT
REEITRMDBE Z230% BEAQTR
2013%F + 2015 K 2017 F 217 2 MR A F
AgLtBBr —BETBRRER 10%25
EIRBEEFENBEBRAARASER Z2AQTA
EETROBEZ10% -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Person under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
those exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time unless such
grant has been duly approved by shareholders of the
Company at general meeting at which the Eligible Person
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Person is a connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules)) abstained from voting. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.10% of total number of shares in issue and
have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting in advance.

Mo RN
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43. LR XA REBE 2R Z (&)

PMER + 8 A B - RIE2012F B A AE
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Details of the share options granted to certain directors
and employees of the Group under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year

are as follows:

43. LR XA REBE 2R Z (&)

R0 FMBERABTETFASEET
SEREEBRRRFNRSHEEY
BBEENT

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

REREETERERT2AQARDEE

Exercise Exercised Lapsed Lapsed
price Fair value Outstanding during the during the  Outstanding during the Outstanding
Date of per per share at yearended year ended at year ended at
Type grant Exercise period* share option  01.04.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2019  31.03.2019
BH  R2017F REBZE2018F REZE2018F R2018%F REZ20195  R2019F
BR BREZ 4818 3A31HL 3A31HL 3A31H 3A31AL 3A31H
R BEBH TEAE TEE LFEE HRTE FEEGTE FERN i R AT FEAR HRTRE
HKS HKS
BT BT
0] 27.06.2014  27.06.2014-26.06.2017  0.1624 0.0218 29,454,400 (2,203,200)  (27,251,200) - - -
(ii) 27.06.2014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017 0.1624 0.0218 39,502,400  (12,251,200)  (27,251,200) - - -
(iif) 27.06.2014  27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 0.0217 39,502,400 (2,247,600)  (37,254,800) — — —
(iv) 29.09.2014  29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 0.0167 13,500,000 —  (13,500,000) - - -
(v) 29.06.2015  29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0352 30,165,600 — — 30,165,600 (30,165,600) —
(vi) 29.06.2015  29.06.2016-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0352 30,165,600 - — 30,165,600 (30,165,600) -
(vi) 29.06.2015  29.06.2017-28.06.2018  0.2504 0.0351 30,165,600 — — 30,165,600 (30,165,600) —
212,456,000  (16,702,000) (105,257,200) 90,496,800 (90,496,800) -
Exercisable at the end of the year FAFE K A] F17(f 182,290,400 90,496,800 -

* All the share options granted under the 2012 Share Option

Scheme were vested in the relevant grantees upon the
commencement date of each respective exercise period.

The amount of cost of share options charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year ended 31
March 2018 was approximately HK$129,000 (2019: Nil).

FT B AR IK 20124 B8 AR #E 51 819 1 &0 B8 IR i
EREHBITERENHBBNE B

3 YN

REBZE2018F3ANBIEFEZHEA WS
RIN% B IEK A 25 A 4129,000/8
JT (2019 : &) -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43.
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

In respect of the 16,702,000 share options exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2018, the weighted
average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$0.1762 and the weighted average closing price
immediately before the dates of exercise was HK$0.174.

The estimated fair values of the share options granted
were determined by RHL Appraisal Limited, a valuer not
connected with the Group, using the Binomial model.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options were based on the best
estimate of the directors of the Company. The value of a
share option varied with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
values of share options:

Type () Type (i) Type (iii)
FOE FHE Hii)E

fne MBI RMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

UBRHBXNREAEAZRS (&)

HREZE2018F3AZIB L FEEITHERN
16,702,000 iR # M = - A 1T B &0
REFHRE A0A7628 T MEBETER
A2 IEF W T E R A0A747E T ©

B M B AR 40 (5 A F B D LA
0174 A A (8 17 3P R A R
AR AR EEE -

itE %HQ% N FEEMER E’J“%(&ﬁé“

BRANBEFTNREMTFE - BR
TZE”E’JFTEAI% ST EERRO TR B

AAEBRENAFEERER TIIRE:

Type (iv) Type (v) Type (vi) Type (vii)
BivVE FvE SviE S(vi)E

Grant date closing # 1 B~
share price (HK$) &I m(E

(B) 0.160 0.160 0.160
Expected life TEEFR 3years £ 3years £ 3years &
Expected volatility 38 &7 % 18 32.74%  32.74%  32.74%
Expected annual ~ JEH G F
dividend yield B B % 6.25%  6.25%  6.25%
Expected exercise T8 Bi77{#
multiple BE 2.8 2.8 2.8
Risk-free interest 4 @ &
rate | = 0.778%  0.778%  0.778%

0.168 0.236 0.236 0.236
3years 4 3years & 3years F 3years &
26.26% 33.19% 33.19% 33.19%
5.95% 4.24% 4.24% 4.24%

2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8

0.942% 0.655%  0.655%  0.655%

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled
during the year.

FA-BEBREERL  1TESREN -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

44,

DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE

On 14 September 2017, the Group completed the
disposal of 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group
Limited (“Nantong Port Group”), which was a sino-foreign
joint venture enterprise registered in the PRC and engaged
in operation of ports, at a consideration of approximately
RMB1,666,643,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,966,201,000). Nantong Port Group ceased to be an
associate of the Group upon and after the disposal. The
disposal had resulted in the recognition of a gain of
approximately HK$847,628,000 and a taxation charge of
approximately HK$154,369,000. Other reserves in relation
to the associate amounting to approximately
HK$30,345,000 were credited to the retained profits upon
the disposal.

The consideration net of applicable PRC withholding tax

of approximately HK$1,811,832,000 was fully received in
cash during the year end 31 March 2018, after deduction
of other direct costs up to 31 March 2018, net proceeds
from the disposal were about HK$1,735,150,000.

44, HE—BBZE AT

R2017F9H 148 AEEBE TR EREB
EOEBEERAA(ERABOER]) 2
45% I 1 - R{E L A A R #1,666,643,000
7T (5 7 #91,966,201,00078 7T ) » F i 8
DEEA—ZRRPREFMzFPIIEEDR
¥ HEBOZEZE-BRAEOSEEAD
ECRRZETHBARNERB ZHERNT -
B B BRE R 49847,628,00078 7T 2 Uk 25
K #7154,369,000 % 7T 2 FL 1B 2 ) o B 5% B
&N A AR 2 R # 4930,345,0000% 7T
RHEEERFTARBRT -

HREMBERB2PREENBRZ) LA
1,811,832,0007% 7T B, 7 & £ 20184 3 A 31
BIEFERSUBRSWE  MEMNKREE
2018F3A3THIE v EMEENRNE - %
& 2 FT15 5/ F 58 40 &1,735,150,000 %
5o



45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. €T A
(@) €T EZER

(i) Financial assets () =HEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Financial assets measured at REBHK AT EZ © R
amortised cost BE
— Loans receivable — FEE 230,322 372,700
— Trade and other debtors — B REAMBERER 219,384 192,042
— Amounts due from associates — FEURESE & R BB 70,721 79,710
— Amount due from a joint venture —ER—HEaerE
% 4,839 7,619
— Pledged bank deposits —BHERRITER 117 30,557
— Short term bank deposits — EHRITIE K 137,507 248,276
— Bank balances and cash —HRITEFELRERES 380,621 327,847
1,043,511 1,258,751
Financial assets measured at fair value Z AT EESE 2 S0
BE
— Investments in equity instruments —RAFEAEFZAEM
at FVTOCI EvI G
TEEE 375,845 436,826
— Investments in equity instruments —BRAFEAEFZAER
held for trading at FVTPL R RHEEEER
TEEE 309,950 35,964
— Investments in debt instruments —EBAFEEFAER
held for trading at FVTPL R IEEBERER
TEEE 299,241 320,174
— Other financial asset at FVTPL —EBAFEEFAER
R EMmEmMEE - 183,539
985,036 976,503
Total 4t 2,028,547 2,235,254
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(a) Categories of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i)  Financial liabilities

() €MIE>ER(E
(i) £HMEE

)

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial liabilities measured at RHER AT EZ 2/
amortised cost afE
— Trade and other creditors — B REMEMAER 311,425 296,434
— Amount due to an associate — B — R B R B R - 17,400
— Amounts due to non-controlling — FEH IEFE R ME 2R AR
interests 95,683 104,089
— Bank and other borrowings — RIT R E A B 1,044,284 1,142,667
1,451,392 1,560,590
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) cREAKREEEERKE
and policies
P AEEIESMIABERTR
The Group’s major financial instruments include FoRTEELRES BEHNHME

bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other debtors, loans receivable, investments in equity
instruments, investments in equity instruments held
for trading, investments in debt instruments held for

YRR - EUE K $E‘ TAKRE

FIEEERETARE FHFEERE
BIAKRE HMeREE HEHK
H A BRAN - U (R B R R,/

trading, other financial asset, trade and other —EAEE FFIERESTEIUAL
creditors, amounts due from (to) associates/a joint TR EMmER it R T ERT
venture/non-controlling interests and bank and other B A R B R I R e 2 R
borrowings. The risks associated with these financial RN TN - EEEEERER uZ =35
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate fo o ATER RGBS A LA =43 o
these risks are set out below. Management manages IR [ v ERRE S RS B £ AR H °

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is
attributable to its financial instruments that are
subject to both variable rate and fixed rate.
Those financial instruments of variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments at variable rates have
been disclosed in Notes 28, 29, 34 and 39.
Financial instruments at fixed interest rates
expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
Details of the Group’s interest bearing financial
instruments at fixed rate have been disclosed
in Notes 28, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38 and 39.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk, the
Group adopts a policy of maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings which is achieved primarily through
entering into different contractual terms of
borrowings. The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference to anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the rates
announced by The People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings and
advance at variable rates and Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate and HKBLR arising from the
Group’s HK Dollars loans receivable, amounts
due from associates, and borrowings at
variable rates.

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. £H T B (58)
b) tREREEREREE (&)

i 5 2 B
) FERmEMg
REBZMERERKAEE R

TESMIT A -ZZE XS54
TAFASEEEREREF
KRR - REBZFESHT
B 15N 5£28 29 - 34 239
NEZR - TEeMIAFLAS
EEHAFEEMNERR - K
EECsEEEBMIEFFERM
52833343537 -38K
39 H# FE o

RTFENZER AEEDK
BBER E2RBIZTRE
HWRBZER REERRF

SERZEEMLG - HAARTD

m%? WIS AR 2B
HA B B 1T AT o

AEBERSHEED@EH N =X

BB HERAMGTEAE @R
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SEzHReREMNERREZE
SR B ARRITH QM A
R RBCREBREBRZFEA
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TRXFERBEEREERE
ME(REAEEZFEETE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable rate instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been 50
basis points (2018: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2019, excluding the
capitalised borrowing costs of approximately
HK$1,308,000 (2018: HK$1,007,000), would
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,499,000 (2018: HK$1,894,000).

For loans receivable, amounts due from
associates and bank balances, the effect on
interest rate risk to the Group’s post-tax profit
is insignificant. Therefore, the effect is not
included in the sensitivity analysis above.

45. &R T A (&)
b) cREAKMEEEERBE (E)

m%nﬁ(ﬂﬁ)
i R=Ek &)
BBRE D

TXZGREE D IIRE R ®
iﬁﬂ%,ﬁ%ﬁ%m@bl,@iﬁxz
MERBMEE - M HBR&E
REEHERR 2 RAEESR
TEREBAFEDAAEEM
HE -ZRABEEEREAE
P& 3R F = & B B - TR A A8 0
SR B0 B -
HEEFBAMELEAT BE0E
(2018 :50E %) - MATA E
MEHRIFTILE AAEH
R E =2019F3A31H It FE
ZBEEMN(TEREEEAL
2 & 3R A 491,308,000 JT
(2018 : 1,007,000 7T.)) #5 T &~
£ F+ #91,499,0007% JT (2018 :
1,894,000/ JT) °

HRERER  EBUYEHE QA
FRIE R AT A BR - B K R B ¥
RNEB KB EEF O ZERN
TREMN AL w218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value
of a monetary item will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain
receivables and debt investments held for
trading of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies such as RMB and United
States Dollars (“US Dollars”) and which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages its
exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

fne MBI RMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in HK Dollars, US Dollars and RMB. The Group
mainly draws borrowings in the functional
currencies of the entities as management
considers the repayments can be sourced from
income to be generated in those currencies.

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US Dollars which are entered
by group companies with a functional currency
of HK Dollars to be insignificant.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of
RMB against HK Dollars. The Group regularly
reviews the balances of assets and liabilities
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk.

45. &R T A (&)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

% B e (#E)

(i) E¥EREGE
AEBRBERHAAAET E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (excluding inter-company
balances), with exposure to foreign currency
risk which are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. &R T A (&)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE
45 B (4)

(i)

B ER (F)

AN ER B A SN EE /S BE AL 3 40
KRz EBEEREKAR
(TEREAREAR) (BEEER
RERE)RHERZTHER 2K
EEWT

Liabilities Assets
a8fE BE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTET FHT THER FHET
RMB AR 1,804 1,334 1,279 129
US Dollars EV - 15,710 357,239 323,702
In addition, foreign currency denominated inter- BESN - AN SHE 2~ B E A
company balances, with exposure to foreign BRAEATEBERSE A 7N
currency risk which are considered as B N EE a2 E15
significant by management, at the end of the m
reporting periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FTET T THER TETT
RMB AR 2,545 2,703 92,667 442,653
HK Dollars BT 69,950 67,922 - —
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group’s foreign currency risk exposure related
to US Dollars is not considered to be
significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
is presented for US Dollars against functional
currencies.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB against HK
Dollars and 5% decrease in HK Dollars against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK Dollars. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against HK Dollars, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for the
year.

45. &R T A (&)
b) cREAKMEEEERBE (E)

5 E ke (&)
(i) E¥ER(GE)
BBEED I

MR THEETAHB  KEE
Y BRETZINERRRA
EWMARE Bt WERE
TTHIEER 2 5GURE DT -

TERFWAEERARE LB
TLEERB NN RETE AR
¥ [E R OF D 5% HE 2 BURRE o
ERRNIEEZEE ASERIN
BREBE - DEA%AHRE
tbE - FRESTEBRERT
BREWUIINERENL 2 EEIE
B r-BERBREHTERINGEE
R7E%FEETHE - TRZ
FE8BERARELBT EH5%
BERMIEMm ARBEE
T T Bk5% 8 - ¥ s F 2 B
FREMRR - EHMER -

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHET

Increase in profit for the year F R A 38 0 6,661 21,132
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

i 45 [ B (#&)
Market risk (Continued) (i) HibEERR
(iii) Other price risk AEEAAEZTAKRE B

The Group is exposed to price risk from its
investments in equity instruments, investments
in equity instruments held for trading,
investments in debt instruments held for
trading and other financial asset. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities operating in port development,
hotel operation and properties management,
healthcare, investment industry sectors and
property development. The Group has
monitored the other price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk for
investments in equity instruments, debt
instruments and other financial asset carried at
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices or fair values of these respective
financial asset had been 5% higher/lower,

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2019 would increase/decrease by
HK$27,516,000 (2018: HK$22,532,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of
investments in equity instruments held for
trading, debt instruments held for trading
and other financial asset; and

U investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$18,792,000
(2018: HK$21,841,000) for the Group as
a result of the changes in the fair value of
investments in equity instruments not
held for trading.

FEER=TAKE: T%f’ﬁi%f
EEHRITARERAEMERE
E-mAEERAR BEE
NEBBERREESEZR

EMAaREZLBRAR A&
EHNERAREIEERNEE

BOER- - BESEUARME

BERRE RETER
MEZBROBRAEZS -AEH
EERHMERRAR Tk
EREREEHEFEY 2R

)

ZON

BBE D
BRESMIEREPATER
BEAFEBEIE 2 E=LA
BEREITARHEMEMEERE
FrE ¥ B R METE °

WEBESREEZBRIAF
BELEFFTHE5% 8l :

e HRBIEEEZHERT
A BHEEEZABL
AREREMEREE
Z201953HA31H IEFE
R#&&EMELEATE
27,516,000 % 7T (2018 :
22,532,000 7T) : &

. m%ﬁ%kﬁf?%ﬁ%ﬂ%%
TEREQNTEEEZS -
BREEHEEBLAT
f%18,792,0007% JT (2018 :
21,841,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
obligations by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade debtors

In order to minimise the credit risk of the debtors,
management is responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Credit sales are made to
customers with good credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers and credit term granted to
customers on different business units are reviewed
regularly. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) (2018: incurred loss model) on
debtor balances individually or collectively with
appropriate grouping by common risk characteristics.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Loans receivable

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment
on loans receivable on an individual basis. The
assessment includes evaluation of collectability of
the loans receivable based on management’s
judgment on creditworthiness, collateral and past
collection history of each borrower and forward
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

1= B 7 Bz & 6t (B8 71
MR2019F3A31H  AEERR 5
FAREBOTETURAE®TIRME
MBERAAREZZERNEERR (K
BYASEELMBER) DALE
ERAMBRAR L2V SE®R
CREEZREE-

E%EWﬁﬁ
EERERUERZEER
AEFE EEEERSE FE%%
REMEEFE BERMEDSH
RFEBBESEE - ERIFERERLE
ZEFHAETERHE - TRXEH
BUEPAEEERBLRSLTE
PZEEMBREERR - 55 K
SEREREEMBHHREEIFIR
OMAF)BRREBEBEHREEBHRERN
(2018 Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁmﬁﬂ
[ B 45 B 1E A B o A BT R R
EERAETT @ B Sk SR BB R E AT 14 © Bl
ME ARAREETARAKEZEE

RPN R

L €N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

In determining the recoverability of the loans
receivable, the Group will consider the change in the
credit quality of the loans receivable, if any, from the
date the loans were initially granted up to the
reporting date. This includes assessing the credit
history of the borrowers, such as past experience of
financial difficulties or default in payments,
background assessment and evaluation of financial
position and performance and forward looking
information.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.
The management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an
evaluation of financial background, as well as
financial condition of the borrower and the
anticipated receipts for that individual loan, at the
end of the reporting period.

Amount(s) due from associates/a joint venture
The credit risks of amount(s) due from associates
and a joint venture are managed through an internal
process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party and
identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order
to reduce the credit risk. Further, the Group closely
monitors the financial performance of associates and
joint ventures. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2014) (2018: incurred loss
model) on the outstanding balances individually. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The credit risk of other financial assets is managed
through an internal process. The Group closely
monitors the outstanding amounts of other financial
assets at amortised costs and identifies any credit
risk in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of
a credit related loss. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risks in
relation to its bank balances that are deposited at
several banks. Management of the Group considers
that the credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited at several banks is limited, because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as the
major loans receivable as at 31 March 2019 is due
from four (2018: five) borrowers.

The credit risk on investments in listed debt
securities is limited because the counterparties are
corporations of good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on an
unlisted convertible security issued by an
independent third party. However, management
considers that the credit risk is limited as it is issued
by company of good reputation.

45. &R T A (&)

(b)

TREREERERBEE)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

mt) RESEER AT 2019¢$&w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group does not have significant concentration
of credit risk on investments in listed securities as
counterparties are brokers of good reputation.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the exposure
of which spreads over a number of counterparties.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal

‘IT\

SR FEmRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. &R T A (&)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

1= & J7 B2 K 6t 18 a7 1% (4
HRRSHEFHREBRTFERZ
B BAEBRELTESFZEE

BRI AR ES -

Br EatE AN REBE 2B R R IE
HRmEd  HARSBNZER
SHF -
REBZABEERRTHRTEE
FEA TR

Other financial

credit rating Description Trade debtors assets/other items
Httem&EE
REEEFR iR B 5 ERER HimH
Performing The counterparty has a low to Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
=858 moderate risk of default and its (not credit-impaired) 121 BEHAZ E &8
credit risk has not increased 2 HTEAE EEE
significantly since initial recognition. (W EEERE)
RepHFzEARBRBEZS B
HEERK B Y] 2 RN RILE
EEM-
Underperforming  There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
R in credit risk since initial recognition  (not credit-impaired)  (not credit-impaired)
through information developed 2HEREEEBIE 2 HEBEEER
internally or externally. (WEEERE) (W= AZERE)
NEKIINBAEERBEREERR
B HERAREBEELM-
Non-performing There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
TR is credit-impaired. (credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
EFBELZEELREERE 2HBEHEEEE 2 HEBEEERE
(EERE) (EERME)

Write-off

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.

FEBELEBSALEYERETR
REBASETEERERERKD
A e

Amount is written off

ERSECME

Amount is written off

EREBEEME
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

45. &R T A (&)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

1= B & Bz & 58 77 15 (18)
TRENEBR2019F3 A31HEE

(Continued) TEHEEFRETGZEREER
The table below details the credit risk exposures of FEERAOZEERRER
the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts as at 31 March 2019, which are subject to
ECL assessment:
Gross
Internal 12m or carrying
Notes credit rating lifetime ECL amount
‘ 1248 A 5 2 {1 3
&t REEETR FEBR B TH A B
HIK$'000
FET
Loans recewable (note i) 28 Performing 12m ECL ) 238,700
FE U &K (K aFi) Ruf 1218 e BRfE B &8
Trade debtors (note i) 30 Performing Lifetime ECL 126,336
B 5 MR (K atii) RiF (not credit-impaired)
iﬁsﬁﬁﬁ)ﬂ“ﬂéﬁ?@
(I Az B E)
Non-performing Lifetime ECL 20,146
~ (credit-impaired)
>HFEBEEEE
(EERE)
Other debtors (note iii) 30 Performing 12m ECL ) 94,894
H th, 8 W BR R (B A i) Ruf 1218 R e BRE B &8
Underperforming Lifetime ECL 101
R A= (not credit-impaired)
2 HEHEE I
(I S B R (E)
Non-performing Lifetime ECL 12,214
R (credit-impaired)
2 HI38 41 2 B 18
(EERE)
Amounts due from associates 29 Performing 12m ECL 72,121
(note i) \ RF 12 AFEBREEEE
JE W5 Bk i N B SRIE (B A 0)
Amount due from a joint venture 37 Performing 12m ECL 4,839
(note i) RiF 1218 AT Bf (S B &5 18
fEd — & & 1 FRIE (M)
Pledged bank deposits (note iv) 34 Performing 12m ECL ) 117
BRI RITIER (M 7 iv) Ruf 1218 R Te B E E & 1E
Short term bank deposits (note iv) 34 Performing 12m ECL \ 137,507
RHSRITE R (M ativ) Ruf 128 A EEEE
Bank balances (note iv) 34 Performing 12m ECL 380,577
RATEETF (M ativ) Rt 128 AEBEEEE
Financial guarantee (nhote v) 48 N/A N/A 5,834
ISR (M7t v) A3 A A3 A
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its borrowers on the
outstanding amounts except for accrued interest. The ECL
rates are estimated based on its credit rating, past and
current default record and current past due exposure of the
borrower. None of the amount was past due as at 31
March 2019. Loss allowance for the amount due from a
joint venture is insignificant based on 12m ECL.

For trade debtors, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) to measure the loss allowance
on lifetime ECL basis at an average loss rate of less than 0.1%
for performing trade debtors at 31 March 2019.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses historical past due experience and forward
looking information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. As at 31
March 2019, other debtors of gross amount
HK$33,757,000 is past due. Loss allowances for the
performing and underperforming other debtors are
measured at an average loss rate of less than 0.1% and
30% respectively.

Pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances were placed in the banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong governed by China Banking Regulatory Commission
and Hong Kong Monetary Authority, respectively. In view of
the stable bank system in the PRC and Hong Kong and the
high credit ratings assigned by international or PRC rating
agencies to these banks, the loss allowance is expected to
be very minimal and close to zero.

For the financial guarantee contract, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contract.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE
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(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

1= & J7 B2 K 6t 18 a7 1% (4
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(ii) MEBEZEWERRM S + R201943 A
A AEEEERAEAVBHREE
B 998 (20145 ) it A iR 2 B T8
HEEBEBEENEKRKR0I%Z FHIE
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-

iy BHAFEERBREEMmMES  NEBEE
ARAa BT RAEEERNTEE
ERBRBVTHERUAREEEES
fne R20193 A31H « H b fE U BR
TR 48 EE 33,757,000 T B o R 4 K&
RAEZ Hpth JEUWRBR 3R 2 5 B E 5 B
AR 780.1% &% 30% 2 F 159 8 K E &t
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= o
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45.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

45. &R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) tREREEREREE (&)
and policies (Continued . -

P ( ) BB B P ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment TRIRE S EUWERR - 4 B UER
(Continued) R ERREWREE RFIFRIBL
The following table shows reconciliation of loss ERREEEE YK
allowances that have been recognised for trade
debtors, other debtors, loans receivable and
amounts due from associates.

Lifetime  Lifetime Lifetime  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL (not ECL ECL (not ECL ECL (not
credit- (credit- credit- (credit- credit- 12m ECL
impaired) impaired) 12m ECL impaired) impaired) 12mECL impaired) amounts
trade trade other other other loans loans  due from
debtors  debtors debtors debtors debtors receivable receivable associates
2HEY 2HEY
FEEE ZHEY 1288 FEEHE 2HES 2HES 1218 A
(E\EE EEFE BHEE (LEF FEFAE 128 fFEFE #EHEE
BRHE) (FER BiE ERE) (FEF #BUGE (LEEFE '
ES5EW BEES HtEWR HttEkw &) Hf &8 HE) ERHE
B EUWERR R B ERENR EWER REBRER 2LQFRNRE
HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAT FTET TFTAR FHAT FHT FHT FAT
At 31 March 2018 »20184 3 A
under HKFRS 9 S1TERES
(2009) BB HE
ERIZE 95K
(20094F) - 21,498 - — 15,599 - 21,000 —
Adjustments upon PAE & B B
application of &R s 8|
HKFRS 9 (2014) 2955 (2014
F)RBE - - 1,800 — - 7,807 — 1,125
At 1 April 2018 under 7201844 A
HKFRS 9 (2014) 1EREE
BB
R E 9%
(2014%) — 21,498 1,800 — 15,599 7,807 21,000 1,125
Transfer : — — — (12) 12 — — —
Provided (reversed) for 4 7 &
during the year (BE) 2
218 123 (98) - 43 27) 571 (21,000) 275
Amounts written off as & 7~ 8¢ U [E]
uncollectible MsE 2z 5B — — — - 2,615) — — —
Exchange realignment & ¥, 3§ & (6) (1,249) - 1) (755) — — —
At 31 March 2019 201943 A
under HKFRS 9 SITERES
(2014) B BEmE
HERIZE 5
(2014%F) 17 20,146 1,800 30 12,214 8,378 — 1,400
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
has unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$147 million (2018: HK$502 million) available to
finance the Group’s working capital requirements.
Details of the amounts utilised at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Note 39.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. There are
unutilised banking facilities available to finance the
Group’s working capital requirements. The Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. The Group will also consider the issue of
equity instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. £H T B (58)

(b) &R EEEERBEK(E)

HEBEE R

REBERBRITERBEARDE
© KR o R2019F3H31H A& E
EAREMABDAZRITERRE
#91.47127%8 7t (2018 : 5,028 & 7T )
AAEBEEESTRREER
Lo NBERTERCHR LB
15 # P BT 539 ©

HEERRBESRARE  NEEEE
REHmeEEEAAHASEZER
BRRBRERENPNTERER
WeReRERSFERBKF-
AEBHAPHBZRITHERAE
NHZEESH K - AREKBEEK
REARBHESZHR - ERBERR
TERZER BRETERREZ
MIE - ASBENKAZEHTHERD T
B REREBEBHER-

TRFREAEEZFTESHAR
ZERNFRIHA - ZRDBEAE
BAETSEXNZREENZERA
BEAMRRERERE -ZRER
MERKSEREERE -EMNBERBF
BMERZERT KRB BB IAR
THTEERFZNESH -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) tREREEREREE (&)
and policies (Continued) BB ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRIEEBRR
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted More than
average Ondemand 90 days and Total
effective  or within within - More than  undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365days 365 days cashflows  amount
MEFHER REAL BBAOAE KRR

ik 0HK RIWB5AR BBGSE RERELE KEE
%  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER Than FHEx TEn THExR

2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEERERE
Trade and other creditors BHREMERER - 178,001 113,925 19,499 311,425 311,425
Amounts due to non-controling interests, [T 5
fixed rate interest bearing FE-TR 5.24 1,254 98,126 - 99,380 95,683
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER
— fixed rate interest bearing T8 5.91 135,522 241,637 31,582 408,741 396,394
— variable rate interest bearing - 78 5.40 174,749 168,714 369,093 712,556 647,890
Financial guarantee contract BHRERED - 5,834 - - 5,834 -

495,360 622,402 420,174 1,537,936 1,451,392




45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. &R T A (&)

(b) miEEEBFEREEGE

REBEL R (E)
RBEERANEREARRE (E)

Weighted More than
average Ondemand 90 days and Total
effective or within within -~ Morethan  undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365 days 365 days cash flows ~ amount
MEFHER k@M BRWEEA KRR
ME  OHA H35HA BBSH ReRELE HAEE
%  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET  TER FExT TER
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEERERE
Trade and other creditors B o REMERER - 189,07 84938 22,425 296,434 296,434
Amount due to an associate/ ER—-FEBLNT,/
non-controling interests FERERTE
— non-interest bearing —TEHHE - 17,400 - - 17,400 17,400
— fixed rate interest bearing ) 5.14 1,338 6,485 105,536 113,359 104,089
Bank and other borrowings BRITREMER
— fixed rate interest bearing T8 5.40 270,262 63,903 130,971 465,136 450,917
— variable rate interest bearing ) 4.84 149,661 90,369 536,610 776,640 691,750
627,732 245695 795,542 1,668,969 1,560,590
The amounts included above for variable interest 28 F =R & & 3R &5 HY 2 45 0

rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

FREEE 2 et M REB AR - B L
RETEERABEZFETAA
ZERAITHE o
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on a recurring basis
The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values.

The fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined.

45. &R T A (&)

(c) EMIAZAFEENE

CHEERSMABY ATFHEAER
MFARETE :

M

(ii)

WHEEEREL L FEE
BZtHEERTHMERAZA
FEE

EERR REAMBHRRT
HEHRAARZEBREER
TRAEBECREERELRTE
EME%E -

ZETREERERAGBZA
FEENRAREERAER
MBEREREDITMETE -

BEEEELURAFEETEZ
THEERTHMEEZAFE
]

RESHMBPTHEE  AEEE
TERmEENRFEEFE-
TREfRFHENNEEZS T
MEENTRAEBZAFEE
M B HL o
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(c) EMITAZAFEEE(E

(i) BEEEEELULAFEETEZ
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and TREEREHEBEZ A FE
financial liabilities that are measured at 1B (&)
fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 3 Total
AEEBESER E— =& #4858
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHETT
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31H
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEGABISE
LEREE
Listed debt instruments held for BIrEE 2 LTER
trading TA 299,241 — 299,241
Listed equity instruments held for BIEEEZ FmER
trading TA 309,950 — 309,950
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAVFEEFAEME
k= eMmEE
Listed equity instruments EmERTHE 14,956 - 14,956
Unlisted equity instruments JELETREZTA — 360,889 360,889
Total financial assets Be & E 624,147 360,889 985,036
At 31 March 2018 7R20183 H31H
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFBEAAEBISE
JEMEE
Listed debt instruments held for BEEEZ LTEX
trading TA 320,174 — 320,174
Listed equity instruments held for BEEEZ2 EmER
trading TA 35,964 — 35,964
Other financial asset HihemiEE — 183,539 183,539
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFEESAHME
mkmzemEE
Listed equity instruments EmEETHE 31,272 — 31,272
Unlisted equity instruments FLEmEZTE — 405,554 405,554
Total financial assets BB E 387,410 589,093 976,503
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMIAEZAFEETE(E)
instruments (Continued _ , =
( ) (i) BESEEUATEEHE
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and ZCEHEERTHEBZ A
financial liabilities that are measured at FEEE)
fair value on a recurring basis Mt -
goct:"t'"”ed) 54 EERTSEEIOMT

B -EAFEEURZRAR
HRZTSBEET - B
SEFBEVBEEMRA
ZTISRELRITERME -

Level 1:  The fair values of the financial instruments traded
in active markets are based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market prices used for financial assets
held by the Group are the current bid price.

8
[1]
2

CERMIAEZAFEBEDLER

FE=BFE(FBRHES
& B MY 5£25 R 33FT il 2
BT -

Level 3:  the fair values of the financial instruments are
based on Level 3 measurement (as details in
Note 3) using the valuation techniques described

ot /R e =, NT(E %g 2
in Notes 25 and 33. BRAEFEMNS  AFEESRZE

HEEg-
There were no transfers between the different levels of the
fair value hierarchy for both years.



mt) RESEER AT 2019¢$&w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR FEmRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

'IT\

(c) eMIAZAFEEE (&)
(il tMTAZE=LLFEMHE

(iii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value TEZYER
measurement of financial instruments
Unlisted Other
equity financial
instruments asset Total
Lk Hfth & &b
I8 BE i
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAEXT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 H 359,347 — 359,347
Purchases A - 175,000 175,000
Gain on revaluation recognised RiEEERZEMHK
in profit or loss = — 8,539 8,539
Gain on revaluation recognised REMEEKZER
in other comprehensive income ZEHERE 46,165 — 46,165
Exchange realignment & H = 42 — 42
At 31 March 2018 20183 A31H 405,554 183,539 589,093
Gain on revaluation recognised RERERZE MUK
in profit or loss o — 12,461 12,461
Loss on revaluation recognised REMEEKZER
in other comprehensive income 2 EhEE (44,644) - (44,644)
Disposals BE — (196,000)  (196,000)
Exchange realignment [E 5 38 & (21) — 21)
At 31 March 2019 12019493 A31 H 360,889 — 360,889

Included in other comprehensive income is
revaluation loss of HK$44,644,000 (2018: gain
of HK$46,165,000) relating to unlisted
investments in equity instruments using Level 3
measurement held at the end of the reporting
period and is reported as changes in
investment revaluation reserve.

P AH M 2 W & 2 F{H E5 18 44,644,000
7 7T (2018 © U 25 46,165,000 7T ) B2 74 5§
EHEANEERE =R E22IELT

BaTERERR L=

B -

BREEEMRF
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46. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

46. MEEBHELE2REBEHEK

TRAANEEREETHELZAFEE
B BERAEAShIFRSE oﬂéf/ﬁibé
EBENDABRSREXARKESTER
AEBGERERERTHIEABELRY
ReEmEzaE-

activities.
Amounts
Amounts due to non- Bank and
due to controlling other Interest
associates interests borrowings payable Total
EAHE EAIEER MITR
ARHRE ERHE HMER EGRE FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FETT FET FET
At 1 April 2017 m2017F4H1H 11,912 97,065 1,757,927 8,574 1,875,478
Financing cash flows ®t&R & RE (12,014) (2,478)  (713,615) (81,344)  (809,451)
Finance costs BUEEXRZRE
capitalised B R — — — 23,412 23,412
Finance costs (note) &L & Ak 2 (M1 3) 102 - - 52,363 52,465
Exchange realignment [& ¥, ] 2 — 9,502 98,355 — 107,857
At 31 March 2018 M20184 3 A31H — 104,089 1,142,667 3,005 1,249,761

Financing cash flows F&E & HEE -

(2,334)  (42,988)  (53,175)  (98,497)

Finance costs BIEERZ@E

capitalised AR - - - 25,896 25,896
Finance costs (note) &L & Ak 2 (M1 3) - - - 31,134 31,134
Exchange realignment [& i, 5 % - (6,072) (55,395) (174) (61,641)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 A31H - 95,683 1,044,284 6,686 1,146,653

note: Finance costs exclude imputed interest expense on other payable
of HK$873,000 (2018: HK$990,000).

M BMERATBREEMEMERZEERN S
71 57 873,000 7T (2018 : 990,000 JT) °
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47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group joins defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions in accordance with the rules of the
schemes in that jurisdiction.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

fne MBI RMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

47. BEKBRI st &

rEEREEARKEEZ2EDATHTENK
X‘EE*'JE*EJ ° EZ}rH+2”Z éf
ZEBEESHEIFEER -

AEBETBENBRARZER  RHFE
BFHTZERERRKBAE 2K
E-FENBRRARFEAX B EL
Bl R RRE A A BIE K ARAER
REES - AEBEERKEFGE 2 ME—
BEEREHBBREEMHN -
RIEARERBEZER  RAKEIZZ
= ZﬁWszmfaﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%
TZHF-HEEBERNZAEHKMAM 2
IR HZEE $§Ifﬁ#ﬁ7
REBZADERER 25 8RR H R 2
T BIER -

wm

REmERTER YTEREEREREANZE
BAREBEMHRAN 2 MERAREZEF
EMELEZEXLKERLAIHAEER

],

REFER D BAER 2 BT -
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47.

48.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
(CONTINUED)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$8,192,000 (2018:
HK$8,668,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

47.

iR k8 F ET & (&)

REBEMARGERTERTE(RES
AR REEABCRERIEATES
AEEAIERFIERATEEEERERL B
Ber 8l cEEBURNAKEZEE A
BUSAAZNZESRA REBRESD
AEIZAR BREREEBAHASAER
AIRTAZ L R M et 81K - AR B AR5
BEezEREERREFEEHRE
Z B e B A I L U BA] A0 R
RIRFE AR -

5% 1E 2 51 8 0 1F i 2 R R AR M &t 81 5K
B A WS RINE  HERANEEBIRE
RAFTRZEERRES DN REMNZH]

=+
Mo

FR REAREZRAIE ZEREF
=+ 2] i 3 48 58 49 /58,192,000 7T (2018 ¢
8,668,000 7T, °

48. ZAREE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
The Group has the following contingent AREBBUTHABE:
liability:
Guarantee given to a bank in respect MEZFERZBETEEMIR
of a banking facility granted to a third party 17 #& H #£{® 5,834 —

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value
of the financial guarantee at the initial date of providing this
guarantee is insignificant.

ARBEZRBRYBERZIAFEERE
HZERBEELTEKX -



49. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

mt) RESEER AT 2019¢$&W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group as a lessee: (a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant
and machinery which fall due as follows:

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

49, KREHERKIE

AEEEREABAA:

R4 B e A B AR B 7 7 AT Y
ZERLtw o HEREES HAD
EUERBERBWBECEHESE W
BRRERE S RIEAE o It FEE
AR

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 9,384 13,548
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERAF(EEMERE

£R) 5,366 13,534

Over five years Bl R F 2,740 619

17,490 27,701

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for terms ranging from one to thirty years.

The Group as a lessor: (b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment
properties and stock of properties for future
minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:

HOBEHRRAS—FE=TFTE
kERETERE -

AEEEREAA:

RBEMEEN AEERLREY
$RMETEZEPERARKE
BeHAETH - XHBMT :

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within one year —FNR 5,790 14,258
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFIF(BEMERRE

£A) 9,249 33,427

Over five years BB A F 5,096 27,906

20,135 75,591

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to
twenty years.

EEREEHEAREREE TR
AR 2 Rl o FRA 2 IR B —
EE-HETE
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50. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 50. & E K

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group:

RmERTER - THNEESER TR
L BHE  ERASBERE—REER
BZEM:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Investment properties WEYE 187,475 156,882

Property, plant and equipment L YN 276,791 240,000

Prepaid lease payments EMHEERE 171,178 177,275

Bank deposits RITHER 117 30,557

Other intangible assets Hih & 4,704 5,141

Stock of properties WMEFE 458,637 303,993

Trade debtors 2 5 EWER 2,962 -
Investments in debt instruments held for BEESEKIEKRE

trading - 95,654

1,101,864 1,009,502

In addition, the Company pledged its investments in
certain subsidiaries of a book value of approximately
HK$279,009,000 at 31 March 2018 to secure the facilities
granted (2019: Nil).

RO R2018F3A31H  ARANAET
BB 2 Al 2 % & BR M {8 £9279,009,000 %
TETER (ERMERERE 2 ER
(2019 : 4#) -

51. COMMITMENTS 51. &
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Expenditure contracted for but not provided FLUEEIA FEE BRI B XD
in the consolidated financial statements in G & MRz N EE 2 X -
respect of acquisition of:

— Property, plant and equipment e ERY - YV 46,258 41,104
— Investment properties —REME 7,687 6,581

53,945 47,685




52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
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52. AN LR F R LR

BALANCES
@ BKREeVBHmREMBIBKEE
(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated G R REE IR Eﬁi T @B A
financial statements, the Group also entered into the TEIV U TERRZS
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2019 2018
BEA LT ZER REME HK$’000 HIK$'000
THERT TETT
(i)  Associates of the Group Interest charged by the Group 5,239 4,005
REB 2B E R T A& B UERR R
Interest charged to the Group - 102
REB XA
Service fees charged by the Group 714 872
REEBWBRRSEE
(i)  Joint ventures of the Group Service fees charged by the Group 329 251
rEEzEEDRE REEBWBRREE
Rentals charged to the Group 474 481
rEBEXNES
Interest income charged by the Group 374 7

7K 5 18 W BN A B A

(i Entity controlled by senior Service fees charged to the Group 467 441

management (note) REB I RGE
SREBANBEN 2ERE M)

note: These transactions constituted the de minimis connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the Note 52(a(iii) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules.

Mt ZEXFBRLETRUVEETTAR
BEHEKFOBERS

B I OBt 5 52(a)(i) P #k 2 B8 B A T
5 BB EFTE 2 BB A TR
FEXLETRUFAAEZBERS
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52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 52. BBt At X5 R (H)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

b)) BEFRHMIBEREKEZHME

(o) The remuneration of directors and other members of THFMEEE2EMEMABEZR
key management, which is determined by the BREMIGBEMETE  FBHOT:

remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as

follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term benefits 52 HEARE T 20,045 19,527
Discretionary bonus BII5 fE4T 1,413 56,729
Post-employment benefits R IKAEF 862 820
Share-based payment expense D HRBEBZRAX - 129

22,320 77,205




52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
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BALANCES (CONTINUED)
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52. BB A TR 5 K& 8 (&)

L) (&)
(b) (Continued)
FARTESFLHEMEIEEREX
Details of the share options for the Company’s ENNMMEATEEBARRKG 2
shares granted to the directors and other members BEREZFBHINOT
of key management and outstanding during the year
are set out below:
Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
REREEBTERERT2ARARGHUE
Exercised Lapsed Lapsed
during during during
Exercise Outstanding the year the year Outstanding the year Outstanding
price per at ended ended at ended at
Grantee Date of grant  Exercise period share  01.04.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018  31.03.2019  31.03.2019
R2017F BE2018F HE2018F  R2018F EE2019F  R2019F
BRI 4A18 3A31AL 3A31AL 3A31H 3ASIAL 3A31A
ERA BinAH TEHE BE HRTE FEAR FEAR HAOR FEAY  HATE
HK$
BT
Directors
Bz
LauTomKoYuen  27.06.2014  27.06.2014-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) - - -
2B R 27.06.2014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 —  (15,000,000) - - -
27.06.2014  27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 15,000,000 — (15,000,000) - - -
20.06.2015  29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,000,000 - — 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -
29.06.2015  29.06.2016-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,000,000 - — 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -
29.06.2015  29.06.2017-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,000,000 - — 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014  29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 —  (4,500,000) - - -
R E
Wong LaiKin, Elsa 29.09.2014  29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 — (4,500,000 - - -
EER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 29.09.2014 ~ 29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720 4,500,000 — (4,500,000 - - -
B
Other members of ~ 27.06.2014  27.06.2014-26.06.2017 ~ 0.1624 14,454,400  (2,203,200) (12,251,200) - - -
key management 27.06.2014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017  0.1624 24,502,400 (12,251,200) (12,251,200) - - -
HitXEEEEMHE 27.062014  27.06.2016-26.06.2017  0.1624 24502400  (2,247,600) (22,254,800) - - -
20.06.2015  29.06.2015-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,165,600 - — 15,165,600 (15,165,600) -
29.06.2015  29.06.2016-28.06.2018  0.2504 15,165,600 - — 15,165,600 (15,165,600) -
20.06.2015  29.06.2017-28.06.2018 ~ 0.2504 15,165,600 - — 15,165,600 (15,165,600) -
Total
At 212,456,000 (16,702,000) (105,257,200) 90,496,800  (90,496,800) -
(©) Details of the balances with associates and a joint © MRMEHTHER HBEE QA R —
venture at the end of the reporting period are set out MeEErXR2ERFBHINNHGE
in Notes 29, 36 and 37. 29~ 36 %37 °
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53. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

53. ARAR 2 MBMRR KRB

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries Loy NG 37,365 19,065
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG €] 1,107,507 1,106,528
1,144,872 1,125,593

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU M B A 7 I 1,929,335 2,007,186
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments  E b B U BR 3%~ 514 M T8 FIE 17,083 916
Short term bank deposits RERITER 100,000 174,608
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LA S 16,515 737
2,062,933 2,183,447
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other creditors and accrued expenses HEMEAERERRERE 2,963 3,425
Bank borrowings — due within one year —FRIBNEZBITER 110,000 120,000
112,963 123,425
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,949,970 2,060,022
NET ASSETS EEFHE 3,094,842 3,185,615

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGHE
Share capital & X 551,958 551,958
Reserves (note) (K aE) 2,542,884 2,638,657
TOTAL EQUITY R 3,094,842 3,185,615
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53. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 53. KRR 2B RRARRREE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (¢8)
(CONTINUED)
Btat -
note:
Share-
based
Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
D13 XS
1% E REREE R % F @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 K2017F4A18 495,540 5,639 1,610,156 2,011,335
Profit for the year F 2 A — - 573,586 573,586
Issue of shares under share option 15 1% 88 A% # 51 £ 2 17 iR 1
scheme 1,406 (364) — 1,042
Recognition of equity-settled ERILREEE RGN X
share-based payment expense RIER X — 129 — 129
Release upon lapse of vested B 57 8 I IR A R R
options - (2,222) 2,222 -
Issue of placing shares BITRERD 51,266 — - 51,266
Transaction costs attributable to 2% 17 it & i) JE(5 X 5
issue of placing shares A A (3,701) — - (3,701)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31H 544,511 3,182 2,085,964 2,633,657
Adjustments arising from initial BREREAMGEHREE
application of HKFRS 9 (2014) BIIZE 95k (2014 4F ) E 5
-k - — (8,120) (8,120)
Restated balance at 1 April 2018 #2018 4 A1 B & &£ 3|
a3 544,511 3,182 2,077,844 2,625,537
Loss for the year FEEIE — — (82,653) (82,653)
Release upon lapse of vested B 5B B IR R S
options - 8,182) 3,182 -
At 31 March 2019 Mm2019F 3 A31 H 544,511 — 1,998,373 2,542,884
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

(@)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

54. TEMR AR BEQXARE

EhEEHR

@ ARNaEEEHREBERARKR2019F &
20183 H31B 2B T ¢

Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRE HEMEREA L
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
HEME L BRORBMERE/
WEAREE A e B ZfMEX MNEARARE  AKEEHL  ETEXH
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BlEBER AT Bk ordinary shares REZK
10,0007 7T
ERR R D

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate  The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. e registered capital and sale of properties

THEERHERZEAR (note (i) below) MELRE RERHEE
NS 8,800,000 7T

(FxHiz)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$100,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment,
Investment and h registered capital sale and leasing of
Development Co., Ltd. (note (ii) below) properties, developed land,
(“Jiangsu Yangtong”) 100,000,000% 7T land under development

I#HTRREREER AfEA and projects under
NEDIEFRA]) (FX A7) development

WE BERELM FE
P RFEERIER
RE RE HERHEE

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited Bk ordinary share infrastructure investment

RENTEREFRLA BT BOEERRERRE

LRRR R

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB262,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port operation
Container Feeder i registered capital BO2E
Port Limited (note (i) below)

RENTERERKAHE AR 262,800,000
BRATE AR

(FXHFeE)

Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Securities investment
Limited B ordinary shares BHRE

FEREERAF 1,200,000 7T

TR D
Paul Y. Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
REEEBRAA e ordinary shares infrastructure
28T investment
ey BOZERERRE
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

v

54, T EHE QT k&

ERREN (B

BE D

Zll

@ (8&)
(@ (Continued)

Percentage of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BORE/EMEXEAN
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
R g ERTRBERE/
WELRERE i e AMER MNELARRE AEEEL  TEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
Paul Y. Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BB ordinary shares REZRR
2B
TRk
PYI Investment (Wuhan) Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Bk ordinary shares REER
RERE(GE)ERAA 2% T
TR R
PYI Management L|m|ted Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of
REEEEERARR e ordinary shares management services
2B REERRSE
TR D
PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Bk ordinary shares REER
REREREFRDA 2B
EREL O 8
PYI Properties (HK) |m|ted Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RERE(EB)ER Bk ordinary share RERK
1 /% JC
ERBR
PYI Xingdong Properties The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
(Jiangsu) Limited i registered capital and sale of properties
1%%E13$E¥(/Iéﬂﬁ R (note (i) below) MEBR RERHE
NS 20,000,000 T
(TFXHeE()
PY! Yichang Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Limited Bk ordinary share infrastructure investment
REEERERRD BT BENEEREERE
LTERR R
Treasure Capital Finance Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Provision of credit services,
Limited Bk ordinary share securities trading and
ERBEAMBARA 18T investment
Eelidn) RE{GEERE EFEE

R E
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL .
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT ELEER(E)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(@ (Continued)

Percentage of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE /EMERTAL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
HMBL ERTRBERE/
MELRERE i e AMER MNELARRE AEEEL  TEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
Yichang Port Group Limited ~ The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51 Port operation
TERBEEERER H registered capital BOEE
N (note (i) below)
AR #203,690,0007C
A E A
(T izt )
Yichang Port Group Yunchi ~ The PRC RMB409,050,000 62.366 62.366  31.807 31.807 Port operation
Port Limited (“Yunchi Port registered capital (note (ii) ~ (note (i) 750 ZiE
Co") (note (ii) below) below)  below)
BEABEEERERR AR # 409,050,000 70 (Tx (Fx
RA([EERT]) FMER miE K
(T K ) (i) (i)
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 LPG and CNG distribution
Petroleum Gas Limited e registered capital and logistics
HIERERBRIERER (note (i) below) BItABRRBREAAR
NS 41,000,000% 7T AEEIR
A E A
(TXH ()
WIERERRERRMER  The PRC Us$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG technical research
BRAA F registered capital and development
(note (i) below) BAC A BRI 7T R %
18,950,000% 1T &
AR
(T B ()
HEtEEEEEERAF  The PRC RMB45,000,000 100 100 75 75 Development, investment
H registered capital and sale of properties
(note (i) below) MERE RAREE
AR 45,000,0007C
A AR
(T izt i)
TEPNFREREEER  ThePRC US$10,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development of
NS H registered capital recreational facilities
(notes (i) and (iv) below) REZEER
10,000,000% T
(XM ) % fiv)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.

L EMBARHERERRAR -
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. T EMBAT BEQITARSE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT EhEER(E)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)
@ (8&)
(@ (Continued)
logsa
notes:
[0} LhERFR/INEBERSE -
0] Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
(i) HERRAR/BTIAELEDLE-
(ii) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(i) MEBATHAERREES1%NME L
(iii The subsidiary is being owned as to 62.366% by AEEBB % 1 55 62.366% :zlx &
Yichang Port Group, a 51%-owned subsidiary of the iﬁ B Y E B8 15 R [ RO 1 AR A
Company. The Group maintains control over the Y % BB 1 ) ) 6 o
subsidiary through control over Yichang Port Group.
(v) 201949 3A31H T & /¥ OB
(iv) As at 31 March 2019, the registered capital of ST /N FRBEAMAA ZFEMERNEH
R RFIZ B RN F was paid up to US$6,680,000 (2018: 6,680,000 T (2018 : 6,680,000 7T)
US$6,680,000). P& 3K o
Remark: Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (i) for the it R E ?;?O19¢ 201843 A31H I-
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the registered F F}f S} EE (V) # ?g ALY VAL \//\7'\ ’\ FiT
capital of all principal subsidiaries registered in the PRC ARFEERZEENBRAAREE
were fully paid up during the years ended 31 March 2019% &201 8F3ASTHILLFEAE
2019 and 2018, BRERER -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has R E B AR - AR AR H A
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. AEEMETBEAZKHBAR &
A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in EMBARARNMLOREREZBRK
investment holding and corporate services, which RS REBRPEHEE-

operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
MEMBRARERFERBEITEME

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt BEF e
securities at the end of the year.
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54, TEMB AT BEAARS
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT e R (E)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

b) BEEEARFEBREZZAEEED
(b) Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the AN NG
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Principal Voting rights held by  Profit (loss) allocated Accumulated
place of non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of entity business interests interests interests
TEEHE FEREEEEZ JIEEFEZEREZRZ
BEERER it B RERE 8 (B 18) Rt FERES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTEX TR FEx TR

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% (944) 13,065 325,271 346,430
TLER T B H
Yichang Port Group (note i) The PRC 49% 49% 14,398 11,321 307,710 311,449

HEAKEE KT el

Yunchi Port Co The PRC 37.634%  37.634% 1,705 43 182,571 192,067
=S N o
Individually immaterial (11) (60) 47,930 51,032

subsidiaries with non-

controlling interests
WA FEE R 2 AR

FEBEBRHE LA

15,148 24,369 863,482 900,978
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v

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

BHELARRE

all

54, T EH B QT
EhEER(E)

) (&)
(b)  (Continued)
FRABAERFEERER ZAER
Summarised financial information in respect of each WEATEBE 2B EERMT -
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-

controlling interests is set out below.

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group

TIEER EREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT FET FET
(note f17Lii)
Results of the entities: PES-§ - E
Revenue A - — 340,298 334,812
(Loss) profit for the year attributable 3% & & % 5 A FE1G
to owners of the entity FE(BB)ER (3,778) 52,260 29,384 23,104
(Loss) profit for the year, ATALTEIEFEERE
attributable to (B 18) & 7
— owners of the Company —RREHEEA (2,834) 39,195 14,986 11,783
— non-controlling interests —BA%ERZ
holding the entity IR = (944) 13,065 14,398 11,321
(3,778) 52,260 29,384 23,104
Other comprehensive (expense) LA T A+ FE(GE b
income, attributable to 2w () /A
— owners of the Company Sl N/NETEZ P =N (60,641) 90,898 (18,878) 28,314
— non-controlling interests —BEZERE
holding the entity FEE PR HE S (20,215) 30,300 (18,137) 27,205
(80,856) 121,198  (37,015) 55,519
Total comprehensive (expense) IUTATENAZE
income, attributable to (AW ABE
— owners of the Company —KRQEHEEA (63,475) 130,093 (3,892) 40,097
— non-controlling interests —RHBE%RERZ
holding the entity S 12 B 4 2% (21,159) 43,365 (3,739) 38,526
(84,634) 173,458 (7,631) 78,623
Dividends paid to non-controling & 1< éﬂ % 1 2=

interests

H /D,\
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT . EhEER (K

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

Jiangsu Yangtong

Yichang Port Group

LERER EEBKE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET AT FERT AT
(note ffftii)
Financial position: R
Non-current assets ERHEE 1,263,464 1,298,727 1,223,559 1,250,742
Current assets TMBEE 1,518,253 1,565,111 320,510 309,129
Current liabilities mEEE (716,110)  (582,326) (416,865) (214,570)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (764,521) (895,792) (315,914) (516,952)
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR B = - —  (183,311) (192,739)
1,301,086 1,385,720 627,979 635,610
Equity attributable to IATATEEREZ
— owners of the Company el N/NETE7 RN 975,815 1,039,290 320,269 324,161
— non-controlling interests —BEZERZ
holding the entity VIR = 325,271 346,430 307,710 311,449
1,301,086 1,385,720 627,979 635,610
Cash flows: Baine
Net cash (outflow) inflow from KERHHE
operating activities GhRE)mAFEzE (34,445) (26,687) 51,712 46,530
Net cash (outflow) inflow from WEEEH RS
investing activities Rt HD) mAF 58 (4,684) 31,156  (25,418) (82,112)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from mEEE 2 IH S
financing activities TACHRE) F%8 57,421 (54,608) (11,648) 51,853
Effect of foreign exchange rate AN [ R Py S 2
changes (544) 2,379 (8,880) 17,768
Net cash inflow (outflow) BemACRL)
gt 17,748 (47,760) 5,766 34,039
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54, TEMEBAT KBEATIRSE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT ELEER (E)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)
) (&)
(b)  (Continued)
FHEME QR 2 EINGTTEE R

Additional financial information in respect of Yunchi BN & HHEHE2.3066% 2 D45
Port Co is disclosed as follows, which 62.366% of AEBEREEARERN XK
its interests has been consolidated and included in EBEERRK:

the financial information of Yichang Port Group as

disclosed above:

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Results of Yunchi Port Co: BN F A
Revenue WA 67,323 49,391
Profit for the year attributable to owners HEREAEANERFE
of the entity i ) 4,530 114
Profit for the year, attributable to NTATEEFE 5137'1 7
— parent of the entity —%EBZERA 2,825 71
— non-controlling interests holding —FEZERZ 3H
the entity % 1,705 43
4,530 114
Other comprehensive (expense) income, LA~ A TG E M2 E
attributable to (F32) WA
— parent of the entity —ZERE QA (18,564) 28,519
— non-controlling interests holding —RFBZEB TR
the entity RS (11,201) 17,210
(29,765) 45,729
Total comprehensive (expense) income UTATESEZE (FAX)
attributable to LN L
— parent of the entity —ZERZEAQF (15,739) 28,590
— non-controlling interests holding —BERERZEER
the entity M (9,496) 17,253
(25,235) 45,843
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B {< JE 4% B 4 25 7 A% &, - 1,900
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT e &)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)
(b) (&)
(b)  (Continued)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FA&T
Financial position: BRI
Non-current assets FMEBEE 550,087 568,151
Current assets mEEE 92,644 64,790
Current liabilities VEB=N (92,325) (78,844)
Non-current liabilities FERBBE (65,286) (43,742)
Equity attributable to owners of the entity :Z B 8E#H A A 2 FE(F R 485,120 510,355
Equity attributable to AT AT EE R
— parent of the entity —REEZHEAA 302,549 318,288
— non-controlling interests holding the —RHAZERZIFER
entity 125 182,571 192,067
485,120 510,355
Cash flows: BEWE -
Net cash inflow from operating activities L EE) ISR AFE 19,589 15,829
Net cash outflow from investing activities % & 5E &)~ 3 4 7 £ F 58 (8,418) (34,829)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEFHZ2HSRAFE 22,688 16,948
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SMNSTE Rt g2 & (1,317) 2,707
Net cash inflow WEMAFHRE 32,542 655




54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

iy wes

EERLQA]

2019 F#f

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

L) (&)

(b)  (Continued)

notes:

)

(i)

EE

(i)
Being the non-controlling interests directly holding 49%
interests in Yichang Port Group, which the disclosure
information includes its proportionate share of Yichang Port
Group’s 62.366% interests in Yunchi Port Co and 80%
interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned subsidiary as
consolidated by Yichang Port Group. Non-controlling
interests directly holding 37.634% interests in Yunchi Port
Co and 20% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yichang Port Group have been disclosed
under the name of entity “Yunchi Port Co” and “Individually
immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests” of the
same table respectively. (i

The financial information of Yichang Port Group has
consolidated and included its 62.366% interests in Yunchi
Port Co and 80% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-
owned subsidiary. The relevant disclosure information about
the non-controlling interests holding the entity for Yichang
Port Group represents the financial information of Yichang
Port Group attributable to the non-controlling interests
directly holding 49% interests in Yichang Port Group.

TENEQF
EhEEHN (&)

= EUEEFT eV

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

v

BHELARRE

all

WABEERBEEERSK & E40%HE
mZEERERD ZEBERBREH
RUPBEEEEKEECIERA
ABE - REME A A 1562.366% 2 1
HER—HIEERFEZENE QA
1580% 2 tE# - EHEFAZME QA
37.63M%Em N EERHEE —MIFE
BEAFEEHB R A20% R Z IR
Hﬁﬁi* ARAEREBIE B
NERIEEFEERESEZERFEE
AMBABIRE—FIRANELEE -

HEEBEEZUWBEARDHEAAR

kB EHEREE R F62.366% 2 1#
mER—HEFEERFEZEMERRMNE

80% 2 3 - HEBHEBAREA
HEB 2 RS2 ARRE AR
RE R A B 85T % B40% i 35
7 36 PR IR 35 0 1 20 S 78 75 K L 2
BAR
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. TEMBRAT BEQIARE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT EhEER (F)
VENTURES (CONTINUED)
© ARFARMEFEIARAEER S
(c) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates & R20194F K2018F3H31H 2
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2019 HEMT

and 2018 are as follows:

Percentage of

issued share

Place of Issued and  capital/registered
incorporation/ fully paid up capital/ capital attributable
Name of associate registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AEBERES BT
AR BRATRBE RE/EMREX
BERNAEE A il 3 36 R E A BOL TEXK
2019 2018
% %
Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin HK$122,055,900 48.23 48.23 Investment holding in
Limited Islands ordinary shares companies engaged in
REZEEEBER QA EBEBRLHES 122,055,9007% 7T provision of comprehensive
g dh) engineering and property-
related services
REZEBRNEERE2ZE
TEMDEHBRE 2
NG
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. & registered capital BO2E
TewHmEREREETES (note below)
R 2 A A R % 400,000,0007¢
affER
(FXHaE)

note: Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures. Hiatr - HERRARINEBREDE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

54.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures

at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Mo RN
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

v

BHEQARARE

TENEQF
ERREN (B

all

d ANRAEEEAE D ENR2019F &
20183 H31B 2B T ¢

Percentage of

Place of registered capital
incorporation/ Fully paid attributable to
Name of associate registration registered capital the Group Principal activities
AR KEEERL
EELEER o i it B EREEMES HMELFIL FEXH
2019 2018
% %
IR ERXBRANE The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 Investment holding
H registered capital & &R
(note below)
A R % 53,000,000 7T
HMERCFXH )
MNESERHEFHEBR A The PRC RMB10,000,000 50 50 Property holding
H registered capital BAEME
(note below)
A R %10,000,000 7T
HMERCTXH )

note: Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To provide details of other subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures would, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, result in excessive length of particulars.

Hiat WERBRRINEBELE -

RN REEFARTIEFEREEFE
KESERANEBAREDEEFEZARR

FAMEAR BMEARLAERE - AQ
AEERR HIHMHBAR BEQ

AkAEREZEMNKBSRIELE
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Mo R EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HIEFE

55. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 22 May
2019, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of its
entire investment of 51% equity interest in Yichang Port
Group Limited (the “Disposal”) at a consideration of
RMB377,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$429,000,000), subject to adjustment. Further details
of the Disposal were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 May 2019 and the circular dated
10 June 2019. The Disposal has not been completed as
at the date of this report.

55. "B EMRZER

RAmERTHEE  REER2019F5H
2RE—RBIBE I BIEE RS
AR B A R 377,400,000 7T (48 & 7 49
429,000,000 7T) (AT EH A E) HE AR
HEABEEEREFTAFASINKE LS
HEE(HEFHE]) FHLELESHEZE
—FHBRARF HEA2019F5H22H
ZRAENHABAE2019F6 A10R ZBEA
BB HEFTERARE BB ARTERK -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
I BE

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ASBLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
FA&TT T T FHET FHETT FEx
RESULTS 4
Revenue A 523,557 488,052 553,977 624,400 628,368
Profit (loss) before taxation [ &t Al % 71| (E518) 331,849 (474,228) (22,701) 714,220 89,084
Taxation 18 (203,434) 112,695 (1,318)  (212,461)  (24,728)
Profit (loss) for the year & T (85 98) 128,415  (361,533)  (24,019) 501,759 64,356
Attributable to: FEAh
Owners of the Company ~ &NA & #EAB A 86,028 (297,902) (34,143) 477,390 49,208
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR = 42,387 (63,631) 10,124 24,369 15,148
128,415 (361,533  (24,019) 501,759 64,356
At 31 March
R3A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$°000
FE&TT FHE T FHET FHET FER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 9,431,923 8,425,813 7,781,556 8,119,334 7,668,493
Total liabilities BEE (3,879,350) (3,302,658) (2,972,950) (2,506,542) (2,358,917)
5,652,573 5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792 5,309,576
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to RATHEBANZIE
owners of the Company hiEs 4,844,034 4,299,576 4,009,174 4,711,814 4,446,094
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR BE = 708,539 823,579 799,432 900,978 863,482
5,652,573 5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792 5,309,576
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

E2MEFR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME
Group’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
& B A4k
NEREE BRAR FHE =
Nantong International Trade Center with Rented for hotel Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of about 6,000 sgqg m operation medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, H A VOB & A HPHEERE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PET#HEmAMS) KSRk mBRBERESF L
S ETE4V6,000F /5 2K
Commercial shops with gross floor area Rented for Leasehold with 51%
of about 5,000 sgm commercial use medium term
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, HHEEERAS PHAEEE
Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC
REDHIEE B E WM R EE ST KE 1695
£ £5TH 18 495,000 F 77 K
0.88 sq km land located at the west of the outer Undetermined Leasehold with 75%
gate of Yangkou Town, Rudong County, use long term
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC i® RORTE R B RHAHERH
FRBT & & B T JA R SR 0F M SR AN A A
0.88F T AELH
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BEPREYE
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of completion Group
Location and area Existing use completion date interest
& E @A s
EREE REEAR TREER At BB =
2 sq km land under development Undetermined  Land leveling March 2020 75%
located at the west of the use stage 2020F 3 H
outer gate of Yangkou Town, MARERSR LT FEEER

Rudong County, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

HR BT AR AR T 0 SR B ¥ DA SN EE Al
SR RBEREP LTI
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Executive Directors
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Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Remuneration Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Leung Chung Ki

Nomination Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

Sue Ka Lok

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

Chan Kai Ki

Share Repurchase Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Chan Kai Ki

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chan Kai Ki
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Chan Kai Ki)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd.

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited

Hubei Sanxia Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Rudong Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia Limited

Wuhan Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

RNAME

eSS

REAX

2= R
BR £ 58
(BEBEREEEE)

% ED

Y eMER FETANTT

FTEEREBIT

FEIRTIT(FB)BRAA
PERITROBR AR
RBRITBODBERAR
TERRITRMOBR AR
PERT (BB BR QA
TEERETROERAA
BEBRRITEROBRAR
BRERITERNOBER AR
TERERITEROHDERAA
BIELIRIT AR R A
ERE-RITAERRA
BERITAERA A
FERITEROBRAA

WAL= RENEERITRNDERA A
TEIHERITEROERAR
HERITRMOBERAA
TERINRENBERITEROERAF
EBKFRITARAA
PEBRFEZERTRNDABR QA
EERRERRITRMHARADA
RGRITAERAA]
BZEENBERTRNDABR QA
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FINANCIAL ADVISERS
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KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited

Opus Capital Limited
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
ADMINISTRATORS

BOCI Securities Limited
(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;
Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

33/F, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2831 8328
Fax: +852 2372 0641
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KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
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LHEKEHRRAORIN) BRAF
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Hamilton HM 11
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.pYICOrp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Frankfurt Stock Exchange
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PYW

ROBFETHEE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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69 Pitts Bay Road
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Bermuda
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FEWEBRBERA A
BE

EFRNEE183%
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PYI Corporation Limited
(REFRETMAL 2 BRAA)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

BBNEEEIRBEE 51 SHIREREHRL 33
33/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

&k Tel 1 +852 28318328

fEE Fax:+852 2372 0641

WWW.pyicorp.com
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